
 
 

Ridgway Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, February 8, 2023 
 

 

Pursuant to the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy, 
the meeting will be conducted both in person and via a virtual meeting portal. Members of 

the public may attend in person at the Community Center, located at 201 N. Railroad Street, 
Ridgway, Colorado 81432, or virtually using the meeting information below. 

 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82862839555?pwd=WlVaRkRZQ2t2L0pUY3N2NWFYbGg5Zz09  

Meeting ID: 828 6283 9555 
Passcode: 338712 

Dial by your location 
        +1 346 248 7799 US  
        +1 253 215 8782 US 

 

5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL Councilors Kevin Grambley, Polly Kroger, Beth Lakin, Terry Schuyler, JT Thomas, 

Mayor Pro Tem Russ Meyer and Mayor John Clark   
 
ADDITIONS & DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR   All matters listed under the consent calendar are 
considered to be routine by the Town Council and enacted by one motion.  The Council has 
received and considered reports and recommendations prior to assigning consent calendar 
designations.  Copies of the reports are on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and are available to the 
public.  There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion is requested, that item 
will be removed from the consent calendar and considered separately. 
 
1.    Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 11, 2023. 
 
2.    Register of Demands for February 2023. 
 
3.    Renewal of Brew Pub Liquor License for Colorado Boy Depot.  
 
4.    Renewal of Restaurant Liquor License for Lazy Dog Saloon, Bar and Grill.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   Established time for the public to address the Council regarding any item 
not otherwise listed on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person. 
 
POLICY MATTERS Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
5.    Resolution No. 23-03, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Ridgway, Colorado, 

Authorizing the Exercise of the Town’s Eminent Domain Authority to Acquire Real Property for 
a Recreational Pathway - Town Attorney. 

 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per 
person; discussion of each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
6.    Update from Artspace regarding Ridgway Space to Create - Andrew Michaelson.  
 
7.    Presentation regarding tobacco use prevention and control - Carolyn Dressler, MD, and 

Richard Gingery, MD.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82862839555?pwd=WlVaRkRZQ2t2L0pUY3N2NWFYbGg5Zz09


Town Council Agenda 
February 8, 2023 
Page 2 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
8.    Application: An Amended Plat of Lot 15, Parkside Subdivision; Location: Parkside 

Subdivision, Lot 15; Address: 702 N. Laura St., 704 N. Laura St., and 706 N. Laura St.; Zone: 
Residential (R); Applicant: Amanda Gerhardt; Owner: Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans 

 
9.    Application: Final Plat; Location: Ridgway Land Company Subdivision, Lots 30-34; 

Address: TBD Redcliff Dr.; Zone: General Commercial (GC); Applicant: Vista Park 
Development, LLC; Owner: Vista Park Development, LLC 

 
POLICY MATTERS Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
10.  Subdivision Improvements Agreement for Vista Park Commons PUD - Town Attorney.  
 
11.  Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce presentation on marketing and promotion activities and 

financial status - Ashley Perkins, Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce. 
 
12.  Request for authorization of staff to expend budgeted funds and enter into a contract to 

purchase a fleet vehicle for the Ridgway Public Works Department - Town Manager. 
 
13.  Discussion and direction regarding participation in the Mountain Towns 2030 Solutions Project 

- Town Manager.  
 
WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS   Written reports may be provided for informational purposes 
prior to the meeting updating Council on various matters that may or may not warrant discussion 
and action. 
 
14.  Letter from Mayor Clark making an appointment to the Ridgway Planning Commission. 
 
15.  Town Manager’s Report. 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   Informational verbal reports from Councilors pertaining to the 
following committees, commissions and organizations: 
 

Committees & Commissions: 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor Meyer and Mayor Clark 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilor Kroger 
Ridgway Creative District Creative Advocacy Team - Councilor Grambley 
Ridgway Sustainability Advisory Board - Councilor Thomas; alternate - Councilor Schuyler 
Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Councilor Lakin and Mayor Clark 
 
Board Appointments: 
Ouray County Weed Board - Councilor Lakin; alternate - Town Engineer 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor Meyer, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom 

McKenney; alternate - Councilor Schuyler 
Sneffels Energy Board - Councilor Thomas and Town Manager; alternate - Mayor Clark 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager 
Ouray County Transit Committee - Town Manager 



Town Council Agenda 
February 8, 2023 
Page 3 

 
 

Ouray County Water Users Association - Councilor Meyer; alternate Councilor Thomas 
Water and Land Committee for the Uncompahgre Valley - Councilor Meyer; alternate - 

Town Manager 
Colorado Communities for Climate Action - Councilor Lakin; alternate - Town Manager 
Colorado Municipal League Policy Committee - Town Manager 
Home Trust of Ouray County - Town Manager 
 
Liaisons: 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Lakin 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds - Councilor Schuyler 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Deadline for agenda items for next regular meeting, Wednesday, March 1, 2023 at 4:00 p.m., 
Town Clerk’s Office, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado. 



 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
JANUARY 11, 2023 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was held both in person and via a virtual meeting portal, Zoom Meeting, pursuant to 
the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy.  
 
The Mayor called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  The Council was present in its entirety with 
Councilors Kroger, Grambley, Lakin, Schuyler, Thomas, Mayor Pro Tem Meyer and Mayor Clark 
in attendance.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
The Town Attorney recommended the Council enter into a closed session pursuant to Colorado 
Revised Statutes 24-6-402(4)(b) for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 
questions regarding the possible purchase and/or condemnation of 539 Marion Overlook, 
Ridgway, Colorado. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Kroger and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Meyer to go into closed session.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The Council entered into executive session at 5:35 p.m. with the Town Attorney, Town Manager, 
Town Clerk and Attorney Joseph Riveria.   
 
The Council convened from closed session at 6:00 p.m. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1.    Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 14, 2022. 
 
2.    Register of Demands for January 2023. 
 
3.    Designate Town Hall as the official posting place. 
 
4.    Renew Liquor Store license for San Juan Wine and Liquors. 
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Meyer, seconded by Councilor Schuyler and unanimously 
carried by a roll call vote to approve the consent agenda. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Vicki Hawse asked the Council to consider contacting the Department of Transportation 
(CDOT) regarding reducing the speed limit from 60 miles per hour to 45 from the street light 
at Highways 550 and 62 to the entrance of Vista Terrace Subdivision, noting the area is a 
“wildlife corridor” and there are concerns with “public safety pulling out from Vista Terrace”.   
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 2 
 

The Town Manager noted staff has contacted CDOT to inquire about the speed limits in the 
area due to a potential new subdivision in Vista Terrace.  

 
POLICY MATTERS 
 

5.    Resolution No. 23-01 Adopting the Town of Ridgway Master Plan Amendment Process  
 

Staff Report from the Town Manager dated 1-6-23 presenting a resolution establishing an 
amendment process to the Master Plan. 

 
Contractual Planner TJ Dlubac explained after Council received a request from the Preserve 
PUD to annex a portion of land, and after review of Town codes, it was identified to meet 
annexation criteria in the Colorado Revised Statutes the Master Plan and Future Land Use 
Map must be updated.  The proposed resolution contains an amendment process to the 
Master Plan which after submittal for annexation of a parcel in the Town’s Urban Growth 
Boundary a public meeting would need to be held to present the request, after a notice is 
published in the local newspaper.  After a meeting there would be a 21 day notice period for 
comments from the public. A hearing would then be held before the Planning Commission, 
and then a public meeting with the  Town Council at which time a decision would be made, 
and the future land use map could be updated.   

 
There were comments and questions from the Council. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Schuyler moved to adopt Resolution No. 23-01 a Resolution of the Town Council of the 
Town of Ridgway, Colorado, Adopting the Town of Ridgway Master Plan Amendment Process.  
Councilmember Thomas seconded.  On a call for the vote the motion carried unanimously.  
 

6.    Resolution No. 23-02 Enacting the Ridgway Space to Create Community Room Fee Schedule  
 

Staff Report dated 1-6-23 from the Town Manager presenting a resolution creating a fee 
schedule for the Space to Create Community Room. 

 
Community Initiatives Facilitator Tera Wick reported the proposed fees are set for non-profit 
groups at $25 for a half day, and $50 for a full day; and private use or commercial ventures 
at $50 a half day or $100 a full day; with a deposit required and payment for electrical use. A 
half day is constituted by zero to four hours, and a full for four to eight hours.  

 
There was discussion by the Council regarding increasing the proposed fees.  Consensus 
was to eliminate the fee for utility usage and set the fee for non-profit organizations to $40 for 
a half day, $65 for a full day; private use $65 for a half day and $115 for a full day; create a 
new category for commercial ventures with a half day rate of $115 and full day $215; increase 
the damage deposit to $300 and $500 if alcohol will be served.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Lakin moved to approve Resolution No. 23-02 A Resolution of the Town Council of the 
Town of Ridgway, Colorado, Enacting the Ridgway Space to Create Community Room Fee 
Schedule with the changes as noted.  Councilor Kroger seconded, and the motion was 
unanimously carried.  
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 3 
 

7.    Presentation of the 2023 Ridgway FUSE Strategic Plan  
 

Councilmember Grambley explained he is the Councils Creative District representative and 
last year the Creative District and Main Street Committee merged to form a new entity FUSE.  
The group has prepared a strategic plan and it is being presented to the Town Council for 
review and direction.  

 
Community Initiatives Facilitator Tera Wick presented the document which contains 
directives in five focus areas, each which has a subcommittee to work with the goals.   The 
focus areas are Build which addresses the Space to Create project, Heritage Park expansion 
and exploring formation of an arts district; Connect which focuses on relationships with other 
non-profits and agencies, and facilitating community conversations; Gather devoted to 
executing events such as the Film Festival and First Fridays; Share which addresses social 
media to promote creative, historical and cultural assets; Organize used internally within the 
structure of FUSE to align with areas of the Master Plan and Main Street America 
Transformation Strategies. 

 
She noted the document will be used to guide the program for the next two to three years, 
with an opportunity for annual updates.  

 

8.    Request for appointment to the Home Trust of Ouray County Board of Directors  
 

The Mayor noted at the previous meeting the Council received a request to appoint a member 
to serve on the newly formed Home Trust board.  He noted the board is “diverse with 
members from all over the county” and asked if any member of the Council “has time to take 
on another commitment”.  

 
There was not a member of Council able to accept the appointment, and the Town Manager 
noted he would be happy to serve on the board. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Meyer moved to appoint Preston Neill to represent the Town of Ridgway on the 
Home Trust of Ouray County Board of Directors.  Councilor Schuyler seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously.  
 
9.    Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Ridgway, City of Ouray and Ouray County 

for Shared Victim Advocate Services  
 

Staff Report dated 1-6-23 from the Town Manager presenting the annual intergovernmental 
agreement (IGA) for shared victim advocate services with the City and County.  

 
Manager Neill reported Ouray County has taken over the Victim Advocate Services from the  
Town, and this years contribution to meet the deficit in grant funding is $1622.50.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Lakin and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Meyer to approve the IGA between 
the Town, City of Ouray and Ouray County for Shared Victim Advocate Services.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 4 
 

10.  Workshop to discuss and evaluate strategies for a dedicated revenue source for affordable 
housing  

 
Manager Neill reported in July during a conversation to possibly modify distribution of lodging 
taxes to include a new dedicated source of funds for affordable housing, the Council asked 
that at the beginning of the new year discussions begin to find dedicated revenue sources. 
 
The Council agreed to hold a workshop meeting on February 15th at 6:00 p.m. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS 
 

The Town Clerk reported the 2023 Municipal Election will be held on April 4th.  Three 
councilmember seats, for two year terms, will become vacant, those currently held by 
Councilors Kroger, Lakin and Meyer.  The nomination period begins on January 30th and 
closes on February 17th.  
 
Manager Neill highlighted some items contained in the monthly Managers Report.   

 
       Councilor Lakin gave an update on the CC4C committee. 
 
       Councilmember Thomas presented an update on the Sustainability Committee. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk 
 

 
 

 
 

 



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Community Planning Strategie... Alpine-Operating Account

Dec 2022 513GOO · Planning Consulting -5,938.75

TOTAL -5,938.75

Colorado West Land Trust Alpine-Operating Account

5020GO1 · CO West Land Trust -4,000.00

TOTAL -4,000.00

PARC Alpine-Operating Account

5100GO1 · Public Art Ridgway Colorado -3,000.00

TOTAL -3,000.00

Mesa County HDR Laboratory Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -20.00

TOTAL -20.00

Pro Velocity Alpine-Operating Account

556GOO · IT Services -12.00

TOTAL -12.00

Ouray County Road & Bridge Alpine-Operating Account

12/27/22-1/23/23 660GO2 · Gas & Oil -517.25
12/27/22-1/23/23 760POO · Gas & Oil -169.90
12/27/22-1/23/23 960WOO · Gas & Oil -151.60
12/27/22-1/23/23 960SOO · Gas & Oil -330.86
12/27/22-1/23/23 860GO3 · Gas & Oil -800.40

TOTAL -1,970.01

esri Alpine-Operating Account

annual ArcGIS 514GOO · Consulting Services -880.00

TOTAL -880.00

Montrose Ford-Nissan Inc Alpine-Operating Account

change oil; rotate tires - 2017 Explorer 861GO3 · Vehicle Maintanence & Repair -75.24

TOTAL -75.24

Honnen Equipment Company Alpine-Operating Account

12/28-1/24 loader 662GO2 · SnowRemoval Equip&Services -4,692.27

TOTAL -4,692.27

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

February 2023

Page 1



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Valley Restoration & Constructi... Alpine-Operating Account

wtr damage mitigation 782PO1 · Visitor Center -5,660.33

TOTAL -5,660.33

Axon Alpine-Operating Account

body cameras & 2023 storage 819GO3 · Contractural Services -11,668.00

TOTAL -11,668.00

Eurofins Eaton Analytical Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -150.00
990WOO · Testing - water -150.00

TOTAL -300.00

Colorado Communities for Cli... Alpine-Operating Account

CC4CA 2023 5040GO1 · Other Contributions -1,000.00

TOTAL -1,000.00

SGM Alpine-Operating Account

thru 1/14/23 552GOO · GIS Mapping - admin -120.34
thru 1/14/23 952WOO · GIS Mapping - water -120.33
thru 1/14/23 952SOO · GIS Mapping - sewer -120.33

TOTAL -361.00

Snipps Heat & Air Inc Alpine-Operating Account

restroom boiler repair - Hartwell 731POO · Maintenance & Repairs -625.00

TOTAL -625.00

UNCC Alpine-Operating Account

915WOO · Dues & memberships -14.19
915SOO · Dues & Memberships -14.19

TOTAL -28.38

Hartman Brothers Inc Alpine-Operating Account

661GO2 · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -8.47
961SOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -8.48
961WOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -8.47

TOTAL -25.42

City of Grand Junction Alpine-Operating Account

918SOO · Testing & Permits - sewer -612.00

TOTAL -612.00

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

February 2023

Page 2



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Clear Networx, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

Feb 2023 543GOO · Telephone -56.00
Feb 2023 643GO2 · Telephone -56.00
Feb 2023 843GO3 · Telephone -61.00
Feb 2023 943WOO · Telephone -56.00
Feb 2023 943SOO · Telephone -56.00
Feb 2023 530GOO · Computer -50.00
Feb 2023 630GO2 · Computer -50.00
Feb 2023 730POO · Computer -50.00
Feb 2023 830GO3 · Computer -50.00
Feb 2023 930WOO · Computer -50.00
Feb 2023 930SOO · Computer -50.00
Feb 2023 930WOO · Computer -50.00
Feb 2023 930SOO · Computer -25.00
Feb 2023 630GO2 · Computer -25.00
Feb 2023 843GO3 · Telephone -55.00

TOTAL -740.00

Amerigas Alpine-Operating Account

propane - wtr plant 942WOO · Utilities -3,945.09

TOTAL -3,945.09

Clear Networx, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

fiber activation 778PO1 · Space to Create Meeting Room -100.00
fiber - Feb 2023 778PO1 · Space to Create Meeting Room -106.58

TOTAL -206.58

True Value Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -51.48
shop roof extension 631GO2 · Maintenance & Repairs -190.21

732POO · Supplies & Materials -41.96
732PO1 · Supplies - c cntr/t hall -15.10
832GO3 · Equipment & Supplies -24.27

shop roof extension 931SOO · Maintenance & Repairs -190.21
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -51.51
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -183.84

shop roof extension 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -190.22

TOTAL -938.80

Black Hills Energy-Hartwell Park Alpine-Operating Account

742POO · Utilities -90.69

TOTAL -90.69

Black Hills Energy-Lift Station Alpine-Operating Account

942SOO · Utilities -29.01

TOTAL -29.01

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

February 2023

Page 3



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Black Hills Energy-PW Office Alpine-Operating Account

642GO2 · Utilities -34.80
942SOO · Utilities -34.80
942WOO · Utilities -34.80

TOTAL -104.40

Black Hills Energy-PW Building Alpine-Operating Account

742POO · Utilities -139.87
642GO2 · Utilities -139.88
942SOO · Utilities -139.87
942WOO · Utilities -139.87

TOTAL -559.49

Black Hills Energy-Town Hall Alpine-Operating Account

742PO1 · Utilities - c cntr/t hall -119.79
842GO3 · Utilities -119.79
542GOO · Utilities -119.78

TOTAL -359.36

Black Hills Energy-Broadband Alpine-Operating Account

783PO1 · Broadband Station -14.89

TOTAL -14.89

USABlueBook Alpine-Operating Account

replacement pump - plant 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -982.12

TOTAL -982.12

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

February 2023

Page 4



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #5 
 



Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

RIDGWAY, COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE EXERCISE OF 

THE TOWN’S EMINENT DOMAIN AUTHORITY TO ACQUIRE 

REAL PROPERTY FOR A RECREATIONAL PATHWAY 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 

municipality and political subdivision organized and existing under a home rule charter pursuant 

to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town possesses the power of eminent domain pursuant to Article II, § 

15 and Article XX, §§ 1 and 6 of the Colorado Constitution, Article 1-4 and Article 1-5 of the 

Town’s Home Rule Charter, C.R.S. § 38-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. § 38-6-101, et seq., and C.R.S. 

§29-7-104, et seq.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the citizens and the Town Council of the Town of Ridgway (the “Ridgway 

Town Council”) seek to maximize the Town’s natural beauty and recreational opportunities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town may exercise the power of eminent domain for the public purpose 

of constructing and maintaining recreational trials; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town seeks to acquire by condemnation the real property interest(s) 

necessary to construct and maintain a recreational trial; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town seeks to acquire by condemnation a perpetual non-exclusive 

easement interest in the real property addressed as 539 Marion Overlook to construct and maintain 

a recreational trial; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ten foot wide recreational trail easement will extend along the entire 

length of the east property boundary of 539 Marion Overlook; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds this Resolution to be in the best interest and welfare 

of the residents of the Town. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Ridgway, Colorado:  

 

Section 1. The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference and adopted as 

findings of the Ridgway Town Council.  

 

Section 2. As diagram of the real property sought to be condemned is in the attached 

Exhibit 1.  

 

Section 3. The Ridgway Town Council hereby finds the acquisition of an easement 

interest in the property addressed as 539 Marion Overlook for use as a recreational trail will 



Page 2 of 3 

serve a proper, public and municipal purpose and use, and that such acquisition is necessary and 

essential to this public purpose and use. The Ridgway Town Council hereby declares its intent to 

acquire an easement interest in, and through, the property addressed as 539 Marion Overlook for 

the purposes stated herein and, if necessary, to do so through the exercise of the power of 

eminent domain. 

 

Section 4. The Town Manager, the Town Attorney, the Town Manager’s designated 

representative(s), and any and all persons retained or employed by the Town in the prosecution 

of this matter are hereby directed to comply with all notice and good faith negotiation 

requirements set forth in C.R.S. § 38-1-101, et seq.  

 

Section 5. The Town Manager is authorized to make reasonable and good faith offers 

to purchase from the affected landowner an easement interest in the property addressed as 539 

Marion Overlook for use as a recreational trail, and the Town Manager is further authorized to 

execute agreements for the acquisition of same. 

 

Section 6. If, after engaging in good-faith negotiations, the Town is unable to acquire 

the necessary property rights, the Town Attorney is hereby authorized to institute and prosecute 

eminent domain proceedings in the name of the Town so as to acquire an easement in the 

property addressed as 539 Marion Overlook by condemnation. In the prosecution of any eminent 

domain actions to acquire a non-exclusive easement interest in the westerly portion of 539 

Marion, the Town shall have and retain all rights and powers lawfully delegated to it by Article 

II, § 15 and Article XX, §§ 1 and 6 of the Colorado Constitution, Article 1-4 and Article 1-5 of 

the Town’s Home Rule Charter, C.R.S. § 38-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. § 38-6-101, et seq., and 

C.R.S. §29-7-104, et seq. 

 

Section 7. The Town Manager, in consultation with the Town Attorney, is authorized 

to retain such expert witnesses, including appraisers, as the Town determines are necessary for 

the eminent domain proceedings. 

 

Section 8. The Town Manager or his designee, in consultation with the Town 

Attorney, are hereby specifically authorized to make such reasonable or necessary amendments 

and corrections to the terms and/or legal descriptions of the property interests to be acquired, 

including authorization to include such additional or other property rights necessary or desirable 

for the Town. The Town Manager and Town Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute 

an acceptance of the interests in real property when acquired. 

 

Section 9. The Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that this 

Resolution is promulgated under the general police power of the Town of Ridgway, that it is 

adopted for the health, safety and welfare of the public, and that this Resolution is necessary for 

the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare. 

The Ridgway Town Council further determines that the Resolution bears a rational relation to the 

proper legislative object sought to be obtained.  

  

Section 10. If any clause, sentence, paragraph or part of this Resolution or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged by a court of 



Page 3 of 3 

competent jurisdiction invalid, such judgment shall not affect application to other persons or 

circumstances. 

 

Section 11. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _____ day of February 2023. 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        John Clark, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________                                                    

Pam Kraft, Town Clerk                                                                

 



EXHIBIT 1 

 

539 Marion Overlook outlined in red 

Recreational trail easement (10 ft. wide) depicted in orange 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   February 2, 2023 
Agenda Topic: Update from Artspace regarding Ridgway Space to Create 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY: 
Andrew Michaelson, Property Development Director for Artspace, will attend Wednesday’s meeting to 
provide various updates related to Ridgway Space to Create. 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
 



Dr. Carolyn Dresler, 2022 C. Everett Koop Unsung Hero Award Recipient, Joins ASH Board of 
Trustees 

Lung Health and Human Rights Expertise will Accelerate Tobacco Endgame 

 
WASHINGTON, DC – JANUARY 24, 2023 – Action on Smoking and Health (ASH US) is honored to 
welcome Carolyn Dresler, MD, MPA to its Board of Trustees. Dr. Dresler brings decades of clinical 
lung health and policy expertise to ASH which aligns with our work to end the tobacco epidemic as 
quickly as possible.  

Dr. Dresler was trained at Memorial Sloan Kettering and the University of Toronto as a thoracic 
surgical oncologist with clinical practices at Washington University and Fox Chase Cancer Center. 
She retired in 2018 as the Associate Director for Medical and Health Sciences for the Office of 
Science at the Center for Tobacco Products at the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA).  

Prior to working at the FDA, Dr. Dresler was the Director for the Arkansas Department of Health 
Tobacco Prevention and Cessation Program. She was also the Head of Unit for Tobacco and 
Cancer at the International Agency for Research on Cancer in Lyon, France.  

In 2003, she took a leave of absence to complete a Master in Public Administration at the Kennedy 
School of Government at Harvard University. During her time at Harvard, Dr. Dresler studied under 
fellow ASH Board Trustee, Professor Stephen P. Marks, and made a now historic assertion: the 
tobacco industry violates human rights every day simply by marketing and selling products 
they know will addict and kill. 

Dr. Dresler’s Harvard thesis was adapted and published as the landmark piece “The Emerging 
Human Right to Tobacco Control” in the journal Human Rights Quarterly in 2006. Professor Marks, 
initially skeptical of the concept, went on to co-author the paper and join her in championing the link 
between tobacco and human rights.  

“I was awakened, thanks to Carolyn, to the critical importance of tobacco control not only as 
a major public health issue but also as a human rights issue,” said Stephen Marks, Dean of the 
Jindal School of Public Health and Human Development (JSPH) at O.P. Jindal Global University and 
François-Xavier Bagnoud Professor of Health and Human Rights Emeritus, Harvard University.  

In 2009, Dr. Dresler became the founder and board chair of the Human Rights and Tobacco Control 
Network (HRTCN), a global non-governmental organization dedicated to using human rights to end 
the tobacco epidemic, and invited ASH Policy Director Chris Bostic to join the board. HRTCN 
membership led to ASH’s human rights program. The network is now housed under ASH as a 
network of experts supporting the connection of human rights and tobacco control.  

Dr. Dresler has had a profound impact on the way public health advocates, researchers and 
officials view the tobacco epidemic. The human rights-based approach provides the foundation 
for ASH’s cutting-edge policy strategies and focus on health equity in policy outcomes.  

Recently, Dr. Dresler was awarded the American Lung Association’s 2022 C. Everett Koop Unsung 
Hero Award “for her remarkable career and contributions she made to significantly reducing tobacco 
use in Colorado, the U.S. and around the world,” said the American Lung Association in their 
statement. ASH released a video featuring global colleagues reflecting on Dr. Dresler’s extensive 
impact to commemorate the occasion. 

“Dr. Dresler is a force for good in the world. Her efforts to reduce tobacco use and 
secondhand smoke exposure have undoubtedly impacted millions of lives around the world,” 

https://default.salsalabs.org/T8da22f12-28f9-405c-bb47-f03a1efc8db4/53389f16-796e-4eda-a404-09039a55ebdb
https://default.salsalabs.org/T8da22f12-28f9-405c-bb47-f03a1efc8db4/53389f16-796e-4eda-a404-09039a55ebdb
http://?
https://default.salsalabs.org/Tf05161ba-079d-4d8c-acd7-92d2ca569222/53389f16-796e-4eda-a404-09039a55ebdb
https://default.salsalabs.org/Tf05161ba-079d-4d8c-acd7-92d2ca569222/53389f16-796e-4eda-a404-09039a55ebdb
https://default.salsalabs.org/T80fbe2d4-5a26-4d81-82c9-2e2a73b5ccb8/53389f16-796e-4eda-a404-09039a55ebdb
https://default.salsalabs.org/T80fbe2d4-5a26-4d81-82c9-2e2a73b5ccb8/53389f16-796e-4eda-a404-09039a55ebdb


Dr. Carolyn Dresler, 2022 C. Everett Koop Unsung Hero Award Recipient, Joins ASH Board of 
Trustees 

Lung Health and Human Rights Expertise will Accelerate Tobacco Endgame 

 
said Harold Wimmer, President and CEO of the American Lung Association. “Her vision has 
moved the world closer to being free from tobacco.” 

Dr. Dresler’s goal is to end the tobacco epidemic, not “someday” but soon. Her continued 
partnership with and support of ASH as a Trustee will no doubt accelerate that goal.  

   
ACTION ON SMOKING AND HEALTH 
Founded in 1967, Action on Smoking and Health (ASH) is America’s oldest anti-tobacco 
organization, dedicated to a world with ZERO tobacco deaths. Because tobacco is the leading cause 
of preventable death worldwide, ASH supports bold solutions proportionate to the magnitude of the 
problem. ash.org 

Media Contact:  
Megan Arendt-Manning 
(202) 659 – 4310 

https://default.salsalabs.org/T533a6540-bd44-4362-aaf7-238dc2eeca28/53389f16-796e-4eda-a404-09039a55ebdb
https://default.salsalabs.org/Tcb56a81c-b7c8-496e-92d3-f2cb0eaee785/53389f16-796e-4eda-a404-09039a55ebdb


 Page 1 of 9 

 

Draft 
Reference:  Ridgway Municipal code of Ordinances 
Local Code Home Rule 
Licensing authority:   
Compliance Authority: 
 

Town of Ridgway, Colorado 
Ordinance No. —- 

 
 

An Ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of Ridgway, Colorado, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 8 OF THE RIDGWAY MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, BY ADDING 

SECTION 6 CREATING TOBACCO RETAIL LICENSING REQUIREMENT; RAISING THE 
MINIMUM LEGAL SALE AGE FOR TOBACCO PRODUCTS TO TWENT-ONE; AND 

PROHIBITING THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO PRODUCTS IN THE TOWN OF 
RIDGWAY. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway, Colorado (“Town”) is a hime rule municipality existing 
pursuant to the laws of the Colorado Constitution , the Colorado Revised Statues and the 
Town’s Home Rule Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town has the power to adopt this ordinance pursuant to the powers contained 
in the Ridgway Town Charter and it general police power; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S.  31-15-103 and  31-15-104, and pursuant to the home rule 
powers of the Town, the Town Council has the power to make and publish ordinances 
necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity, 
order, comfort, and convenience of it inhabitants; and 
 
WHEREAS, tobacco use remains the leading cause of preventable death in the United States, 
killing nearly half a million people each year - including approximately 5100 in Colorado each 
year.  It causes or contributes to many forms of cancer, as well as heart disease and respiratory 
diseases, among other health disorders; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention estimates that more than 2.5 
million US middle and high school students reported currently using e-cigarettes in 2022, with 
more than 8 in 10 of those youth using flavored e-cigarettes; and 
 
WHEREAS, nicotine solutions, which are consumed via electronic smoking devices such as 
electronic cigarettes, are sold in thousands of flavors that appeal to youth, such as cotton 
candy, bubble gum, banana smash and mango ice; and  
 
WHEREAS, data from the Colorado Healthy Kids survey indicates that   ZZZZ Colorado high 
school students and nearly  XXX Colorado middle school students report having ever tried a 
flavored tobacco product; and 
 
WHEREAS, the density of tobacco retailers, particularly in neighborhoods surrounding schools 
has been associated with increased youth smoking rates; and 
 



 Page 2 of 9 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the adoption of. PDQ will promote the health, safety 
and general welfare of the Ridgway community; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
RIDGWAY, COLORADO the following: 
 

Chapter 8 Licensing 
Section 6 Tobacco Retail Licensing and Tobacco Sales 
 

Section1. Definitions. 
 
(a) As used in this chapter: 
 
(1) “Arm’s length transaction’ means a sale in good faith and for valuable consideration that 

reflects the fair market value between two informed and willing parties, neither of which is 
under any compulsion to participate in the transaction. 

(2) “Compliance Check’ means the system the Ridgway Marshall’s office uses to investigate 
and ensure that those authorized to sell tobacco products are following and complying with the 
requirements of this ordinance. Compliance checks can involve the use of persons under the 
age of 21 who purchase or attempt to purchase tobacco products.  Compliance checks may 
also be conducted by other units of government for educational, research, and/or training 
purposes, or for investigating or enforcing federal, state, or local laws and regulations relating to 
tobacco products. 
 
(3) “Delivery Sale” means the sale of any tobacco product to any person for personal 
consumption and not for resale when the sale is conducted by any means other than an in-
person, over-the-counter sales transaction in a licensed retail establishment.  Delivery sale 
includes, but is not limited to, the sale of any tobacco product when the sale is conducted by 
telephone, other voice transmission, mail, the internet, or app-based service.  Delivery sale 
includes delivery by licensees or third parties by any means, including curbside pick-up. 
 
(4) “Electronic smoking device” means any device that may be used to deliver any aerosolized 
or vaporized or ‘heated’ substance to the person inhaling from the device, including, but not 
limited to an e-cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, vape pen, e-hookah or heated-not burned product.  
Electronic smoking device includes any component, part, or accessory of the device, and also 
includes any substance intended to be aerosolized or vaporized or heated during the use of the 
device, whether or not the substance contains nicotine.  Electronic smoking device does not 
include drugs, devices, or combination products authorized for sale by the US Food and Drug 
Administration for cessation purposes, as those terms are defined in the Federal Food, Drug 
and Cosmetic Act. 
 
(5) “Labeling means written, printed or graphic matter upon any tobacco product or any of its 
packaging, or accompanying such tobacco product. 
 
(6). “Movable Place of Business” means any form of business that is operated out of a kiosk, 
truck, van, automobile or other type of vehicle or transportable shelter and that is not a fixed 
address or other permanent type of structure licensed for over-the-counter sales transactions. 
 
(7) “person” means any natural person. 
 



 Page 3 of 9 

 

(8) “Purchases” means any person who obtains or attempts to obtain tobacco product. 
 
(9) “Sale” means any transfer of goods for money, trade, barter or other consideration. 
 
(10) “Self-Service Display” means the open display of tobacco products in a retail establishment 
in any manner where any person has access to the tobacco products without the assistance or 
intervention of the licensee or the licensee’s employee and where a physician exchange of the 
tobacco products from the licensee or the licensee’s employee to the customer is not required in 
order to access the tobacco products. 
 
(11) “Tobacco Product” means any product that is made or derived from tobacco or that 
contains any form of nicotine, if it is intended for human consumption or is likely to be 
consumed, whether smoked, heated, chewed, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, or ingested by any 
other means, including, but not limited to, a cigarette, an electronic smoking device, a cigar, a 
‘little’ cigar, pipe tobacco, chewing tobacco, ‘rolling’ tobacco snuff, hookah, e-hookah, snus or 
nicotine-containing pouch.  The phrase also means any component or accessory used in the 
consumption of a tobacco product, such as filters, rolling papers, pipes, blunt or hemp wraps, 
and/or liquids used in electronic smoking devices, whether or not they contain nicotine.  The 
phrase does not include any product that is a drug, device, or combination of products 
specifically authorized for smoking cessation purposes by the United States Food and Drug 
Administration, as those terms are defined or described in 21 U.S.C. 321 and 353(g). 
 
(12) Tobacco Retail Establishment” means any place of business where tobacco products are 
available for sale, whether or not the business is open to the general public or maintains a 
private membership-based pointe of sale.  Tobacco retail establishment includes but is not 
limited to grocery stores, tobacco products shops, cigar lounges, cigar lounges, e-cigarette 
lounges, convenience stores, liquor stores, gasoline service stations, bars, restaurants, and/or 
golf or country clubs. 
 
(13) “Tobacco Retailer” means any person, partnership, joint venture, society club, trustee, trust, 
association, organization or corporation that owns, operates, or manages any tobacco retail 
establishment.  Tobacco retailer does not mean the non-management employees of any 
tobacco retail establishment. 
 
(14) “Vending Machine” means any mechanical, electric or electronic, or other type of device 
that dispenses tobacco products upon the insertion of money, tokens, or other form of payment 
into or onto the device by the person seeking to purchase the tobacco product. 
 
(15) “Youth-oriented facility” means any facility with residents, customers, visitors, or inhabitants 
of which 25 percent or more are regularly under the age of 21 or that primarily sells, rents, or 
offers services or products that are consumed or used primarily by persons under the age of 21.  
Youth-oriented facility includes, but is not limited, to a licensed care facility or preschool, day 
care centers, public or private schools, playgrounds, a library open to the public, recreations 
centers and parks. 
 

Section 2.  Tobacco Retail License Required; Application. 
 
(a) Tobacco Retail License required.  No person, tobacco retailer, or tobacco retail 

establishment shall sell or offer to sell any tobacco product without first having obtained a 
tobacco retail license from Ridgway Town, or its authorized designee.  Each individual 
tobacco retail establishment location engaging in the sale of tobacco products at a fixed 



 Page 4 of 9 

 

tobacco retail establishment shall secure a tobacco retail license from the Town 
Manager/Clerk before engaging or continuing to engage in such business.  The tobacco 
retail license shall be on display at the tobacco retail establishment at all times.  No tobacco 
retailer shall sell tobacco products without a valid tobacco retail sales license. 

(b) Application.  An application for a license to sell tobacco products must be made on a form 
provided by Ridgway Town.  The application must contain the full name of the applicant, the 
applicant’s residential and business addresses and telephone numbers, the name of the 
business for which the license is sought, and any additional information that the Ridgway 
Town deems necessary.  If Ridgway Town, or its designee determines that an application is 
incomplete, the application will be returned to the applicant with notice of the deficiency and 
the requisite information necessary to make the application complete. 

(c) Term.  The license term is one calendar year, beginning on XX Date, 2023.  All current 
Ridgway Town tobacco retailers are required to submit their applications by XX Date 2023. 

(d) Violation, suspension, or revocation.  Any license issued may be suspended or revoked 
following the procedure set forth in this Ordinance.  A tobacco retail establishment that 
violates any provision of this ordinance, or any other federal, state or local law relating to 
tobacco product sales, is subject to the penalties - in addition to those prescribed under 
other federal, state or local laws.  These penalties may include the prohibition of the sale of 
tobacco products.  A violation of other federal, state, and/or local laws relating to tobacco 
sales shall be included in the determination and accrual of violations against a retail 
establishment’s license as proscribed in this Ordinance. 

(e) Transfers.  All licenses issued are valid only on the premises for which the license was 
issued and only for the person to whom the license was issued.  The transfer of any license 
to another location or person is prohibited. 

(f) Display.  All licenses must be posted and displayed at all times in plain view of the general 
public or clientele of the retail establishment. 

(g) Renewals.  The renewal of license issued under this Ordinance shall be handled in the 
same manner as the original application.  The request for a renewal must be made at least 30 
days, but not more than 60 days, before the expiration of the current license.  A tobacco product 
retail license is invalid if the appropriate renewal fee has not been timely paid in full or if the term 
of the license has expired. 
(h) Issuance as privilege and not a right.  The issuance of a license is a privilege and does not 
entitle the license holder to an automatic renewal of the license. 
(i) Instructional program.  Licensees must complete and ensure that all employees complete a 

training program on the legal requirements related to the sale of tobacco products, and the 
possible consequences of license violations.  Any training program must e pre-approved by 
Ridgway Town Manager or their designee; shall include information that the sale of tobacco 
products to persons under 21 years of age is illegal, the types of identification legally 
acceptable for proof of age, and that sales to person under 21 years of age shall subject the 
tobacco retail establishment to penalties.  No person engaged in Tobacco product retailing 
shall sell or transfer a tobacco product or tobacco paraphernalia to another person who 
appears to be under the age of forty (40) years without first examine the identification of the 
recipient to confirm the recipient is at least the Minimum Legal Sales Age.   

(j) Samples prohibited.  No tobacco retail establishment or person shall distribute samples of 
any tobacco product free of charge or at a nominal cost, regardless of the age of the person 
acquiring the product.  The distribution of tobacco products as a sample, free donation, or at 
otherwise nominal cost is prohibited and shall subject the tobacco retail establishment to the 
penalties prescribed under this Ordinance, in addition to any local, state or federal laws 
pertaining to samples, donation, or otherwise nominally priced tobacco products. 
 

Section 3.  Denial of License. 



 Page 5 of 9 

 

(A). Grounds for denying the issuance or renewal of a license include, but are not limited to the 
following: 
 1. The applicant is under 21 years of age. 
 
 2. The applicant has been convicted within the past five years of any violation of federal, 
state, or local law, ordinance provision, or other regulation relating to the sale of tobacco 
products. 
 
 3.  The applicant has had a license to sell tobacco products revoked within the preceding 
36 months of the date of the application. 
 
 4.  The applicant has not held a state tax license for the sale of tobacco products for at 
least one (1) year prior to the enactment of this Ordinance or the applicant is ineligible for a 
tobacco retail license for any other reason pursuant to Section 6 of this ordinance. 
 
 5.  The total  number of tobacco retail licenses allowed under Section 6 of this ordinance 
have already been issued at the time of the application. 
 
 6.  The applicant fails to provide the information required on the licensing application or 
provides false or misleading information.   
 
 7.  The applicant is prohibited by federal, state, or other local law, ordinance, or other 
regulation from holding a license. 
 
 8.  The business for which the license is request is a moveable place of business.  Only 
fixed-location retail establishments are eligible to be licensed. 
 
(B) If a license is mistakenly issued or renewed to a person, Ridgway Town or its authorized 
designee may revoke the license upon the discovery that the person was ineligible for the 
license under this ordinance.  Ridgway Town will provide the licensee with notice of the 
revocation, along with information on the right to appeal. 
 
© if a license is suspended or revoked, whether due to licensee ineligibility to determination of a 
violation under this Ordinance, or any other federal, state, or local law or regulation, the license 
is forfeited to Ridgway Town and shall not be refunded to the applicant. 
 

Section 4.  Tobacco retail sales without a valid tobacco retail license. 
 
(A) In addition to any other penalty authorized by law, if any tobacco retailer has engaged in 

tobacco sales at a location without a valid tobacco retail license, either directly or through 
the tobacco retailer’s agents or employees, the tobacco retailer shall be ineligible to apply 
for or to the issued, a tobacco retail license as follows: 

 1. After a first violation of this section at a location within any 24 month period, the 
location shall receive a written warning from Ridgway Town. 
 2.  After a second violation of this section at a location within any 24 month period, no 
new license may issue for the tobacco retailer or location until ninety (90) days have passed 
from the date of the violation. 
 3. After a third violation of this section within any 24 month period, no new license may 
issue for the tobacco retailer or location. 

 



 Page 6 of 9 

 

Section 5.  Fees and Fines.   
(a)  No license shall be issued under this Ordinance until the appropriate license fees are paid 

in full.   
(b) The fee for a license application shall be $1000.  The renewal fee will be decided by 

Ridgway Town Council in their budget discussions.  License fees collected under this 
Chapter shall be used to fund tobacco retail compliance inspections, and enforcement 
measures.  Such funds may also be designated for other tobacco control, prevention and/or 
education programs as determined by Ridgway Town Council. 

(c)   Ridgway Town Council shall have the authority to adjust the tobacco retail license 
annual/renewal fee as deemed necessary. 

 

Section 6.  Limits on Tobacco Retailer Licenses 
(a). Sunset on Tobacco Retail License.  The total number of tobacco retailer licenses with 
Ridgway Town shall be limited to the maximum of either (8) tobacco retail licenses at the time 
this Ordinance is enacted.  Ridgway Town shall not issue any new licenses for the sale of 
tobacco products once the eight (8) or less tobacco retail licenses have been issued to existing 
tobacco retailers at the time this Ordinance is enacted. 
 
(b) Number of available tobacco retail licenses. 
 1. If one or more of the either (8) tobacco retail licenses allowed under this ordinance are 
not issued with 60 days this Ordinance becomes law, the total number of tobacco retail licenses 
available of issuance shall decrease to the current number of applicants seeking a tobacco retail 
license upon enactment of this Ordinance. 
 2. If a tobacco retail license is not renewed, or is revoked for any reason under the 
provisions of this Ordinance, the total number of tobacco retail licenses available for issuance in 
the Town of Ridgway shall decrease to the total number of valid tobacco retail licenses in effect 
at the revocation or nonrenewable of a tobacco retail license occurs. 
 
(c) Ridgway Town will accept an initial tobacco retail license application only from an applicant 
for the same location at which the applicant possessed a valid state tax license to sell tobacco 
products in the same location for at least one year before the date this Ordinance was enacted 
into law.   
 
(d). A tobacco retail establishment operating lawfully on the date this ordinance is enacted may 
renew a tobacco retail license in subsequent  years subject to the provision of this ordinance, 
provided that all of the rolling conditions are met: 
 
 1. A tobacco retail license held by an individual is only eligible for renewal by the same 
individual that currently holds the tobacco retail license: and 
 2.  A tobacco retail license held by an LLC, partnership, joint venture, society, club, 
trustee, trust, association, organization or corporation is only eligible for rental if at least 50% of 
the owners, shareholders, trustees, or partners in place on (date ordinance is enacted) still 
remain as owners, shareholders, trustee, or partners, as applicable, at the time of the 
application for renewal; and 
 3. The license is timely obtained and is renewed without lapse or permanent revocation 
(as opposed to a temporary suspension); and 
 4.  The tobacco retail establishment is not closed for business or other suspends 
tobacco sales, either voluntarily or due to license suspension for more than ninety (90) 
consecutive days; and 



 Page 7 of 9 

 

 5. The tobacco retailer does not substantially change the business premises or business 
operation.  A substantial change to the business operation includes, but is not limited to, the 
transferring of a location: 
 a.  to a new Proprietor(s) in an Arm’s Length Transaction; or 
 b.  for which a significant purpose is avoiding the effect of violations of this ordinance; 
and 
 c.  the tobacco retailer retains the right to operate under other applicable laws.  
 
6.  If the Town of Ridgway determines that a tobacco retailer has substantially changed the 
business premises or operation and the tobacco retailer disputes this determination, the tobacco 
retailer bears the burden of proving by a preference of evidence that such change(s) do not 
constitute a substantial change. 
 

Section 7.  Proximity to other licensed tobacco retailers.   
No tobacco retail license will be granted to a tobacco retailer for a tobacco retail establishment 
location that is within 500 feet of any other existing license tobacco retail establishment, as 
measured by the shortest line from the property line of the space occupied by the applicant for 
license to the nearest property line of the existing licensee.  This restriction does not apply to an 
applicant that holds a state tax license to sell tobacco products in the same location for at least 
one year before the date this Ordinance was enacted into law. 
 

Section 8.  Proximity of tobacco retail establishments to youth-oriented 
facilities. 

No license shall be granted to any person or entity for a tobacco retail establishment location 
that is with 1,500 feet of a youth-oriented facility, as measured by the shortest line from the 
property line of the space to be occupied by the proposed tobacco retail licensee to the nearest 
property line of a youth-oriented facility.   This restriction does not apply to an existing tobacco 
retailer holding a current sate tax license for the sale of tobacco products in that same location 
for at least one year before the date this Ordinance was enacted into law. 
 

Section 9.  Prohibited Sale. 
(a) Delivery Sales.  No tobacco retail establishment or person shall sell or offer to sell any 

tobacco product by means of a delivery sales.  All sales of tobacco products must be 
conducted in person, in a licensed retail establishment, in over-the-counter sales 
transactions. 

(b) Legal age.  No tobacco retail establishment or person call sell any tobacco product to any 
person under the age of 21. 

 1.  Age verification.  Licensees must verify by means of government- issued 
photographic identification containing the bearer’s date of birth that the purchaser is at least 21 
years of age.  Verification is not required for a person over the age of 45.  That the person 
appeared to be at least 45 years of age or older does not constitute a defense to a violation of 
this subsection.   
 2.  Signage.  Notice of the legal sales age, age verification requirement and possible 
penalties for underage sales must be posted within 6 feet of each cash register or place where 
payment may be made in a place conspicuous to both employees and customers and where the 
sign(s) are unobstructed in their entirety.  The sign shall stat, “The sale or provision of tobacco 
products, including electronic cigarettes, to an individual under 21 years of age is prohibited by 
law.”  The sign required shall be 5.5 infused by 8.5 infused and the statement required shall be 
printed in 36-point boldfaced type.  The required signage will be provided to the licensee by 
Ridgway Town. 



 Page 8 of 9 

 

(c)  No tobacco retail establishment or person shall sell or offer to sell any tobacco product in 
any manner or form prohibited by federal, state, or other local law, ordinance provision, or other 
regulation. 
(d)  Any person or tobacco retail establishment found to be selling a tobacco product without a 
tobacco retail license required under this Ordinance shall be issued a No Sales Order for 
Tobacco Products and ineligible to receive a tobacco retail license pursuant to Section 4 of this 
Ordinance. 
 

Section 10 Compliance Checks and Inspections. 

(a). All licensed premises must be open to inspection by Ridgway Town or its authorized 
designees during regular business hours.  The tobacco retail establishment shall be subject to 
two (2) unannounced compliance checks per year by Ridgway Town or other authorized 
designees. 
(b) Compliance checks may include the participation of a person at least 15 years of age, but 
under the age of 21,( herein after under-aged operative) to enter the tobacco retail 
establishment to attempt to purchase tobacco products.   
(c) Unannounced follow-up compliance checks on all non-compliant retail establishments are 
required within 3 months of any violation of this ordinance.  The results of all compliance checks 
shall be published annually and made available to the public as determined by Ridgway Town. 
 

Section 11.  Exceptions and Defenses.  It is an affirmative defense to a violation of the 

Ordinance for a person to have reasonably relied on proof of age as described by state law. 
 

Section 12.  Appeals.   
If Ridgway Town or its authorized designee denies the issuance of a license, or suspends or 
revokes a license, or issues a citation for violation this Chapter, Ridgway Town or its authorized 
designee shall send the applicant or licensee written notice of the action and notice of the right 
to an appeal.  Such notice shall be sent by Certified Mail with return Receipts requested. 
 
Union receipt of written notice of any citation or penalties accrued under this Chapter, or the 
denial, suspension or revocation of the license, the licensee shall have the right to appeal to 
Ridgway Town.  An appeal must be appropriately filed with thirty (30) after receipt of the notice 
of the determination of a violation or change of license status due to the suspension or 
revocation.  The appellant shall bear the burden of proof. 
 

Section *.  Recitals Incorporated.  The above and foregoing recitals are incorporated 

herein by reference and adopted as findings and determination of the Ridgway Town Council. 
 

Section **.  Codification of Amendments.  The Town Clerk, as the codifier of the 

Town’s Municipal Code, is hereby authorized to make such numerical and formatting changes 
as may be necessary to incorporate the provisions of this Ordinance with the Ridgway Municipal 
Code.  The Town Clerk is authorized to correct, or approve the correction by the codifier, of any 
typographical error in the enacted regulations, provided that such correction shall not 
substantively change any provision of the regulation adopted in this Ordinance.  Such 
corrections may include spelling, reference, citation, enumeration, and grammatical errors.   
 

Section *** Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance, or the application of such 

provision to any person or circumstance, is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall 
not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without 
the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared 



 Page 9 of 9 

 

to severable.  The Ridgway Town Council hereby declares that it would have passed this 
Ordinance and each provision thereof, even though any one of the provisions might be declared 
unconstitutional or invalid.  As used in this Section, the term ‘provision’ means and includes any 
part, division, subdivision, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase; the term ‘Page 2 or 
3 ‘application’ means and includes an application of an Ordinance or any part thereof, whether 
considered or construed alone or together with another ordinance or ordinances, or part thereof, 
of Ridgway Town. 
 

Section ****. Effective date.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (3) days after the date 

of final passage in accordance with Article 3-7 of the Ridgway Charter. 
 

Section ***** Safety Clause and Authority.  The Ridgway Town Council hereby finds, 

determines and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of 
the Town of Ridgway , that it is promulgated for the health, safety and welfare of the public, and 
that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection 
of public convenience and welfare.  The Ridgway Town Council further determines that the 
Ordinance bears rational relation to the proper legislative object sought to be obtained. 
 

Section ****** Publication.  The Town Clerk is ordered to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with Article 3-7 of the Ridgway Charter. 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 



 

 

 
To:   Town of Ridgway Town Council 
Cc:   Preston Neill, Ridgway Town Manager 
From:  TJ Dlubac, AICP, Community Planning Strategies, Contracted Town Planner 
Date:  February 3, 2023 
Subject:   Plat Amendment for 702, 704, and 706 N. Laura Street for the February 8th Town 

Council meeting. 

APPLICATION INFORMATION 
Request: Approval of a plat amendment for the Amended Plat of Lot 15, Parkside 

Subdivision. (Sec. 7-4-5(C) of the RMC) 
Legal: Lot 15, Parkside Subdivision 
Address: 702, 704, and 706 N. Laura Street, Ridgway CO 81432 
General Location: North of N. Railroad Avenue and east of and adjacent to N. Laura Street 
Parcel #: 430508414015 
Zone District: R Low Density Residential District 
Current Use: Three single-family attached townhomes (triplex) 

Applicant: Amanda Gerhardt, Executive Director of Habitat for Humanity of the San 
Juans 

Owner: Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans 

PROJECT REVIEW 
BACKGROUND 
The parcel was originally platted as Parkside 
Subdivision (Rec. #197315). This plat created 23 
residential lots and one open space tract. Six of the lots 
created were noted as allowing two or three single-
family equivalents. A notation on Lot 15 states “3 Single 
Family Equivalents”. This note is meant to allow up to 
three single family dwelling units on the parcel. The 
zoning district, R Low Density Residential, does not 
allow more than two dwelling units as a use by right 
and three units is a Conditional Use Permit. Therefore, 
the intent of this statement was to allow three units on 
this one parcel. 

Lot 15 is bordered on two sides by streets; Laura Street to the west and North Railroad Street to the 
south. Furthermore, there is a drainage and utility easement (Rec. #197315) overlaying the southern 
50’ of this lot, and a utility and drainage easement (Rec. #197315) along the eastern ten feet of the 
lot. 

Lot 15 has a total lot area of 21,529 square feet (0.494 ac.). The minimum lot size for the R District is 
6,000 square feet for single family and duplex uses and 10,000 square feet for all other uses. 

Figure 1. Zoning and property location 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat For Humanity Plat Amendment & Variances 
February 3, 2023 
Page 2 of 9 

 

 

The applicant received a building permit in 2020 (BP2020-038) for three single-family dwelling units, a 
triplex, on Lot 15. The project has been under construction since the permit was issued and is nearing 
completion. The owner would like to create three separate parcels to allow each Townhouse unit to be 
sold separately. Therefore, a plat amendment is needed to create three separate parcels. Additionally, 
since the R Zone District has minimum side setbacks, and no provisions to allow for a townhome lot, 
variances for reduced minimum side setbacks would be needed to allow for zero-foot setbacks along 
the interior property lines dividing the dwelling units. 

Additionally, Note 6 of Parkside Subdivision states Lot 15 as having affordable housing provisions and 
requiring three single-family dwelling units. Habitat for Humanity, to the Town’s knowledge at this time, 
is in compliance with these provisions.  

Furthermore, Plat Note 7 of Parkside Subdivision, as amended by Amendment 1 to the Parkside 
Subdivision, Reception #221300, clarified that ADUs are not allowed on Lot 15 and that three units are 
required. The note further explains that no occupancy permit shall be issued unless all three units are 
under construction. Again, the provisions of the amended note 7 are complied with by the application 
and the owner. 

Side Setback Variances: On January 10, 2023, the Planning Commission granted variances for the three 
proposed lots to allow reduced setbacks for the attached units. 

Variance #1 -Lot 15A: Planning Commission approved an 8-foot variance to allow a zero-
foot side setback on the south property line for Lot 15A, Amended Plat of Lot 15 Parkside 
Subdivision in the R Low Density Residential District finding that the criteria set forth in 
Section 7-3-21 of the RMC have been met and with the following conditions: 

1) Address all comments in the Planning Review Comment Letter dated January 6, 
2023, to the satisfaction of Town Staff prior to the Amended Plat being recorded with 
the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder. 

2) The Ridgway Town Council approves the Amended Plat of Lot 15, Parkside 
Subdivision. 

Variance #2 -Lot 15B: Planning Commission approved an 8-foot variance to allow a zero-
foot side setback on the north and south property lines for Lot 15B, Amended Plat of Lot 15 
Parkside Subdivision in the R Low Density Residential District finding that the criteria set forth 
in Section 7-3-21 of the RMC have been met and with the following conditions: 

1) Address all comments in the Planning Review Comment Letter dated January 6, 
2023, to the satisfaction of Town Staff prior to the Amended Plat being recorded with 
the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder. 

2) The Ridgway Town Council approves the Amended Plat of Lot 15, Parkside 
Subdivision. 

Variance #3 -Lot 15C: Planning Commission approved an 8-foot variance to allow a zero-
foot side setback on the north property lines for Lot 15C, Amended Plat of Lot 15 Parkside 
Subdivision in the R Low Density Residential District finding that the criteria set forth in 
Section 7-3-21 of the RMC have been met and with the following conditions: 

1) Address all comments in the Planning Review Comment Letter dated January 6, 
2023, to the satisfaction of Town Staff prior to the Amended Plat being recorded with 
the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder. 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat For Humanity Plat Amendment & Variances 
February 3, 2023 
Page 3 of 9 

 

 

2) The Ridgway Town Council approves the Amended Plat of Lot 15, Parkside 
Subdivision. 

REQUESTS 
The applicant wishes to further 
subdivide Lot 15, Parkside 
Subdivision, into three separate lots 
so each of the three units permitted 
on the Lot 15 pursuant to Note 7 may 
be sold separately. The three 
townhome units have already been 
permitted and constructed, and this 
request is to create a townhome plat 
that allows each unit, and the 
associated real property of the lot, to 
be sold individually. 

 
 
 
 
 

NOTICES AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The applicant has submitted a hearing application, associated fees, final plat materials, and other 
required support materials for this public hearing to the Town. The property and hearing have been 
noticed and posted by the Town in accordance with RMC §7-3-23(D). 

Property owners directly to the west of this property have reached out to Town staff to inquiry into the 
applications. During a conversation with a neighbor, Karen Day, it was mentioned that the property 
owners were installing a privacy fence across the drainage easement to the east of Lot 15 (west of Ms. 
Day’s home). The concern of impeding water flows in the drainage easement was discussed. NOTE: To 
address this concern, staff has made a comment in the review letter that no fence can be constructed to impede 
the flow of the drainage easement. Furthermore, staff is requesting, in the review letter, that a note be placed on 
the plat stating that the follow of any drainage easement shall not be impeded by any construction, installation, 
or improvement. 

CODE REQUIREMENTS 
RMC §7-4-10 REPLATS AND AMENDED PLATS  
(B) Amended plats of subdivision plats previously approved by the Town, or parts of such plats, 

which do not make or require a material change in the extent, location, or type of public 
improvements and easements provided, and are consistent with the Design Standards of these 
Regulations may be submitted, approved and recorded in accordance with the provisions of this 
Subsection in lieu of other procedures provided for subdivision by these regulations, if all required 
improvements are in and available to serve each lot. 

RMC §7-4-5(C) FINAL PLAT: 
RMC §7-4-5(C)(8)(b): The Town Council shall determine the following are met in order to recommend 
approval, with or without conditions, of the replat to the Town Council: 

Figure 2. Proposed property lines 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat For Humanity Plat Amendment & Variances 
February 3, 2023 
Page 4 of 9 

 

 

(i)  The Town has received a reproducible mylar properly executed by all parties except Town 
officials, the original subdivision improvements agreement properly executed by the Subdivider 
accompanied by required security, and copies of properly executed corporate documents and 
covenants;   

(ii)  Compliance with all Planning Commission conditions of approval except those subject to a good 
faith dispute;  

(iii)  Payment of all costs due to date pursuant to 7-4-12(B), recording fees, development excise 
taxes, tap fees and other amounts due the Town. 

ANALYSIS 
2019 MASTER PLAN & FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
This parcel is identified as Single-Family Neighborhood on the Future Land Use Map of the 2019 Master 
Plan. This anticipates the following land uses and development patterns: 

Maximum Density 
/ Height 

2 to 8 du/ac; 2.5 stories 

Primary Uses: Single-family homes and duplexes. 

Supporting Uses Parks and recreational facilities, community gardens, and civic and 
government facilities. Accessory dwellings where permitted. 

Characteristics 

 Single-Family Neighborhoods are made up primarily of single-family 
homes, with a small number of duplexes and smaller multi-family 
building mixed in, oftentimes near transitions between different land 
uses. Accessory dwelling units are encouraged where permitted. 

 The neighborhoods should incorporate open space into the overall 
design to provide recreational opportunities to residents and/or 
preserve wildlife habitat or environmentally sensitive lands. 

 While streets may not follow a grid pattern, connections to existing 
adjacent developments or areas should be provided for pedestrians 
and bicyclists to promote walkability.  

 
This property and abutting properties on the north, east, and 
west are designated as Single-Family Neighborhood on the 
Future Land Use Plan. Property to the south is designated 
Employment. 
The requests are in general conformance with the 
recommendations, goals, and policies of the 2019 Master 
Plan. Below are some highlights: 

 Policy COM-1.1: Workforce Housing:  Partner with 
surrounding jurisdictions to provide housing for those 
employees working in Ouray County. 

 Policy COM-1.2: Private Sector Responsibilities: 
Acknowledge the role of the private sector (and non-
privates) as a necessary partner in addressing the 
community’s affordable and workforce housing needs. 

Figure 3. Future Land Use Plan 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat For Humanity Plat Amendment & Variances 
February 3, 2023 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 

 Policy COM-1.3: Public-Private Partnerships: Explore opportunities to partner with private and 
non-profit developers on the construction of affordable and workforce housing. 

 Goal COM-2: Encourage a diversity of housing options that meet the needs of residents. 
 Policy Com-2.1: Diversity of Housing Types:  Encourage the development of a variety of 

housing sizes, types, tenure types, densities, and prices. 
 Policy COM-2.2: Housing Options: Support the development of a range of housing options in 

Ridgway, including but not limited to townhomes. 
 Policy COM-2.3: Resident-Occupied Housing: Support strategies that maintain resident-

occupied housing in Ridgway. 
 GOAL CHR-1: Support vibrant, diverse, safe, and well-connected neighborhoods. 
 Policy CHR-1.1: Neighborhood Character: Encourage the development of neighborhoods that 

enhance and reflect the character of Ridgway through quality design. 
 Policy CHR-1.2: Neighborhood Walkability and Bikeability: Enhance walkability and bikeability 

within existing neighborhoods and between other areas of town. 
 GOAL GRO-1: Manage growth and development in order to maintain Ridgway’s small town 

character, support a diverse community, and create employment opportunities. 
 Policy GRO-1.1: Directed Growth: Direct growth to occur in a concentric fashion from the core 

outward, in order to promote efficient and sustainable Town services, strengthen the Historic 
Town Core and existing neighborhoods, and preserve the rural character of the surrounding 
landscape.  

 Policy GRO-1.4: Underutilized Areas: Encourage infill development on vacant parcels and the 
redevelopment or adaptive reuse of or underutilized parcels or structures in the Historic Town 
Core of other areas where infrastructure and services are already in place.  

 Policy GRO-1.5: Design of New Development: Ensure new development and 
infill/redevelopment is compatible with the surrounding area or neighborhood. 

 Policy GRO-1.7: Transitions:  Ensure smooth transitions and/or compatibility between distinct 
land uses. 

 Goal GRO-2: Ensure public infrastructure, utilities, facilities, and services are sufficient to meet 
the needs of resident’s and businesses as the town grows. 

 Policy GRO-2.2: Adequate Public Facilities: Proposed development should demonstrate that 
town facilities and infrastructure have the capacity to serve the development. 

 Policy GRO-4.7: Connectivity of New Development:  Encourage new development to connect 
to existing biking and pedestrian facilities throughout the town. 

LAND USES 
The property currently has a triplex. The triplex / townhouse is allowed by Conditional Use Permit in 
the R Low Density Residential District and since the plat notes explicitly allow for the development of 
Lot 15 with three dwelling units, the uses are permitted on this property. 

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 
Section §7-3-15(A) sets forth the required dimensional standards which shall be met for various uses 
within each zone district. For the R Low Density Residential District, the following standards apply to 
uses other than single-family and duplex uses. Therefore, the following apply to the overall lot: 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat For Humanity Plat Amendment & Variances 
February 3, 2023 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 

 

Standard Requirement Overall 

Min. Lot Width 50’ 145.63’ 
Min. Lot Size 10,000sf 21,529sf 
Max. Lot Coverage 40% (8,611.6sf) 15.7% (3,369.58sf) 
Min. Front Setback 15’ 16.76’ 
Min. Rear Setback 8’ 22.31’ 

Min. Side Setback 8’ NW: 8’ 
SE: 55’ 

Max. Side on Corner Lot 7.5’ N/A 
Structure Height 27’ ~24.5’ 

 
The following table shows the dimensional standards for the single family dwelling lots and how the 
proposed lots compare to those standards. 

Standard Requirement Proposed 
Lot 15A Lot 15B Lot 15C 

Min. Lot Width Overall width 39.22’ 37.17’ 69.28’ 
Min. Lot Size Overall area 3,839sf 3,114sf 15,514sf 
Max. Lot Coverage 50% ~29.8% ~36.7% ~7.4% 

Min. Front Setback 15’ N. Laura: 
16.76’ 

N. Laura: 
17.92’ 

N. Laura: 
20’ 

Min. Rear Setback 8’ 22.31’ 25.37’ 28.36’ 

Min. Side Setback 8’* N: 8’ 
S: 0’* 

N: 0’* 
S: 0’* 

N: 0’* 
S: 55’ 

Max. Side on Corner Lot 7.5’ N/A N/A 55’ 
Structure Height 27’ ~24.5’ ~24.5’ ~24.5’ 

*The Town of Ridgway Planning Commission approved variances to reduce some side setbacks to 0’. 

 
ACCESS & PARKING 
All three townhome lots will have direct 
access via individual private driveways 
onto N. Laura Street. Each unit has a 
garage and room for at least one 
parking space in the driveway, not 
impeding the sidewalk. The RMC 
requires 2 spaces per single-family or 
duplex unit and 1 space per each other 
type of dwelling unit, therefore, this 
project provides the minimum required 
off-street parking. 

  

Figure 4. Access Driveways 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat For Humanity Plat Amendment & Variances 
February 3, 2023 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 

Utilities 
No proposed changes to existing utilities have been proposed or are required by this request. All 
improvements are already in place. 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
Sec. 6-6-5 of the RMC sets forth architectural standards for residential uses. This project must meet 
the following standards: 
(1) Provide relief and contrast to the building's front and side street elevations incorporating solids 

and voids to break up plain wall surfaces. 
There are multiple relief and contrasts in the building’s front elevation as shown in the image of 
the articulations and setbacks of the front façade. 

 

(2) Provide variation of building mass and height, responding to the existing development context 
and adjacent zoning districts. 
In addition to the articulations and setbacks in the front façade, the building massing is broken up 
with materials and additional features as indicated on the front elevations below. 

 
 

(3) Garage doors shall not dominate the front elevation. 
As can be seen in the elevation above, garage doors do not dominate the front elevation. 
 

(4) No two detached Single-family dwellings, Duplex dwelling structures, Townhome, Triplex 
dwelling structures, or Fourplex dwelling structures of substantially similar elevations shall be 
located adjacent to each other. 
The design elements of the front façade change for the middle unit to provide a change in elevation 
between the middle and end unit. 

  

Figure 5. Front Building Articulation 

Figure 6. Front Elevation 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat For Humanity Plat Amendment & Variances 
February 3, 2023 
Page 8 of 9 

 

 

LANDSCAPING 
The applicant included the required landscape plan with the application materials. This project was 
permitted before the current landscape regulations. However, for purposes of understanding how the 
proposed landscaping plan fits with the regulations, the following table is provided: 

 Lot 15A Lot 15B Lot 15C Overall Required Provided Required Provided Required Provided 
Lot Size 3,839sf 3,114sf 15,514sf 22,467sf 
Min. Req. Landscape Area 
(50%) 1,919.5sf Unknown* 1,557sf Unknown* 7,757sf Unknown* 11,233.5sf 

Min. % Live ground cover 
(20%) 384sf Unknown* 312sf Unknown* 1,552sf Unknown* 2,246.7sf 

Min. % non-live ground cover 
(30%) 576sf Unknown* 468sf Unknown* 2,322sf Unknown* 3,370sf 

Min. # of Trees 
(1 per 2,000sf) 1 3 1 1 4 7 6 

Min. # of Shrubs 
(1 per 3,000sf) 1 10 1 11 3 20 4 

Front Yard Landscaping 
(25%) 480sf Unknown* 390sf Unknown* 1,940sf Unknown* 2,809sf 

* These calculations are unknown because the project was originally developed and submitted under the previous landscape 
regulations and with the recent updates to the standards, these calculations were needed. 
All in all, following the review of the submitted landscaping plan, it does appear to meet the intent of 
the landscape regulations and the RMC, therefore, staff is supportive of the landscape plan as submitted 
with a few recommendations to ensure no turf is being used and that the minimum non-live ground 
cover is being provided. These are mentioned in the attached comment letter and can be discussed 
further with the applicant and Planning Commission, if needed. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
At their meeting on January 10, 2023, the Town of Ridgway Planning Commission considered the plat 
amendment. Following a staff presentation, public input, and deliberation, the Planning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval of the plat amendment to the Town Council with the following 
condition: 
1) Address all comments in the Planning Review Comment Letter dated January 6, 2023. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Following a review of the application materials against the applicable RMC requirements, staff 
recommends approval of the amended plat with one condition. The recommended motion with 
alternatives is provided in the next section of the staff report. 

RECOMMENDED MOTIONS – PLAT AMENDMENT 
“I move to approve the Amended Plat of Lot 15 Parkside Subdivision finding that the criteria set forth 
in Section 7-4-5 and 7-4-10 of the RMC have been met and with the following condition: 
1) Address all comments in the Planning Review Comment Letter dated January 6, 2023. 

Alternative Motion: 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat For Humanity Plat Amendment & Variances 
February 3, 2023 
Page 9 of 9 

 

 

“I move to deny the Amended Plat of Lot 15 Parkside Subdivision finding that the criteria set 
forth in Section 7-4-5 and 7-4-10 of the RMC have been met: 
1) The plat amendment is not substantially consistent with the preliminary plat as approved.  
2) The plat amendment does not contain all the required information listed in Section 7-4-

5(C)(3) 
3) The plat amendment does not conform to the R Low Density Residential District uses and 

standards. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Application and Support Materials 
2. Planning Review Comment Letter Dated January 6, 2023 

 













We build strength, stability, self-reliance
and shelter.

11/04/2022
Attention: Town of Ridgway, Planning Commission
Amended Letter

Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans (HFHSJ) respectfully requests an informal sketch plan review as

part of our process for the requested hearing for variance and plot amendment for our current triplex

project located at 702, 704, & 706 N. Laura St for a total of 3 proposed dwellings on the basis of

affordability. Our variance request is centered on the fact that our middle unit within the Triplex is 0 feet

from the two end units. This was done on the basis of affordability to keep costs reasonable as we work

to bring these units on to the affordable housing stock leading to the reason why we are requesting this

variance.

Attached is the required information for this request. Please do not hesitate to contact us with any

questions or additional information needed to complete this request. Thank you for your time and

consideration in this matter.

Best Regards,

Amanda Gerhardt, M.B.A.
Executive Director
Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans
970-252-9303 ext. 1

1601 N Townsend Ave, PO Box 162, Montrose, CO 81402 tel (970) 252-9303 fax (970) 252-9305 buildinglives.org



Curve Table

AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 15
PARKSIDE SUBDIVISION

SITUATED IN THE SE1
4 SECTION 8 AND SW1

4 SECTION 9
TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 8 WEST, NMPM

PART OF THE SCHOOL ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, REC. NO. 180714
COUNTY OF OURAY, STATE OF COLORADO

AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 15
PARKSIDE SUBDIVISION

SITUATED IN THE SE1
4 SECTION 8 AND SW1

4 SECTION 9
TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 8 WEST, NMPM

PART OF THE SCHOOL ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, REC. NO. 180714
COUNTY OF OURAY, STATE OF COLORADO

BUCKHORN
ENGINEERING

222 South Park Avenue
Montrose, Colorado 81401

970-249-6828

WWW.BUCKHORNENGINEERING.COM
jrease@buckhornengineering.com

 

 
 
 
 

V-1

N

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

50'

LEGEND

EDGE OF ASPHALT
PROPERTY LINE
FENCE

FOUND SURVEY MONUMENT AS NOTED
SET 1.5" ALUMINUM CAP LS 38758

FLOW LINE OF DITCH

15'

10'

DECK

50' DRAINAGE AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRAINAGE AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

LOT 15A
3839 SQ. FT. ±

0.088 AC. ±

LOT 15B
3114 SQ. FT. ±

0.071 AC. ±

LOT 15C
15514 SQ. FT. ±

0.356 AC. ±

G
R

E
E

N
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

NORTH RAILROAD AVE.

ELECTRIC BOX
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL
WATER VALVE

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

PK NAIL

EASEMENT

9" THICK WALL
4.5" EITHER SIDE OF
PROPERTY LINE

RAILING

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP DEDICATION
Known all persons by these presents that we, the undersigned being the owners of certain lands in Ouray County, Colorado, described as Lot 15, Parkside
Subdivision, Ouray County, Colorado, have caused same to be laid out and platted as shown on this plat under the name and style of Amended Plat of Lot 15
Parkside Subdivision.

Executed this day of 2022

Owner: Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans

By: Date:

Printed Name:

Title: 

STATE OF COLORADO   )
                   ) ss.
COUNTY OF ________ )

The foregoing Owner Certificate was acknowledged before me this  day of , A.D. 2022,

by as the  of Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans

Witness my hand and official seal.

My Commision Expires:
Notary Public

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Jeremiah D. Harness, a Registered Land Surveyor in the State of Colorado, hereby certify that this Amended Plat of Lot 15 Parkside Subdivision was
prepared under my direction and supervision and that said survey is accurate to the best of my knowledge, conforms to all the requirements of the Colorado
Revised Statutes, and all applicable Town of Ridgway regulations, and that all required monuments have been set as shown. There are no roads, pipelines,
irrigation ditches or other easements or rights- of-way in evidence or known to me to exist on or across said property except as shown on this plat. I certify that
I have made the survey represented by this plat and that this plat accurately represents said survey, and conforms to all applicable requirements of the City
Subdivision Regulations and applicable law. I further certify that all monuments shown hereon actually exist and their positions are as shown.

Jeremiah D. Harness
Colorado Registered Land Surveyor
Registration No. 38758
Date: ______________

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

This Amended plat of Lot 15 Parkside Subdivision was filed for record in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Ouray County at

 _______ __.m. on the _____ day of _____________________, 20_____.

Reception No. ______________________.

__________ ___________________________________,  by _________________________________________________
County Clerk & Recorder                          Deputy

GENERAL NOTES

1. No guarantee as to the accuracy of the information contained within
this plat is either stated or implied unless this print bears an original
signature and seal of the professional land surveyor hereon named.
Only prints of this survey marked with an original signature and seal by
the surveyor named hereon shall be considered true, valid copies.

2. Notice 13-80-105 c.r.s, as amended:
According to Colorado law you must commence any legal action based
upon any defect in this survey within three years after you first
discovered such defect.  In no event may any action based upon any
defect in this survey be commenced more than ten years from the date
of the certification shown hereon.

3. Dimensions in parenthesis is the measurement from the inside 
corner of the building to the property line.

CULVERTS

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
OF THE SAN JUANS

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

DRIVEW
AY

DRIVEW
AY

DRIVEW
AY

SIDEWALK

SID
EW

ALK

SITE

9" THICK WALL
4.5" EITHER SIDE OF
PROPERTY LINE



SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915 S. 10th St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
motleyarc.com

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

34
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Cover

A0.1

6/29/20

Habitat for
Humanity Triplex

Ridgway, CO

Exterior Lighting Fixture

NOTE: FIXTURE WILL HAVE A 15W LED LAMP WITH 800 LUMEN OUTPUT.

Item Insulation Value Total Value
Frame walls and rim joist R 21 R 24
Window in Frame Walls and Basement Low-E double glazed - 0.35 max U-value
Doors in Frame Walls and Basement R 2.86
Ceilings or Rafters R 49 or R38 with 12" energy heel (cellulose or fiberglass)
Air Infiltration Prescriptive Air Sealing
Walls to Garage or Unheated Buffer Spaces R 19 R 21
Heated Basement Areas R 19
Basement Window to Floor Area 10 % max
Floors over Unheated Spaces R 30
Floors over Unvented Spaces with insulated walls None
Crawl Space Walls (unvented) R 21
Cantilever Floors R 38 R40
Slabs in Heated Areas (except garages) R 10
Heat in the slab/Slab edges with heat in slab R 10/R15
Exposed slab edges R 7.5 - R 10
Slabs in Unheated Area 0

Space Heating System Performance
Gas furnaces/Gas Boiler: ≥ 90% AFUE Note: Habitat housing must comply with Energy Star standards
Dedicated Snow Melt systems: ≥ 90% AFUE
Ducts: Inside envelope, outside conditioned space R5

Outside building envelope R8
Gas Log Sets in Masonry Fireplaces Tight fitting doors with outside combustion air or automatic 

flue damper as approved by the Building Department
Gas Water Heater Performance: .60 energy factor Note: Habitat housing must comply with Energy Star standards

Water heating Piping Heat traps
Setback Thermostat (programmable) Required (except for in-floor heat)

Notes:
The R values given above are the total R values. The R values of different materials are added together including air films, air spaces and 
building materials. The R value is reduced by the effects of thermal bridging through framing. For instance, unless special methods or rigid 
insulation sheathing are used, the R value for walls must be decreased due to thermal bridging. Multiply the R value of ceilings at the depth 
of the framing members by .94 and the wall by .87.

Energy Usage Notes

Green Building Standards

· Exterior air-infiltration barrier
· Foam sill sealer beneath sill plates
· Energy heels on all roof trusses (12" min. when using fiberglass or cellulose, 7" min. when spray foam is applied. 
· Timers or motion sensors for bath and laundry exhaust fans
· Formaldehyde - free insulation.
• Insulating blankets required for hot water heaters. unless the storage tank already has a high R-value (at least R-24). Insulating 

blankets should be R-11 minimum.
• No hot air ducts allowed in exterior walls unless a minimum of R-10 insulation is installed on the exterior side of the duct. The 

insulation must be installed in an air tight manner 
• Carbon monoxide (hard-wired) detectors required near the door betweend the residence and the garage (if there is an attached 

garage) and near the mechanical room. Must be installed per manufacturer’s installation instructions 
• Attached garages must be isolated from the dwelling with extensive air-sealing practices
• Insulated headers, min R-10, wherever possible. Steel headers must be provided with insulation on both the exterior & interior 

sides of the steel.
• All hot water re-circulation systems must be provided with a timer or an aquastat and manual on/off switch. Piping must be 

insulated (1/2” thick wall foam insulation minimum or equivalent)
· Hot water piping in unconditioned spaces requires R-6 insulation (boilers and domestic water)
• All asphalt shingle roofing shall have a minimum 30 year advertised lifespan and be installed according to that criteria.  All low 

slope roofs (less than 3 inches vertical and 12 inches horizontal) including thermoset, thermoplastic, modified asphalt and 
asphalt built-up roofing applications, shall be a minimum 20 year advertised installation standard and completely installed under 
that criteria.  All metal-sheet roofing shall have a minimum 24 gaugr for bare sheet products or metal of 26 gauge for surface 
protected metal and 26 gauge for shingle products.  Other roofing materials approved by the International Code Council with a
minimum 30 year Manufacturer’s Replacement Warranty installed according to the approved recommendation may be accepted 
in lieu of these requirements. (Ord 5-2012) 

· Return air ducts are required (panned framing cavities are prohibited)
• Class C or F fly ash concrete must be used in all cement mixes, excluding garages an exterior uses
• Range hoods are required and must be ducted to exterior, unless allowed an exemption by the building department under 

certain design conditions
· Paper covered gypsum board must be raised 1/2 inch above concrete slabs.
· 3 stud exterior corners must be capable of being insulated.
· Ladder-backed framing or alternate must be at all partition wall connections.
• Exterior walls of fireplaces shall comply with minimum wall R-value, R-21 
• All bath or shower rooms shall have an exhaust fan ducted to outside Skylight shafts and knee walls must be air sealed and 

insulated to the same level as the exterior walls.  Insulation on attic knee walls of skylight shafts shall be encapsulated on all 6 
sides of the enclosure

· Insulate under and around bathtubs must be to prescriptive code requirements.
· Openings to unconditioned space must be fully sealed.
• Crawlspace wall insulation must be permanently attached to the walls. Exposed earth in crawlspaces must be covered with 

continuous vapor retarder with overlapping joints taped or sealed with mastic.
• Windows & Doors: Caulking, gasketing, adhesive flashing tape, foam sealant, or weather-stripping must be installed 

forming a complete air barrier.
· Band/rim joists must be insulated and air sealed.
• Recessed light fixtures must be "Air-Tight" I.C. rated in all building envelope ceilings. 4"minimum depth of insulation must be 

maintained between the light fixture and exterior sheathing. Recessed light fixtures are strongly recommended to be "Air-Tight" 
I.C. rated for interior ceilings to improve air quality and to reduce airflow through the building envelope.

• Recessed step lights are not permitted in exterior building walls, except where fully encased in stone or concrete, or with 
sufficient remaining wall insulation to maintain the required wall R-value 

• A functioning passive or active radon mitigation system shall be installed in all new structures 
• Zero/Low VOC finishes (paint, flooring, cabinetry, etc.) are strongly encouraged.  VOC Homeowner awareness sheet must be 

signed by the Homeowner and included in sale of home documents 
• Ground Snowmelt System Requirements:

a.  Snow-melt areas must not exceed 1000 sq. ft.  Increase is allowed for demonstrated genuine safety issues or if the                                                  
structure achieves a 50 or less HERS rating, 30% more free snow-melt area is allowed. Requests for greater than 1000 sq. ft. of 
snow melt may be considered at the discretion of the Building Official if energy used for the system comes from on-site 
renewable energy sources 
b. Electric snowmelt is not permitted 
c. Snowmelt systems must include both moisture and temperature sensors to control snowmelt operation  
d. Idling snowmelt systems are not permitted  
e.  Under the slab insulation of at least R-10 is required 

• Space heating and cooling system equipment shall be sized according to heating and cooling loads calculated using the latest 
versions of ACCA Manuals J and S, ASHRAE 2001 Handbook of Fundamentals, or an equivalent computation procedure.  
Applicable also to additions and renovations where new HVAC equipment is installed 

• Duct system is sized, designed, and installed according to ACCA manual D or equivalent 
• Ducts are sealed with UL 181 tape, low-toxic mastic (FDA, USDA, & EPA-approved), gaskets, or an approved system as 

required by the IRC (Section M1601.3.1) or IMC (Section 603.9) to reduce leakage 
• Ducts external to conditioned airspace (i.e. through crawlspace or attics) must have insulation R-8 or greater
• All furnace ducts must be air tight and sealed with commercial grade mastic and fiberglass mesh.  Ducts are to be sealed 

substantially airtight with tapes (not duct tape) mastics or gasketing.  Fiberglass ducts that expose fibers to the air stream are not 
permitted 

• Multi-boiler systems must be provided with a staging device and outdoor reset 
• Programmable digital thermostats required
• Windows must demonstrate 0.3 cfm per sq. ft. maximum allowable air leakage 
• Note: Tight home construction requires a source of ventilation air supply; ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 62.2 – 2007 (“Ventilation 

and Acceptable Indoor Air Quality in Low-Rise Residential Buildings”) is the national ventilation standard.  It is highly 
recommended that an Energy Recovery Ventilator (ERV) or Heat Recovery Ventilator (HRV) be installed to in all residences

General Notes

1. DO NOT SCALE THESE DRAWINGS.  Verify all dimensions and conditions.  Any variation shall be brought to the 
attention of the architect and designer.

2. Dimensions and conditions at the job site shall be verified by all contractors.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to 
examine the existing conditions prior to submitting bids to the owner since proposals must take into consideration all such 
conditions which may affect the work.  Discrepancies in the drawings or between the drawings and actual field conditions 
shall be reported to the architect.  Corrected drawings or instructions shall be issued by the architect prior to the 
commencement of the work.

3. This project shall comply with applicable local building codes.  In the absence of any governing building code, this project 
will comply with IBC 2003.  It is the responsibility of anyone supplying labor, materials, or both to bring to the attention of 
the architect any discrepancies or conflicts between requirements of these codes and the drawings.

4. All dimensions are to face of foundation or wood frame studs or centerline of column or rough opening unless otherwise 
noted.  Rough openings not dimensioned can be assumed to be centered in the wall or set at minimum jamb width (4 1/2" 
minimum, 6" preferred).  Refer to window/door schedule for door and window rough opening sizes.

5. General Contractor to refer to subdivision plans for specific utility easements and other pertinent information.
6. General Contractor to coordinate and field verify utility connections, their routing, depth, meter locations and other 

associated items.
7. General Contractor to coordinate top of foundation wall elevations with information indicated in these plans and with final 

grading.
8. Unless otherwise noted on the site/grading plan, provide positive drainage away from the foundation.  All site grading 

should blend naturally with existing grades using a maximum slope of 2:1.  The fill slope at the lower level of the building 
will need to have a grade not exceeding 2:1 slope.

9. The contractors shall provide the designer, architect and owner with a list of heating, cooling, water heater and lighting 
systems or solar devices installed in the building and instructions on how to use and maintain them efficiently.  All 
warranties of all materials and equipment are to be delivered to the owner at completion of construction.

10. The details shown are intended to further illustrate the visual design concept and minimum weather protection for this 
project.  The general contractor shall incorporate the requirements of the local building codes, structural considerations, 
trade association manuals, publications and recommendations, and the manufacturer's written instructions for complete 
construction details.  All possible field conditions which may be encountered are not necessarily described.  Field 
conditions encountered which require clarification shall be brought to the architect's and designer's attention.

11. Mechanical ventilation for toilet compartments, bathrooms, and laundry rooms shall be capable of providing 5 air changes 
per hour or per local building code.

12. Exhaust vent for clothes dryer to be vented to the outside.  The duct shall be per manufacturer's instructions.
13. Vent all exhaust fans to exterior.  Provide rain caps and flashing as required.
14. Center toilets in the space provided or a minimum of 15" (18" preferred) from vertical surfaces at sides.
15. Door between R-3 and U-1 occupancies to be 1 3/8" solid core, self closing and tight fitting.
16. All surfaces in garage adjacent to habitable space to be insulated and finished with 5/8" type 'X' gypsum board from 

foundation to underside of roof sheathing.  All beams, columns, and structural members to be wrapped with 5/8" type 'X' 
gypsum board.

17. All exterior doors leading to unheated areas to be weather-stripped and have thresholds.
18. Flash all exterior openings, roof/wall intersections, valleys, and material transitions with metal flashing material.  All 

materials shall have a matte, non-reflective finish.
19. Egress windows to have a maximum sill height of 44", minimum vertical opening of 24", minimum horizontal opening of 

20" and a minimum of 5-7 square feet of open area.
20. Tempered glazing is required at locations that meet all of the following criteria:

• Witihin a 24" arc of a door
• Within 18" of a floor or tub deck
• All shower and bathtub enclosures
• Windows with an individual pane greater than 9 square feet

21. All wood in direct contact with concrete to be pressure treated or redwood or cedar, including posts and stairs.
22. Provide water resistant gypsum board at walls in utility rooms and bathrooms that do not receive ceramic tile finish.  All 

surfaces finished with ceramic tile to be backed with cement board.
23. Truss manufacturer to provide truss layout and profiles to the structural engineer and architect for review and coordination.  

Such work shall be based on both the architectural and structural drawings.  Dimensions shown for trusses on section 
sheets are to be used as general guides and shall be verified by the truss manufacturer.

24. Cabinet design and their related drawings are to be provided by others,  Cabinets shown are provided to illustrate the intent
of the overall design.

25. All plumbing fixtures must be low flow, per Town regulations.  A copy of the manufacturer's specification sheet for each 
fixture type may be required by the building department for verification.

Area Calculations 
Main Level (3) x 626 s.f. = 1878 s.f.
Second Level (3) x 958 s.f. = 2874 s.f.
Garage Area (3) x 401 s.f. = 1203 s.f.
Total (3) x 1985 s.f. = 5955 s.f.

REVISIONS

Code Notes

Project: Habitat For Humanity Triplex
Project Location: N. Laura St., Ridgway, CO 81432
Owner: Habitat For Humanity of the San Juans
Owner Addresss: 1601 N. Townsend Ave, Montrose, CO 81401
Project Description / Scope: Project will consist of  (3) 1985 s.f. single family homes. 

Applicable Codes:
International Building Code (IBC)  2006 Ed.      
International Mechanical Code (IMC) 2006 Ed.
International Plumbing Code (IMP) 2006 Ed. 
International Energy Conservation Code (IECC) 2006 Ed. 
International Fire Code (IFC) 2006 Ed.
National Electric Code (NEC) Current Edition
Town of Ridgway Prescriptive Energy Code and Green Building Standardd

Jurisdictional Building Department:

NAME: Town of Ridgway 
ADDRESS: N. Laura St, Ridgway, CO
BUILDING OFFICIAL: Mike Gill
PHONE #:970-626-5308 x216

Fire Suppression
Sprinklered Buildings

Building Construction Type
Type VB

Occupancy Classification
Type R3

Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria

Climate Zone: 6
Ground Snow Load: 65 Lbs/Sq. Ft. 
Wind Speed: 90 mph, 3 second gusts 
Seismic Design Category: C 
Weathering: Severe 
Frost Line Depth: 40 inches 
Termite: Slight 
Decay: Slight 
Winter Design Temperature: -16 degrees F 
Ice Shield: Yes 
Flood Hazards: Ridgway Municipal Code Subsection 6-2-6 
Air Freezing Index: 3000 (BF/days) 
Mean Annual Temperature: 43 degrees F 



Living

101

Toilet

103

Kitchen/Dining

102

5' - 4"7' - 0"

9
' -

 1
1

"
7

' -
 9

"
1

3
' -

 4
"

10' - 3"5' - 0"

3
1

' -
 0

"
4

' -
 1

0
"

6' - 7"3' - 2"9' - 9 1/2"16' - 9"

103

101B

102

Garage

100

3' - 9"

1

A4.1

7
' -

 0
"

5
' -

 6
"

2
' -

 8
"

3

A4.1

A6.1
4

A6.1
6

101C

100A

16' - 9" 20' - 0"

3
' -

 6
 1

/
2

"
2

4
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 5
 1

/
2

"

FURNACE

9
' -

 1
1

"
6

' -
 9

"
1

4
' -

 4
"

8' - 0"

5' - 2" 7' - 4"3
' -

 9
"

1
' -

 4
 1

/
4

"
1

' -
 7

"

2' - 8"

101A

100B

1' - 4" 5' - 2" 5' - 2" 8' - 4"

COMPOSITE 
WOOD DECK

COMPOSITE 
WOOD DECK

TIMBER POSTS [RE: STRUCTURAL FOR 
SIZE AND CONNECTION DETAIL]

TIMBER POSTS [RE: STRUCTURAL FOR 
SIZE AND CONNECTION DETAIL]

Bedroom 1

201

Bedroom 2

203

Laundry

204

Bathroom

202

7
' -

 9
"

3
' -

 5
"

6
' -

 6
"

17' - 2 1/2" 9' - 9 1/2" 3' - 2" 6' - 7"

203A

204

202

20
3B

Bonus Room

205

1

A4.1

3
' -

 6
"

9
' -

 1
0

"

3

A4.1

4
' -

 0
"

1
6

' -
 0

"
4

' -
 0

"

3
' -

 5
 1

/
2

"
2

4
' -

 0
"

8' - 9"

6' - 2 1/2" 5' - 1" 5' - 5 1/2"

A6.1
1

201

205A

205B

205C

5' - 2" 12' - 2" 2' - 8"

1
5

' -
 8

"
1

5
' -

 4
"

10' - 0" 10' - 0"

8
' -

 9
"

3
' -

 0
"

2
' -

 7
"

5
' -

 9
"

6
' -

 9
"

4
' -

 2
"

1' - 5 1/4"
5' - 7 1/4"

4
' -

 1
 1

/
8

" 11' - 0"

2
' -

 1
1

"

1
' -

 1
1

"

205D

205E

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

34
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Typ. Unit
Floor Plans

A2.1

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O

1/4" = 1'-0"1 First Floor
1/4" = 1'-0"2 Second Floor

Typical Unit Door Schedule

Door
Number Width Height

Door Finish

CommentsPanel Frame

100A 10' - 0" 8' - 0" WD WD Fiberglass Overhead Garage Door

100B 3' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD

101A 3' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD Clad Exterior Door w/ glass half-lite

101B 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

101C 3' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD

102 3' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD Clad Exterior Door w/ glass half-lite

103 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD Clad Exterior Door w/ glass half-lite

111 6' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD Bi-pass closet door

201 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

202 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

203A 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

203B 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD Bi-fold closet door

204 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205A 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205B 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205C 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205D 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205E 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

Typical Unit Room Finish Schedule

Number Name

Floors Walls Ceilings

CommentsFloor Finish Base Finish North Wall East Wall South Wall Wall Finish
Ceiling
Material Ceiling Finish

100 Garage PT PT PT PT GWB PT

101 Living CPT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

102 Kitchen/Dining EWD WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

103 Toilet CT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

104 Storage SV WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

201 Bedroom 1 CPT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

202 Bathroom CT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

203 Bedroom 2 CPT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

204 Laundry SV WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

205 Bonus Room CPT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

FINISHES LEGEND: CPT - Carpet, CT - Ceramic Tile, EWD - Engineered Wood Floor, GWB - Gypsum Board, PT - Paint, SV- Sheet Vinyl, WD - Painted Wood Base Trim

DOOR NOTES: 
1. All doors to have level handles
2. All glazing in doors to be double glazed, tempered, and Low-E



2

A4.1

1

A4.1

3

A4.1

Kitchen/Dining

102

Toilet

103

Living

101

Garage

100

9"1' - 7"9"

EQ 8' - 1" EQ

E
Q

E
Q

B

D

D

B

B

B

B

B

C

C C

C

B

C

C

E
F

19' - 1"

7
' -

 0
"

B

2

A4.1

1

A4.1

3

A4.1

E
Q

E
Q

8' - 9 1/8" 7' - 11 7/8"

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

6' - 3" 6' - 2 7/8"

E
Q

E
Q

4' - 3 3/4" 1' - 3"1' - 10 1/8"

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

EQ EQ EQ

EQ EQ

E
Q

E
Q

Bedroom 1

201

Bathroom

202

Laundry

204

Bedroom 2

203

Bonus Room

205

B

E

F

BB

B

B

BB

A

A

A

A G

A

E E

E E

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

35
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Lighting Plan

A2.2

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O

1/4" = 1'-0"1 First Floor
1/4" = 1'-0"2 Second Floor

Keynote
Number Description

A Recessed Can Light

B Ceiling Mounted Light FIxture

C Exterior Wall Light

D Linear 1'x4' LED Ceiling Mounted Light

E Bathroom Wall Light

F Vent Fan

G Recessed Can Light (H2O Rated)



8" / 12"

4
" 

/ 
1
2

"

8" / 12"

ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER BITUMINOUS 
ICE & WATER SHIELD UNDERLAYMENT 
OVER STRUCTURAL ROOF DECK, OVER 
PRE-ENGINEERED ROOF TRUSSES

8
" 

/ 
1
2

"
8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

4
" 

/ 
1
2

"
4

" 
/ 

1
2

"

8
" 

/ 
1
2

"
8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

8" / 12"8" / 12"8
" 

/ 
1
2

"
8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

4
" 

/ 
1
2

"
4

" 
/ 

1
2

"

8" / 12"8" / 12"

8
" 

/ 
1
2

"
8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

4
" 

/ 
1
2

"
4

" 
/ 

1
2

"

8
" 

/ 
1
2

"
8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

4
" 

/ 
1
2

"

4
" 

/ 
1
2

"

PRO-PANEL II  OR RUSTED 
CORRUGATED METAL ROOF PANEL 
OVER BITUMINOUS ICE & WATER SHIELD 
UNDERLAYMENT OVER STRUCTURAL 
ROOF DECK, OVER PRE-ENGINEERED 
ROOF TRUSSES

1' - 4".

2
' -

 2
".

CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT

2

A2.3

1' - 0". 1' - 0"

3

A2.3

1
' -

 0
"

1' - 0"

4" / 12"

1
' -

 0
"

1' - 0"

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

E
N

E
R

G
Y

 H
E

E
L

1
' -

 2
".

1
/

2
"

1' - 4" OVERHANG

PERFORATED METAL SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT SIDING

METAL GUTTER

ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER ICE 
AND WATER SHEILD

STRUCTURAL ROOF DECKING 
(SEE STRUCTURAL)

DRIP FLASHING

VENTED 
ATTIC

METAL FASCIA

METAL SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT SIDING

2' - 2"

GABLE END ROOF TRUSS

METAL DRIP FLASHING

2X6 LADDER FRAMING ON 
16" CENTERS

ROOF TRUSS

METAL FASCIA

VENTED 
ATTIC

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

36
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Roof Plan

A2.3

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O

1/4" = 1'-0"1 Roof Plan

1 1/2" = 1'-0"2 Eave Detail
1 1/2" = 1'-0"3 Rake Detail

CONTINUOUS
RIDGE VENT

(TYP)



First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Roof PL 1
113' - 9 13/32"

2

A4.1

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

1

A4.1

FIBER CEMENT SHINGLE 
SIDING

HORIZONTAL FIBER 
CEMENT BOARD

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARD

30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL GRADE 
SHINGLES OVER BITUMINOUS ICE & 

WATER SHEILD

FIBER CEMENT BOARD 
AND BATTEN SIDING

PRO-PANEL II  OR RUSTED 
CORRUGATED METAL OVER 

BITUMINOUS ICE & WATER 
SHEILD

WOOD OR PRE 
MANUFACTURED GUARD 
RAIL

TIMBER COLUMN PAINT 
TO MATCH TRIM [RE: 
STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE]

RUSTED CORRUGATED 
METAL WAINSCOT

RUSTED CORRUGATED 
METAL

3

A2.3

3
' -

 0
"

4
"

First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Roof PL 1
113' - 9 13/32"

2

A4.1

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

1

A4.1

FIBER CEMENT 
SHINGLE SIDING

HORIZONTAL FIBER 
CEMENT BOARD

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARD

FIBER CEMENT 
BOARD AND BATTEN 

SIDING

RUSTED CORRUGATED 
METAL

18"X24" ATTIC VENT

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915 S. 10th St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
motleyarc.com

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

39
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Elevations

A3.1

6/29/20

Habitat for
Humanity Triplex

Ridgway, CO

1/4" = 1'-0"1 South

1/4" = 1'-0"2 North

REVISIONS



First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Foundation
96' - 3 1/2"

Roof PL 1
113' - 9 13/32"

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

FIBER CEMENT 
SHINGLE SIDING

HORIZONTAL FIBER 
CEMENT BOARD

FIBER CEMENT 
TRIM BOARD

WOOD OR PRE 
MANUFACTURED 
GUARD RAIL

TIMBER COLUMN PAINT 
TO MATCH TRIM

FIBER CEMENT 
BOARD TRIM

30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL 
GRADE CORRUGATED 

METAL OVER15# FELT 
OVER ROOF SHEATHING

RUSTED CORRUGATED 
METAL

METAL FASCIA

First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Foundation
96' - 3 1/2"

Roof PL 1
113' - 9 13/32"

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

3

A4.1

FIBER 
CEMENT 
SHINGLE 

SIDING

HORIZONTAL 
FIBER CEMENT 

BOARD

FIBER CEMENT 
TRIM BOARD

WOOD OR PRE 
MANUFACTURED 

GUARD RAIL

TIMBER COLUMN 
PAINT TO MATCH TRIM

FIBER CEMENT 
BOARD TRIM

30 YEAR 
ARCHITECTURAL 
GRADE CORRUGATED 
METAL OVER15# FELT 
OVER ROOF SHEATHING

RUSTED 
CORRUGATED METAL

30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL 
GRADE CORRUGATED 
METAL OVER15# FELT 
OVER ROOF SHEATHING

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

40
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Elevations

A3.2

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O

1/4" = 1'-0"1 West of Furthest Unit
1/4" = 1'-0"2 East



First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

Bonus Room

205

Garage

100

3

A4.1

8
' -

 1
 1

/
8

"

98' - 3 1/2"

1/8" / 12"

SLOPED 
GARAGE FLOOR

First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Living

101

Kitchen/Dining

102

Bedroom 2

203

Bedroom 1

201

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

VENTED CRAWL SPACE
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER WRAP UP 
FOUNDATION WALLS AND ADHERE 

3

A4.1

PROVIDE 2 SF OF CRAWL SPACE 
CROSS VENTILATION  

4
"

3
' -

 0
"

First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

2

A4.1

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

1

A4.1

8
' -

 1
 1

/
8

"

A5.1
1

Bonus Room

205

Garage

100

Bathroom

202

Toilet

103
A5.1

2

PROVIDE 2 SF OF CRAWL SPACE 
CROSS VENTILATION  

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

40
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Building
Sections

A4.1

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O

1/4" = 1'-0"1 Building Section
1/4" = 1'-0"2 Building Section

1/4" = 1'-0"3 Building Section



First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

A2.3
2

ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOFING

ROOF SHEATHING (SEE STRUCTURAL)

ROOF TRUSS. SEE SHOP DRAWINGS

FIBER CEMENT SIDING

1/2" PLYWOOD SHEATHING

INSULATED HEADER. SEE STRUCTURAL 
FOR HEADER DETAILS

FLOOR JOIST (SEE STRUCTURAL)

2X6 STUD WALL WITH R-21 BATT INSULATION

FLOOR JOIST WITH R-30 BATTS (SEE 
STRUCTURAL)

PRESSURE TREATED SILL

CONCRETE 
FOUNDATION (SEE 
STRUCTURAL)

CORRUGATED METAL

1/2" GYP WALLBOARD

STRUCTURAL PLYWOOD OR OSB 
FLOOR DECK

1/2"  GWB

First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

ASPHALT SHINGLE 
ROOFING

ROOF SHEATHING (SEE STRUCTURAL)

ROOF TRUSS. SEE SHOP DRAWINGS

1/2" GWB

PLATE

BLOCKING

SPRAY APPLIED CELLULOSE 
INSULATION MATERIAL, 
COMPLETELY FILL CAVITIES 
BETWEEN WOOD STUDS ON BOTH 
SITES OF WALL TO A NOMINAL 
DEPTH OF 3 1/2". MIN. DRY 
DENSITY OF 4.3 POUNDS BER CU. 
FT.

FLOOR JOIST WITH R-21 BATTS (SEE STRUCTURAL)

2X4 WOOD STUDS

FLOOR JOIST WITH R30 BATT 
INSULATION (SEE STRUCTURAL)

PRESSURE TREATED SILL

14" THICK CONCRETE 
FOUNDATION (SEE STRUCTURAL)

5/8" TYPE 'X'  GWB EA. SIDE 
OF BOTH WALLS

PLYWOOD

TYPICAL 1 HOUR FLOOR/CEILING ASSEMBLY: 
STRUCTURAL FLOOR SHEATHING  OVER 
FLOOR JOISTS WITH FULL CAVITY BATT 
INSULATION OVER (2) LAYERS 5/8" TYPE X 
GWB

SLOPED GARAGE SLAB

2X6 WOOD STUDS

OVERFRAMING

R-38 BATT INSULATION

3
' -

 1
0

 1
/

2
"

3
' -

 1
0

 1
/

2
"

9' - 9 1/2"

8
' -

 1
 1

/
4

"

3' - 7 3/8"

First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

7
 1

/
4

".

10 3/4".

5' - 0"
9 1/2"

3
' -

 4
"

4
' -

 6
 1

/
2

"
4

' -
 3

 1
/

4
"

1 1/2" DIA. HANDRAIL 
34" -36" ABOVE 
STAIR NOSING

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

41
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Wall Sections

A5.1

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O

1" = 1'-0"1 Wall Section
1" = 1'-0"2 Wall Section

1/2" = 1'-0"3 Stair Detail

1/2" = 1'-0"4 Stair Section

1 1/2" DIA. HANDRAIL 
34" -36" ABOVE STAIR 
NOSING



A6.1

2
' -

 7
"

5
' -

 9
" 4

' -
 1

"

1' - 8" 1' - 6 3/4"

1' - 1 5/8"
5' - 7 1/4"

7' - 0 3/8"

Bathroom

202

PAINT

MIRROR BY OWNER

PLAM VANITY TOP 
WITH INTEGRAL 

BACKSPLASH

MELAMINE 
FACE BASE 

CABINET

B36

PAINTED BASE 
TRIM

SHOWER CURTAIN AND ROD

PAINT

TILE OR PREFORMED 
BATH/SHOWER 
SURROUND

BATHTUB

PAINTED BASE TRIM

A6.1

1' - 5"

Toilet

103

B36

MIRROR BY OWNER

PLAM VANITY TOP WITH 
INTEGRAL BACKSPLASH

MELAMINE FACED 
BASE CABINET

PAINTED BASE 
TRIM

A6.1

PREFORMED PLAM COUNTER 
WITH INTEGRAL BACKSPLASH 

STAINLESS STEEL DROP-IN SINK. 
PROVIDE 3/4 HP DISPOSAL

FILLER STRIP

PAINT

2
' -

 6
"

1
' -

 6
"

3
' -

 0
"

B12 B36

DW

W12 W24 W24 

B36

C24

FILLER STRIP

CORNER CABINET

B12B33

REF

W12W33 C24

3
' -

 0
"

1
' -

 6
"

2
' -

 6
"

30"  
ELECTRIC
RANGE

2
' -

 6
"

1
' -

 6
"

3
' -

 0
"

B15 B15

W15 W15C24 C24

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

42
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Interior
Elevations

A6.1

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O

1/2" = 1'-0"1 Bathroom
1/2" = 1'-0"2 Bathroom North

1/2" = 1'-0"3 Bathroom South
1/2" = 1'-0"4 Toilet

1/2" = 1'-0"5 Toilet North

1/2" = 1'-0"6 Kitchen
1/2" = 1'-0"7 Kitchen North

1/2" = 1'-0"8 Kitchen South
1/2" = 1'-0"9 Kitchen West



39

17

38
36

15

35
33

13

32
40

18 16

37 34

14

21 1920
222630

23252729

9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

41
31

10
1211

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

6/
29

/
20

20
 9

:5
9:

44
 A

M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Window
Schedule

A7.1

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O

3/16" = 1'-0"2 North

3/16" = 1'-0"1 South

3/16" = 1'-0"3 West
3/16" = 1'-0"4 East

Window Schedule

Mark

Unit  Size

Type CommentsWidth Height

1 2' - 0" 3' - 6" Casement Mulled with adjacent see elevations

2 2' - 6" 3' - 6" Fixed Mulled with adjacent see elevations

3 2' - 0" 3' - 6" Casement Mulled with adjacent see elevations

4 2' - 0" 3' - 6" Casement Mulled with adjacent see elevations

5 2' - 6" 3' - 6" Fixed Mulled with adjacent see elevations

6 2' - 0" 3' - 6" Casement Mulled with adjacent see elevations

7 2' - 0" 3' - 6" Casement Mulled with adjacent see elevations

8 2' - 6" 3' - 6" Fixed Mulled with adjacent see elevations

9 2' - 0" 3' - 6" Casement Mulled with adjacent see elevations

10 2' - 0" 2' - 0" Casement

11 2' - 4" 3' - 0" Casement

12 2' - 4" 3' - 0" Casement

13 2' - 4" 3' - 0" Casement

14 2' - 4" 3' - 0" Casement

15 2' - 4" 3' - 0" Casement

16 2' - 4" 3' - 0" Casement

17 2' - 4" 3' - 0" Casement

18 2' - 4" 3' - 0" Casement

19 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

20 4' - 3" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

21 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

22 2' - 6 1/2" 4' - 6" Casement Egress Window

23 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

25 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

26 2' - 6 1/2" 4' - 6" Casement Egress Window

27 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

29 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

30 2' - 6 1/2" 4' - 6" Casement Egress Window

31 2' - 0" 2' - 0" Casement

32 2' - 6 1/2" 4' - 6" Casement Egress Window

33 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

34 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2"

35 2' - 6 1/2" 4' - 6" Casement Egress Window

36 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

37 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2"

38 2' - 6 1/2" 4' - 6" Casement Egress Window

39 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

40 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2"

41 2' - 6 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement

51 4' - 3" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

54 4' - 3" 3' - 5 1/2" Casement Egress Window

Note: All window 7'-0" above structural floor sheathing unless noted otherwise on A7.1



Living

101

Toilet

103

Kitchen/Dining

102

5' - 4"7' - 0"

9
' -

 1
1

"
7

' -
 9

"
1

3
' -

 4
"

10' - 3"5' - 0"

3
1

' -
 0

"
4

' -
 1

0
"

6' - 7"3' - 2"9' - 9 1/2"16' - 9"

103

101B

102

Garage

100

3' - 9"

1

A4.1

7
' -

 0
"

5
' -

 6
"

2
' -

 8
"

3

A4.1

A6.1
4

A6.1
6

101C

100A

16' - 9" 20' - 0"

3
' -

 6
 1

/
2

"
2

4
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 5
 1

/
2

"

FURNACE

9
' -

 1
1

"
6

' -
 9

"
1

4
' -

 4
"

8' - 0"

5' - 2" 7' - 4"3
' -

 9
"

1
' -

 4
 1

/
4

"
1

' -
 7

"

2' - 8"

101A

100B

1' - 4"
5' - 2" 5' - 2" 8' - 4"

COMPOSITE 
WOOD DECK

COMPOSITE 
WOOD DECK

TIMBER POSTS [RE: STRUCTURAL FOR 
SIZE AND CONNECTION DETAIL]

TIMBER POSTS [RE: STRUCTURAL FOR 
SIZE AND CONNECTION DETAIL]

Bedroom 1

201

Bedroom 2

203

Laundry

204

Bathroom

202

7
' -

 9
"

3
' -

 5
"

6
' -

 6
"

17' - 2 1/2"
9' - 9 1/2" 3' - 2" 6' - 7"

203A

204

202

20
3B

Bonus Room

205

1

A4.1

3
' -

 6
"

9
' -

 1
0

"

3

A4.1

4
' -

 0
"

1
6

' -
 0

"
4

' -
 0

"

3
' -

 5
 1

/
2

"
2

4
' -

 0
"

8' - 9"

6' - 2 1/2" 5' - 1" 5' - 5 1/2"

A6.1
1

201

205A

205B

205C

5' - 2" 12' - 2" 2' - 8"

1
5

' -
 8

"
1

5
' -

 4
"

10' - 0" 10' - 0"

8
' -

 9
"

3
' -

 0
"

2
' -

 7
"

5
' -

 9
"

6
' -

 9
"

4
' -

 2
"

1' - 5 1/4"
5' - 7 1/4"

4
' -

 1
 1

/
8

" 11' - 0"

2
' -

 1
1

"

1
' -

 1
1

"

205D

205E

2' - 6"

3
' -

 2
"

Middle 
Unit 

Garage

2'-0"X 6'-8" 
INSULATED 
DOOR

FIRE RISER 
CLOSET

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

STAMP

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915  S. Tenth St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
f: (970) 797-6811

www.motleyarc.com

© Motley Architecture & Design

8/
21

/
20

20
 1

2:
03

:0
7 

A
M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Typ. Unit
Floor Plans

A2.1

6/29/20

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
p

le
x

R
id

gw
ay

, C
O1/4" = 1'-0"

1 First Floor
1/4" = 1'-0"

2 Second Floor

Typical Unit Door Schedule

Door
Number Width Height

Door Finish

CommentsPanel Frame

100A 10' - 0" 8' - 0" WD WD Fiberglass Overhead Garage Door

100B 3' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD

101A 3' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD Clad Exterior Door w/ glass half-lite

101B 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

101C 3' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD

102 3' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD Clad Exterior Door w/ glass half-lite

103 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD Clad Exterior Door w/ glass half-lite

111 6' - 0" 6' - 8" WD WD Bi-pass closet door

201 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

202 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

203A 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

203B 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD Bi-fold closet door

204 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205A 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205B 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205C 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205D 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

205E 2' - 6" 6' - 8" WD WD

Typical Unit Room Finish Schedule

Number Name

Floors Walls Ceilings

CommentsFloor Finish Base Finish North Wall East Wall South Wall Wall Finish
Ceiling
Material Ceiling Finish

100 Garage PT PT PT PT GWB PT

101 Living CPT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

102 Kitchen/Dining EWD WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

103 Toilet CT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

104 Storage SV WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

201 Bedroom 1 CPT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

202 Bathroom CT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

203 Bedroom 2 CPT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

204 Laundry SV WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

205 Bonus Room CPT WD PT PT PT PT GWB PT

FINISHES LEGEND: CPT - Carpet, CT - Ceramic Tile, EWD - Engineered Wood Floor, GWB - Gypsum Board, PT - Paint, SV- Sheet Vinyl, WD - Painted Wood Base Trim

DOOR NOTES: 
1. All doors to have level handles
2. All glazing in doors to be double glazed, tempered, and Low-E

1/4" = 1'-0"
3 Partial Plan - Fire Riser Closet



First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Roof PL 1
113' - 9 13/32"

2

A4.1

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

1

A4.1

FIBER CEMENT SHINGLE 
SIDING

HORIZONTAL FIBER 
CEMENT BOARD

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARD

30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL GRADE 
SHINGLES OVER BITUMINOUS ICE & 

WATER SHEILD

FIBER CEMENT BOARD 
AND BATTEN SIDING

PRO-PANEL II  OR RUSTED 
CORRUGATED METAL OVER 

BITUMINOUS ICE & WATER 
SHEILD

WOOD OR PRE 
MANUFACTURED GUARD 
RAIL

TIMBER COLUMN PAINT 
TO MATCH TRIM [RE: 
STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE]

RUSTED CORRUGATED 
METAL WAINSCOT

RUSTED CORRUGATED 
METAL

3

A2.3

3
' -

 0
"

4
"

RUSTED CORRUGATED 
METAL

FIRE RISER CLOSET

METAL FASCIA

PRO-PANEL II  OR RUSTED 
CORRUGATED METAL OVER 
BITUMINOUS ICE & WATER 
SHEILD

4" / 12"

First Floor
100' - 0"

Second Floor
109' - 1 3/4"

Roof PL 1
113' - 9 13/32"

2

A4.1

Roof PL 2
117' - 2 7/8"

1

A4.1

FIBER CEMENT 
SHINGLE SIDING

HORIZONTAL FIBER 
CEMENT BOARD

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARD

FIBER CEMENT 
BOARD AND BATTEN 

SIDING

RUSTED CORRUGATED 
METAL

18"X24" ATTIC VENT

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET NAME

PROJECT NO:

PHASE:

ISSUE DATE:

ISSUE:

915 S. 10th St.
Montrose, CO 81401

p: (970) 249-1980
motleyarc.com

8/
21

/
20

20
 1

2:
06

:4
6 

A
M

H4H-3P-RI

CD-Review

C

Elevations

A3.1

6/29/20

Habitat for
Humanity Triplex

Ridgway, CO

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 South

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 North

REVISIONS



℄

℄

ALL FLOOR SUPPORTS TO HAVE SOLID

BLOCKING BETWEEN JOISTS

℄

℄

ALL FLOOR SUPPORTS TO HAVE SOLID

BLOCKING BETWEEN JOISTS

℄

℄

ALL FLOOR SUPPORTS TO HAVE SOLID

BLOCKING BETWEEN JOISTS

4" CONC. SLAB

W/ #3 REBAR @ 18" O
.C.

EA. W
AY4" CONC. SLAB

W/ #3 REBAR @ 18" O
.C.

EA. W
AY 4" CONC. SLAB

W/ #3 REBAR @ 18" O
.C.

EA. W
AY

SL
O

PE
 D

O
W

N
1/

4"
 P

ER
 F

T.

SL
O

PE
 D

O
W

N
1/

4"
 P

ER
 F

T.

SL
O

PE
 D

O
W

N
1/

4"
 P

ER
 F

T.

BLOCK OUT FOR DOOR BLOCK OUT FOR DOOR BLOCK OUT FOR DOOR

W
AL

L 
SE

C
TI

O
N

SE
E 

D
ET

AI
L 

C
FL

O
O

R
 S

U
PP

O
R

T
SE

E 
D

ET
AI

L 
B

FL
O

O
R

 S
U

PP
O

R
T

SE
E 

D
ET

AI
L 

B

W
AL

L 
SE

C
TI

O
N

SE
E 

D
ET

AI
L 

C
FL

O
O

R
 S

U
PP

O
R

T
SE

E 
D

ET
AI

L 
B

FL
O

O
R

 S
U

PP
O

R
T

SE
E 

D
ET

AI
L 

B

W
AL

L 
SE

C
TI

O
N

SE
E 

D
ET

AI
L 

C
FL

O
O

R
 S

U
PP

O
R

T
SE

E 
D

ET
AI

L 
B

FL
O

O
R

 S
U

PP
O

R
T

SE
E 

D
ET

AI
L 

B

DECK SUPPORT, SEE DETAIL D,
(15) PLACES THIS PAGE

DECK SUPPORT, SEE DETAIL D,
(15) PLACES THIS PAGE

DECK SUPPORT, SEE DETAIL D,
(15) PLACES THIS PAGE

AD
D

 (1
) A

D
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 B
AR

 #
5 

R
EB

AR
 IN

 F
O

O
TE

R
,

AD
D

 (3
) A

D
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 B
AR

S 
#5

 R
EB

AR
 IN

 S
TE

M
W

AL
L,

 
(1

) E
A.

:T
O

P,
 M

ID
D

LE
 &

 B
O

TT
O

M
. E

XT
EN

D
 O

VE
R

-E
X 

1'
 W

ID
ER

 T
H

AN
 F

O
O

TE
R

 W
ID

TH
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 D
ET

AI
LS

 A
S 

PE
R

 P
AG

E 
S-

2

IN
 H

AT
C

H
ED

 A
R

EA
:

AD
D

 (1
) A

D
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 B
AR

 #
5 

R
EB

AR
 IN

 F
O

O
TE

R
,

AD
D

 (3
) A

D
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 B
AR

S 
#5

 R
EB

AR
 IN

 S
TE

M
W

AL
L,

 
(1

) E
A.

:T
O

P,
 M

ID
D

LE
 &

 B
O

TT
O

M
. E

XT
EN

D
 O

VE
R

-E
X 

1'
 W

ID
ER

 T
H

AN
 F

O
O

TE
R

 W
ID

TH
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 D
ET

AI
LS

 A
S 

PE
R

 P
AG

E 
S-

2

IN
 H

AT
C

H
ED

 A
R

EA
:

DECK SUPPORT, SEE DETAIL D,
(15) PLACES THIS PAGE

DECK SUPPORT, SEE DETAIL D,
(15) PLACES THIS PAGE

DECK SUPPORT, SEE DETAIL D,
(15) PLACES THIS PAGE

4" SLAB W/ #3 REBAR @
18" O/C & E/W, MIN 2% SLOPE. ELASTOMERIC
GASKET BETWEEN SLAB AND STEMWALL.
CLASS 6 OVER-EX PER REF. GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT. REFER TO ARCH FOR MORE DETAIL
ON FIRE RISER CLOSET

1) OWNER/BUILDER/CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY
ACCURACY OF FOUNDATIONS PLANS WITH
ARCHITECTURAL(REF: MOTLEY ARCH. & DES.,
8/21/2020), ROOF, FLOOR, ETC. PLANS  AND
NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES
PRIOR TO FORM PLACEMENT, MAT.
PURCHASE AND CONSTRUCTION

2) CRAWLSPACES MUST BE VENTILATED PER
GOVERNING CODE

3) THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED A
MINIMUM OF 5 BUSINESS DAYS IN ADVANCE
VIA EMAIL FOR INSPECTION OF BOTH THE
FOUNDATION HOLE WHEN EXCAVATION HAS
BEEN COMPLETED & ALL REBAR PLACEMENT
PRIOR TO POURING. FURTHER INSPECTION
PER LOCAL BUILDING CODES MAY BE
REQUIRED

4) JOISTS, TRUSSES, HEADERS & BEAMS BY
OTHERS UNLESS SPECIFIED. TRUSS / FLOOR
DESIGN BY: BUILDERS 1ST SOURCE, DATED:
02/18/2020 (ROOF) & 02/18/2020 (FLOOR)

5) THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED IF
ADVERSE OR POOR SOIL CONDITIONS OR
WATER ARE ENCOUNTERED UPON
EXCAVATION. FURTHER ENGINEERING MAY
BE REQUIRED

6) PROVIDE P.T. FLOOR FRAMING IF MIN.
DISTANCE TO SOILS IS LESS THAN 12" FOR
BEAMS & 18" FOR JOISTS

7) ANCHORS REQUIRED TO RESIST UPLIFT
FORCES ARE DESIGNED BY OTHERS. NOTIFY
FOUNDATION ENGINEER OF UPLIFT FORCES

8) VALID, ORIGINAL DOCUMENT ONLY WITH
EMBOSSED SEAL

9) SPECIFICATIONS APPLY TO ALL PAGES HEREIN
10) DO NOT SCALE, USE PRINTED DIMS. ONLY
11) TOTAL PAGES = 3, SIZE: ARCH-D

STEEL

1. REBAR (REINFORCING STEEL) SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A-615, GRADE 60, EXCEPT STIRRUPS, COLUMN TIES AND #3 BARS MAY BE GRADE 40. ALL STOCK SHALL BE NEW
DEFORMED, AND SHALL BE FREE OF RUST, GREASE, MILL SCALE, DIRT OR ANY OTHER SUBSTANCE THAT MAY AFFECT IT'S BOND TO CONCRETE.

2. ALL BAR BENDS SHALL BE MADE COLD.

3. ALL LAP SPLICES SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 40 BAR DIAMETERS AND SHALL BE CONTINIOUS AROUND CORNERS.

4. STRUCTURAL STEEL SHALL COMPLY WITH ASTM A-36, ASTM A500 GR. B, ASTM A992 Fy=50 ksi

CONCRETE

1. USE TYPE II PORTLAND CEMENT.

2. CONCRETE USED FOR FOOTINGS, STEM WALLS AND SLABS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3,500 PSI 28 DAYS FROM INITIAL POURING. CONCRETE SHALL BE
AIR ENTRAINED, 5-7%. ALL CONCRETE WORK SHALL CONFORM TO AMERICAN CONCRETE INSTITUTE (ACI) SPECIFICATION ACI 301-16 AND THE BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS ACI
318-19. NO CONCRETE TO BE POURED ON FROZEN SOIL & ALL CONCRETE TO BE PROTECTED FROM FREEZING DURING & AFTER POURING.

3. ALL FOOTING SILLS SHALL PLACE THEIR FULL BEARING ON THE SLAB OR FOOTING WALL AND SHALL BE ATTACHED AS PER THE FOUNDATION PLAN DETAIL. SAID BOLTS SHALL BE
SPACED NOT MORE THAN 60 INCHES O.C. AND NOT MORE THAN 12 INCHES FROM CUT ENDS OF THE SILLS

4. ALL FOUNDATION SILLS SHALL BE MINIMALLY 6 INCHES ABOVE GRADE AND SHALL BE PRESSURE TREATED WOOD

5. ALL WOOD IN CONTACT WITH CONCRETE SHALL BE APPROVED FOR USE & PRESSURE TREATED (P.T.)

6. NON-LOAD BEARING INTERIOR WALLS MAY BE SECURED TO CONCRETE USING 3 INCH SHANK, 0.145 INCH SHANK DIAMETER WASHERED POWDER PINS PLACED 3 FEET O.C.

7. ALL ITEMS PLACED IN CONCRETE (BOLTS, ANCHORS, INSERTS, HOLDDOWNS, DOWELS, ETC.) SHALL BE SECURED FOR BOTH LOCATION AND ORIENTATION UNTIL CONCRETE HAS
HARDENED

8. REINFORECMENT PROTECTION SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS: FORMED CONCRETE NOT EXPOSED TO THE EARTH: 2", FORMED CONCRETE EXPOSED TO THE EARTH: 3"

9. CONCRETE SLABS SHALL BE SAWCUT AT 10 FOOT INTERVALS IN EACH DIRECTION. PLACE (3) 3' LONG PIECES OF #4 REBAR, 1' O/C, AT 45 DEG. ANGLE. TO REBAR GRID @
RE-ENTRANT CORNERS IN SLABS WITHIN 1' OF CORNER.

10. PIPES THAT NEED TO PASS THROUGH CONCRETE SHALL DO SO ONLY WITHIN SLEEVES

11. ALL CONCRETE WALL AND FOOTING POURS SHALL BE MECHANICALLY VIBRATED

GEOTECHNICAL & FOUNDATION

1. REFER TO & FOLLOW GEOTECHNICAL REPORT: LAMBERT & ASSOCIATES, PROJ. # M17022GE,  DATED 11/17/2017

2. FOUNDATION SHALL BEAR UPON THE BEARING SURFACE AT MINIMALLY THE FOLLOWING DEPTHS BELOW EXISTING GRADE: 26" (MONTROSE CNTY.), 36" (GUNNISON CNTY.),
40"+FOOTER THICK. (OURAY COUNTY), CONTACT LOCAL JURISDICTION IF COUNTY NOT LISTED

3.  THE FINISH GRADE SURROUNDING THE FOUNDATION SHALL BE AT A MINIMUM OF A 4% GRADE, AWAY FROM THE STRUCTURE SO AS TO DIVERT WATER

4. ROOF GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS SHALL BE INSTALLED BY BUILDER ALONG ALL EVES. MINIMUM LENGTH THAT DOWNSPOUT SHALL EXIT WATER AWAY FROM FOUNDATION IS 10
FEET.

5.  FOUNDATION HOLE SHALL BE FREE OF ALL DELETRIOUS MATERIAL

6.  BOTTOMS OF FOUNDATION EXCAVATIONS SHALL BE SCARIFIED 6-8" DEEP, MOISTURE CONDITIONED AND RE-COMPACTED TO MIN. 95% STD. PROCTOR MAX. DRY DENSITY, WITHIN
±2% OF THE OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT AS PER ASTM D698.

7. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE: STRUCTURAL FILL SHALL BE MOISTURE CONDITIONED, PLACED IN MAX. 6 IN LOOSE LIFTS, AND COMPACTED TO A MIN. 95% OF THE STD. PROCTOR
MAX. DRY DENSITY FOR FINE GRAINED SOILS OR MOD. PROCTOR MAX. DRY DENSITY FOR COARSE GRAINED SOILS, WITHIN ±2% OF THE OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT AS DET. IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D698 OR D1557 RESPECTIVELY. STRUCTURAL FILL SHALL BE WITHIN 0.1' OF THE BOTTOM OF THE FOUNDATION; NO MORE THAN 0.1' GRAVEL SHALL BE
PLACED BELOW FOUNDATION AS A LEVELING COURSE.

DESIGN CRITERIA:
GROUND SNOW LOAD: 65 LBF/SQ. FT.
WIND SPEED: 115 MPH ULT. / EXPOSURE C
SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY: C
FROST LINE DEPTH: 36 IN
FLOOR LIVE LOAD: 40 LBF/SQ. FT.
FLOOR DEAD LOAD: 10 LBF/SQ. FT.

PERMIT SET
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

09/29/2020 5:31:43 PM



GRADE

VAPOR BARRIER & INSULATION TO MEET IEEC &
LOCAL ENERGY CODES

INSULATION TO MEET IEEC &
LOCAL ENERGY CODES

TIE AT SPLICES

Subfloor

6"x6" P.T POST 2"x4" WOOD SCAB,
QTY. 2, ON OPPOSITE SIDES

TYPICAL SIMPSON
POST BASE SERIES

TJI
JOISTS
(OTHERS)

GRADE

INSULATION TO MEET IEEC &
LOCAL ENERGY CODES

GRADE (MIN SLOPE 4%)

(4) #4 VERTICAL REBAR

12" SONOTUBE

(3) #5 REBAR EACH WAY
MAINTAIN 3" MIN. COVER

SIMPSON COLUMN BASE PLATE

6x6 TIMBER POST, D.F.L., GR. NO. 1/2

1) OWNER/BUILDER/CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY
ACCURACY OF FOUNDATIONS PLANS WITH
ARCHITECTURAL(REF: MOTLEY ARCH. & DES.,
08/21/2020), ROOF, FLOOR, ETC. PLANS  AND
NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES
PRIOR TO FORM PLACEMENT, MAT.
PURCHASE AND CONSTRUCTION

2) CRAWLSPACES MUST BE VENTILATED PER
GOVERNING CODE

3) THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED A
MINIMUM OF 5 BUSINESS DAYS IN ADVANCE
VIA EMAIL FOR INSPECTION OF BOTH THE
FOUNDATION HOLE WHEN EXCAVATION HAS
BEEN COMPLETED & ALL REBAR PLACEMENT
PRIOR TO POURING. FURTHER INSPECTION
PER LOCAL BUILDING CODES MAY BE
REQUIRED

4) JOISTS, TRUSSES, HEADERS & BEAMS BY
OTHERS UNLESS SPECIFIED. TRUSS / FLOOR
DESIGN BY: BUILDERS 1ST SOURCE, DATED:
02/18/2020 (ROOF) & 02/18/2020 (FLOOR)

5) THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED IF
ADVERSE OR POOR SOIL CONDITIONS OR
WATER ARE ENCOUNTERED UPON
EXCAVATION. FURTHER ENGINEERING MAY
BE REQUIRED

6) PROVIDE P.T. FLOOR FRAMING IF MIN.
DISTANCE TO SOILS IS LESS THAN 12" FOR
BEAMS & 18" FOR JOISTS

7) ANCHORS REQUIRED TO RESIST UPLIFT
FORCES ARE DESIGNED BY OTHERS. NOTIFY
FOUNDATION ENGINEER OF UPLIFT FORCES

8) VALID, ORIGINAL DOCUMENT ONLY WITH
EMBOSSED SEAL

9) SPECIFICATIONS APPLY TO ALL PAGES HEREIN
10) TOTAL PAGES = 3, SIZE: ARCH-DPERMIT SET

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
09/29/2020 5:31:54 PM



(17) FLOOR JOISTS, 11-7/8" BCI 6000 1.8
@16" O/C, MAX SPAN = 18'-0"

FB1, 1.75"x11-7/8" VERSA-LAM 2.0 2800 DF
MAX SPAN= 10'-6 3/4"

(14) FLOOR JOISTS, 11-7/8" BCI 6000 1.8
@16" O/C, MAX SPAN = 14'-0"

FB2, 1.75"x11-7/8" VERSA-LAM 2.0 2800 DF
MAX SPAN= 8'-0"

FB3, 1.75"x11-7/8" VERSA-LAM 2.0 2800 DF
MAX SPAN= 4'-0"

LOAD BEARING WALL
REF. TO ARCH.

(14) FLOOR JOISTS, 11-7/8" BCI 6000 1.8
@16" O/C, MAX SPAN = 14'-0"

FLOOR SUPPORT SYSTEM, SEE
PAGE S1

1) OWNER/BUILDER/CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY
ACCURACY OF FOUNDATIONS PLANS WITH
ARCHITECTURAL(REF: MOTLEY ARCH. & DES.,
08/21/2020), ROOF, FLOOR, ETC. PLANS  AND
NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES
PRIOR TO FORM PLACEMENT, MAT.
PURCHASE AND CONSTRUCTION

2) CRAWLSPACES MUST BE VENTILATED PER
GOVERNING CODE

3) THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED A
MINIMUM OF 5 BUSINESS DAYS IN ADVANCE
VIA EMAIL FOR INSPECTION OF BOTH THE
FOUNDATION HOLE WHEN EXCAVATION HAS
BEEN COMPLETED & ALL REBAR PLACEMENT
PRIOR TO POURING. FURTHER INSPECTION
PER LOCAL BUILDING CODES MAY BE
REQUIRED

4) JOISTS, TRUSSES, HEADERS & BEAMS BY
OTHERS UNLESS SPECIFIED. TRUSS / FLOOR
DESIGN BY: BUILDERS 1ST SOURCE, DATED:
02/18/2020 (ROOF) & 02/18/2020 (FLOOR)

5) THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED IF
ADVERSE OR POOR SOIL CONDITIONS OR
WATER ARE ENCOUNTERED UPON
EXCAVATION. FURTHER ENGINEERING MAY
BE REQUIRED

6) PROVIDE P.T. FLOOR FRAMING IF MIN.
DISTANCE TO SOILS IS LESS THAN 12" FOR
BEAMS & 18" FOR JOISTS

7) ANCHORS REQUIRED TO RESIST UPLIFT
FORCES ARE DESIGNED BY OTHERS. NOTIFY
FOUNDATION ENGINEER OF UPLIFT FORCES

8) VALID, ORIGINAL DOCUMENT ONLY WITH
EMBOSSED SEAL

9) SPECIFICATIONS APPLY TO ALL PAGES HEREIN
10) TOTAL PAGES = 3, SIZE: ARCH-D

SPAN SPECIFIED HEADER

≤10' (2) 1.75" x 9.5" VERSA-LAM
2.0 2800 DF

≤3'-2" (2) 2" x 10" HEM FIR GR.
SELECT STRUCTURAL

SPAN SPECIFIED HEADER

≤12' (2) 1.75" x 9.5" VERSA-LAM
2.0 2800 DF

≤3'-8" (2) 2" x 10" HEM FIR GR.
SELECT STRUCTURAL

PERMIT SET
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

09/29/2020 5:32:02 PM



3 - PIC G22

5 - PRU PAW

1 - COR ISA

1 - POP NMN

3 - JUN BRO

1 - COR ISA

1 - POP NMN

JUN BRO - 1

POP NMN - 1

COR ISA - 1

POP NMN - 1

JUN BRO - 2

POT POT - 6

JUN BRO - 5

POT POT - 6

ACE BOX - 1

POT POT - 3

JUN BRO - 3

ACE BOX - 1

POT POT - 3

PIC G22 - 1

POP NMN - 1

TREES CODE 4T< BOTANICAL � COMMON NAME SI=E REMAR.S

ACE BOX 2 ACER NEGUNDO CSENSATIONC

SENSATION MAPLE

1�5� CALIPER 3�C TALL� 25C SPREAD� RED FALL COLOR

PIC G22 4 PICEA PUNGENS CGLAUCAC

COLORADO BLUE SPRUCE

6C-�C B	B 4�C TALL� 15C SPREAD� BLUE E9ERGREEN

POP NMN 5 POPULUS TREMULOIDES CCLUMP FORMC

CLUMP FORM 4UA.ING ASPEN

5 GALLON 4� FT TALL� 12 FT SPREAD� MULTI-STEM�

<ELLOW FALL COLOR

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS CODE 4T< BOTANICAL � COMMON NAME SI=E REMAR.S

COR ISA 3 CORNUS SERICEA CISANTIC

ISANTI REDOSIER DOGWOOD

5 GALLON 5C TALL� 6C SPREAD� RED TWIGS

POT POT 1� POTENTILLA FRUTICOSA CGOLDFINGERC

GOLDFINGER POTENTILLA

5 GALLON 3 FT TALL� 3 FT SPREAD� <ELLOW

SUMMER FLOWERS�

PRU PAW 5 PRUNUS BESSE<I CPAWNEE BUTTESC

PAWNEE BUTTES SAND CHERR<

5 GALLON 2C TALL� 5C SPREAD� WHITE SUMMER

FLOWERS� RED FALL COLOR

E9ERGREEN SHRUBS CODE 4T< BOTANICAL � COMMON NAME SI=E REMAR.S

JUN BRO 14 JUNIPERUS SABINA CBROADMOORC

BROADMOOR JUNIPER

5 GALLON 2C TALL� 6C SPREAD� HORI=ONTAL GREEN

E9ERGREEN

GROUND CO9ERS CODE 4T< BOTANICAL � COMMON NAME CONT REMAR.S

TURF 1�16� SF ADD ALTERNATE� IRRIGAGED TURF SEED - �DROUGHT STAR� DROUGHT TOLERANT

.ENTUC.< BLUE GRASS TURF SEED MIX�

SEED AT 1��-15� LBS�ACRE PER THE

SUPPLIER RECOMMENDATIONS�

MEADOW 1���63 SF NON-IRRIGATED MEADOW GRASS

�EXISTING TO REMAIN�

- EXISTING NATI9E DROUGHT-TOLERANT

MEADOW GRASS TO REMAIN�

O9ERSEED BARE OR DISTURBED AREAS

AS NEEDED WITH FOOTHILLS MEADOW

GRASS SEED MIX PER THE SUPPLIERCS

RECOMMENDATIONS�

PLANT SCHEDULE

S<MBOL DESCRIPTION 4T<

BASE BID� STEEL LANDSCAPE EDGER �COL-MET� MFG�� BROWN

POWDERCOAT FINISH�  INSTALL PER MFG RECOMMENDATIONS

WITH LAP JOINTS AND STA.ES� SEE THE DETAIL� SHEET L��1�

11� LF

S<MBOL DESCRIPTION 4T<

BASE BID� 1�-3� WASHED ROUND GRA9EL STONE 3� DEEP O9ER

LANDSCAPE FABRIC�

2��21 SF

BASE BID� 6 FT� CEDAR SCREEN FENCE� INSTALL PER INDUSTR<

STANDARDS B< EXPERIENCED FENCE CONTRACTOR� LOCATE

WHERE SHOWN ALONG PROPERT< LINE AND BETWEEN UNITS�

3�2 LF

ADD ALTERNATE� BAC.<ARD STEEL EDGER �COL-MET� MFG�

BROWN POWDERCOAT FINISH� 4� WIDE X 1��� THIC.� INSTALL

WITH PROPER LAP JOINTS AND STA.ES�

1�3 LF

ADD ALTERNATE� CONCRETE BAC. PATIO 1� FT� X 2� FT� 6�3 SF

ADD ALTERNATE� BAC.<ARD 1�-3� WASHED ROUND GRA9EL

STONE 3� DEEP O9ER LANDSCAPE FABRIC

2�5�� SF

1

2

3

4

5

6

REFERENCE NOTES SCHEDULE

09/02/20

L-1

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

& LEGENDS

2�

�

1�


SFDOH 1� 2�


4�


NRUWK

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
-p

le
x

R
id

g
w

ay
, C

o
lo

ra
d

o

  Julee Wolverton,
Landscape Architect

61945 Nighthawk Road
Montrose, CO     81403
office: 970.249.9392
mobile: 970.417.1779
julee@juleewolverton.com

1

2

2

2

3

6

5

4



09/02/20

L-2

LANDSCAPE
NOTES &
DETAILS

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
-p

le
x

R
id

g
w

ay
, C

o
lo

ra
d

o

  Julee Wolverton,
Landscape Architect

61945 Nighthawk Road
Montrose, CO     81403
office: 970.249.9392
mobile: 970.417.1779
julee@juleewolverton.com



1

D-1

1

D-1
1

D-1

9
7
0
-
2
4
9
-
6
8
2
8

2
2
2
 
S

o
u
t
h
 
P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e
n
u
e

M
o
n
t
r
o
s
e
,
 
C

o
l
o
r
a
d
o
 
8
1
4
0
1

W
W

W
.
D

O
W

L
.
C

O
M

H
A

B
I
T

A
T

 
F

O
R

 
H

U
M

A
N

I
T

Y

L
A

U
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

X

 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

R
I
D

G
W

A
Y

,
 
C

O
L
O

R
A

D
O

C-3

3 OF 6



C-1

1 OF 6

970-249-6828

222 South Park Avenue

Montrose, Colorado 81401

WWW.DOWL.COM

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

LAURA STREET TRIPLEX

RIDGWAY, COLORADO

PROJECT NO. 7122.75084.01

PREPARED FOR:

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF THE SAN JUANS

ERICA MADISON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

PHONE: 970-252-9303 X 5

Email: ERICA@BUILDINGLIVES.ORG

1601 N. TOWNSEND AVE

MONTROSE, CO 81401

PREPARED BY:

SHEET INDEX

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

SITE

62

G
R

E
E

N
 
S

T

N RAILROAD ST

SHERMAN ST

CHARLES ST

CLINTON ST

HYDE ST

MOFFAT ST

N
 
A

M
E

L
I
A

 
S

T

N
 
L

A
U

R
A

 
S

T

N
 
L

A
U

R
A

 
S

T

MARION OVERLOOK

R

I

V

E

R

 

P

A

R

K

 

D

R

N
 
R

A
I
L

R
O

A
D

 
S

T

N
 
M

A
R

Y
 
S

T

S
 
C

H
A

R
L

O
T

T
E

 
S

T

N
 
L

E
N

A
 
S

T

S
 
L

A
U

R
A

 
S

T

OTTO ST

RIDGWAY

550

550

9-28-2020



9
7

0
-
2

4
9

-
6

8
2

8

2
2

2
 
S

o
u

t
h

 
P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

n
u

e

M
o

n
t
r
o

s
e

,
 
C

o
l
o

r
a

d
o

 
8

1
4

0
1

W
W

W
.
D

O
W

L
.
C

O
M

H
A

B
I
T

A
T

 
F

O
R

 
H

U
M

A
N

I
T

Y

L
A

U
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

X

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
/
 
D

E
M

O
L
I
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

R
I
D

G
W

A
Y

,
 
C

O
L
O

R
A

D
O

C-2

2 OF 6

9-28-2020



1

D-1

1

D-1
1

D-1

9
7
0
-
2
4
9
-
6
8
2
8

2
2
2
 
S

o
u
t
h
 
P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e
n
u
e

M
o
n
t
r
o
s
e
,
 
C

o
l
o
r
a
d
o
 
8
1
4
0
1

W
W

W
.
D

O
W

L
.
C

O
M

H
A

B
I
T

A
T

 
F

O
R

 
H

U
M

A
N

I
T

Y

L
A

U
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

X

 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

R
I
D

G
W

A
Y

,
 
C

O
L
O

R
A

D
O

C-3

3 OF 6



U

D-1

9
7

0
-
2

4
9

-
6

8
2

8

2
2

2
 
S

o
u

t
h

 
P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

n
u

e

M
o

n
t
r
o

s
e

,
 
C

o
l
o

r
a

d
o

 
8

1
4

0
1

W
W

W
.
D

O
W

L
.
C

O
M

H
A

B
I
T

A
T

 
F

O
R

 
H

U
M

A
N

I
T

Y

L
A

U
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

X

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

R
I
D

G
W

A
Y

,
 
C

O
L
O

R
A

D
O

C-4

4 OF 6

U

D-1

UTILITY PLAN DETAIL

NTS

9-28-2020



E2

D-1

E1

D-1

9
7

0
-
2

4
9

-
6

8
2

8

2
2

2
 
S

o
u

t
h

 
P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

n
u

e

M
o

n
t
r
o

s
e

,
 
C

o
l
o

r
a

d
o

 
8

1
4

0
1

W
W

W
.
D

O
W

L
.
C

O
M

H
A

B
I
T

A
T

 
F

O
R

 
H

U
M

A
N

I
T

Y

L
A

U
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

X

G
R

A
D

I
N

G
 
A

N
D

 
E

R
O

S
I
O

N
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 
P

L
A

N

R
I
D

G
W

A
Y

,
 
C

O
L
O

R
A

D
O

C-5

5 OF 6

9-28-2020



2

D-1

E1

D-1

EROSION LOG FILTER

NTS

DD

AA

DRIVEWAY CUT

NTS

3

D-1

WATER SERVICE CONNECTION DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

E2

D-1

SILT FENCE DETAIL

NTS

2

D-1

4" x4" SANITARY SEWER

SERVICE CONNECTION

NOT TO SCALE

9
7

0
-
2

4
9

-
6

8
2

8

2
2

2
 
S

o
u

t
h

 
P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

n
u

e

M
o

n
t
r
o

s
e

,
 
C

o
l
o

r
a

d
o

 
8

1
4

0
1

W
W

W
.
D

O
W

L
.
C

O
M

H
A

B
I
T

A
T

 
F

O
R

 
H

U
M

A
N

I
T

Y

L
A

U
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

X

D
E

T
A

I
L
S

R
I
D

G
W

A
Y

,
 
C

O
L
O

R
A

D
O

D-1

6 OF 6

U

D-1

UTILITY PLAN DETAIL

NTS

9-28-2020













































































































































 

 

Community Planning Strategies, LLC 
       970-368-3114      www.PlanStrategize.com 

 
January 6, 2023 

 
Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans 
Amanda Gerhardt, Exec. Dir. 
PO Box 162 
Montrose, CO  81402 

SENT VIA E-MAIL TO amanda@buildinglives.org  

RE:    Amended Plat for Lot 15, Parkside Subdivision and Side Setback Variance, 1st 
Planning Review Comments. 

Dear Amanda: 
The above-mentioned application and supplemental materials were reviewed by Community Planning 
Strategies (CPS). The enclosed comments represent the findings of the review against applicable Town of 
Ridgway (Town) development and land use regulations. 
The following items must be addressed and resubmitted to the Town to be reviewed and evaluated: 

1. To be more in line with the currently adopted landscape regulations, please consider using the 
alternative landscaping #6 where landscaping stone is uses and reduce the amount of turf. (Sec. 
7-7-7-D of PMC) 

2. The proposed 6’ fence cannot impede the flow of the drainage easement along the eastern 
property line. 

3. Amend the title of the amended plat to be: 
Final Plat for [Subdivision Name] 

An Amendment to Lot 15, Parkside Subdivision 
SE ¼ Section 8 and SW ¼ Section 9, Township 45 North, Range 8 West, 

New Mexico Principal Meridian 
Town of Ridgway, Ouray County, Colorado 

 
4. Add the following certificates to the plat: 

ATTORNEYS CERTIFICATE: 
I, ________________, an attorney at law duly licensed to practice before the courts of record of 
Colorado, do hereby certify that I have examined the Title Commitment Order Number 
______________ effective as of _____________ at __:___ __.M. issued by __________________ 
and according to that title commitment, of all land herein platted and that title to such land is in 
the dedicator(s) and owners, and that based upon my review of said title commitment, the property 
dedicated hereon has been dedicated free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except as 
follows: 

  
  
  

Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__. 
By: _____________________________________________________________________ 

   [legal counsel Name]   , Attorney at Law 
 
 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat for Humanity Triplex 
January 6, 2023 
2 of 3 
 

 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Recommended for approval by the Planning Commission this _____________________ day of 
_________________________________, 202__. 
By: _____________________________________________ 

Michelle Montague, Town of Ridgway Planning Commission Chairperson 
 
 
TOWN COUNCIL: 
Approved by the Town Council this _______________day of _____________________________, 
202__. 
By: _____________________________________________ 

John Clark, Town of Ridgway Mayor 
 
 
APPROVAL OF TOWN ATTORNEY: 
Approved for recording with the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder’s Office this 
_______________day of _________________________________, 202__. 
By: _____________________________________________, 

Bo Nerlin, Town of Ridgway Town Attorney 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF IMPROVEMENTS: 
The undersigned, Town Manager of the Town of Ridgway, certifies that all required improvements 
and utilities are installed, available, and adequate to serve each lot in the _______________ 
Subdivision. 
Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__. 
By: _____________________________________________ 

Preston Neill, Town of Ridgway Town Manager 
 
 

LIEN HOLDER’S CERTIFICATE: 
The undersigned, being the holder of a deed of trust (Reception No.____) encumbering the 
property described in (name of subdivision) joins in and consents to the filing hereof  
for: _____(name of lien holder)________________    
BY:______________________________________    
TITLE:_____________________________  
  
 
TREASURERS CERTIFICATE: 
According to the records of the County of Ouray Treasurer there are no liens against this subdivision 
or any part thereof for unpaid state, county municipal or local taxes or special assessments due 
and payable. 
Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__. 
By: _______________________________________________________ 

Jill Mihelich, Ouray County Treasurer 
 

5. Add the following notes to the plat: 

a. All construction will conform with the Ridgway Municipal Code. 



Town of Ridgway 
Habitat for Humanity Triplex 
January 6, 2023 
3 of 3 
 

b. Outdoor Lighting; All outdoor lighting shall conform to Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-
5 "Outdoor Lighting regulations", as may be amended. 

c. Any water or sewer tap fees which have not been paid or waived pursuant to Note 6 of the 
Parkside Subdivision plat shall be paid in accordance with Section 9-1-9 of the Ridgway 
Municipal Code prior to issuance of the first building permit for any lot in this subdivision. 

d. The property platted hereby is subject to the plat notes as recorded in Parkside Subdivision 
as recorded in the Ouray County Records at Reception No. 197315, and the Declarations 
of protective covenants, conditions, and restrictions of Parkside Subdivision as recorded in 
the Ouray County Records at Reception No. 197316 and as may be amended from time 
to time. 

e. The property platted hereon is subject o the prior easements as shown hereon. 

6. If applicable excise tax pursuant to Section 4 Development Excise Tax of Chapter 3 Finance of 
the RMC has not been paid, such tax must be paid in accordance with this section prior to the 
plat amendment being recorded with the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder. 

7. There appear to be many measurement discrepancies between the recorded bearings and 
distances and those indicated on the Amended Plat. Please evaluate and correct discrepancies 
where applicable. Where the measurements differ from the recorded plat, please provide written 
explanation of why they differ. 

8. Address all redlines and comments on attached submitted materials. 

We reserve the right to provide additional comments once more information is provided. Please reach out 
if you have any questions regarding these review comments. 
Sincerely, 

COMMUNITY PLANNING STRATEGIES, LLC 

 
TJ Dlubac, AICP 
Principal / Owner 
970-744-0623 
TDlubac@PlanStrategize.com 

 

Encl: Planning Review Redlines 

 

Cc: Preston Neill, Town of Ridgway Town Manager 

 



Curve Table

AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 15
PARKSIDE SUBDIVISION

SITUATED IN THE SE1
4 SECTION 8 AND SW1

4 SECTION 9
TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 8 WEST, NMPM

PART OF THE SCHOOL ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, REC. NO. 180714
COUNTY OF OURAY, STATE OF COLORADO

AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 15
PARKSIDE SUBDIVISION

SITUATED IN THE SE1
4 SECTION 8 AND SW1

4 SECTION 9
TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 8 WEST, NMPM

PART OF THE SCHOOL ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, REC. NO. 180714
COUNTY OF OURAY, STATE OF COLORADO

BUCKHORN
ENGINEERING

222 South Park Avenue
Montrose, Colorado 81401

970-249-6828

WWW.BUCKHORNENGINEERING.COM
jrease@buckhornengineering.com

 

 
 
 
 

V-1

N

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

50'

LEGEND

EDGE OF ASPHALT
PROPERTY LINE
FENCE

FOUND SURVEY MONUMENT AS NOTED
SET 1.5" ALUMINUM CAP LS 38758

FLOW LINE OF DITCH

15'

10'

DECK

50' DRAINAGE AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRAINAGE AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

LOT 15A
3839 SQ. FT. ±

0.088 AC. ±

LOT 15B
3114 SQ. FT. ±

0.071 AC. ±

LOT 15C
15514 SQ. FT. ±

0.356 AC. ±

G
R

E
E

N
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

NORTH RAILROAD AVE.

ELECTRIC BOX
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL
WATER VALVE

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

1.5" CAP
LS 16840

PK NAIL

EASEMENT

9" THICK WALL
4.5" EITHER SIDE OF
PROPERTY LINE

RAILING

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP DEDICATION
Known all persons by these presents that we, the undersigned being the owners of certain lands in Ouray County, Colorado, described as Lot 15, Parkside
Subdivision, Ouray County, Colorado, have caused same to be laid out and platted as shown on this plat under the name and style of Amended Plat of Lot 15
Parkside Subdivision.

Executed this day of 2022

Owner: Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans

By: Date:

Printed Name:

Title: 

STATE OF COLORADO   )
                   ) ss.
COUNTY OF ________ )

The foregoing Owner Certificate was acknowledged before me this  day of , A.D. 2022,

by as the  of Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans

Witness my hand and official seal.

My Commision Expires:
Notary Public

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Jeremiah D. Harness, a Registered Land Surveyor in the State of Colorado, hereby certify that this Amended Plat of Lot 15 Parkside Subdivision was
prepared under my direction and supervision and that said survey is accurate to the best of my knowledge, conforms to all the requirements of the Colorado
Revised Statutes, and all applicable Town of Ridgway regulations, and that all required monuments have been set as shown. There are no roads, pipelines,
irrigation ditches or other easements or rights- of-way in evidence or known to me to exist on or across said property except as shown on this plat. I certify that
I have made the survey represented by this plat and that this plat accurately represents said survey, and conforms to all applicable requirements of the City
Subdivision Regulations and applicable law. I further certify that all monuments shown hereon actually exist and their positions are as shown.

Jeremiah D. Harness
Colorado Registered Land Surveyor
Registration No. 38758
Date: ______________

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

This Amended plat of Lot 15 Parkside Subdivision was filed for record in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Ouray County at

 _______ __.m. on the _____ day of _____________________, 20_____.

Reception No. ______________________.

__________ ___________________________________,  by _________________________________________________
County Clerk & Recorder                          Deputy

GENERAL NOTES

1. No guarantee as to the accuracy of the information contained within
this plat is either stated or implied unless this print bears an original
signature and seal of the professional land surveyor hereon named.
Only prints of this survey marked with an original signature and seal by
the surveyor named hereon shall be considered true, valid copies.

2. Notice 13-80-105 c.r.s, as amended:
According to Colorado law you must commence any legal action based
upon any defect in this survey within three years after you first
discovered such defect.  In no event may any action based upon any
defect in this survey be commenced more than ten years from the date
of the certification shown hereon.

3. Dimensions in parenthesis is the measurement from the inside 
corner of the building to the property line.

CULVERTS

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
OF THE SAN JUANS

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

DRIVEW
AY

DRIVEW
AY

DRIVEW
AY

SIDEWALK

SID
EW

ALK

SITE

9" THICK WALL
4.5" EITHER SIDE OF
PROPERTY LINE

TDlubac
Text Box
CPS Review12/17/2022

TDlubac
Polygon

TDlubac
Callout
Review against recorded Parkside Sub. and and adjust if needed

TDlubac
Polygon

TDlubac
Polygon

TDlubac
Polygon

TDlubac
Polygon

TDlubac
Polygon

TDlubac
Callout
Review against recorded Parkside Sub. and and adjust if needed

TDlubac
Callout
Review against recorded Parkside Sub. and and adjust if needed

TDlubac
Callout
Review against recorded Parkside Sub. and and adjust if needed

TDlubac
Callout
Review against recorded Parkside Sub. and and adjust if needed

TDlubac
Callout
Review against recorded Parkside Sub. and and adjust if needed

TDlubac
Callout
Verify and update the sq ft of each lot as they do not add up to the overall sg ft of the original lot

TDlubac
Line

TDlubac
Line

TDlubac
Callout
Change street name to 

TDlubac
Callout
The site plan indicates the side walk continues the entire length of the property. please correct differences as necessary to make plans consistent.

TDlubac
Polygon



09/02/20

L-2

LANDSCAPE
NOTES &
DETAILS

H
ab

it
at

 f
o

r 
H

u
m

an
it

y
T

ri
-p

le
x

R
id

g
w

ay
, C

o
lo

ra
d

o

  Julee Wolverton,
Landscape Architect

61945 Nighthawk Road
Montrose, CO     81403
office: 970.249.9392
mobile: 970.417.1779
julee@juleewolverton.com

TDlubac
Callout
Installation shall not impede the flow of storm water in drainage easements.

TDlubac
Text Box
CPS Review12/17/2022



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 



 

 

 
To:   Town of Ridgway Town Council 
Cc:   Preston Neill, Ridgway Town Manager 
From:  TJ Dlubac, AICP, Community Planning Strategies, Contracted Town Planner 
Date:  February 3, 2023 
Subject:   Vista Park Commons P.U.D. Subdivision for February 8th TC Meeting 

 

APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Request: Approval of the Final Plat for the Vista Park Commons P.U.D. Subdivision 
to subdivide the existing five lots into 23 lots. 

Legal: Lots 30-34, Ridgway Land Company Subdivision 
Address: TBD 
General Location: East of and adjacent to Redcliff Drive, north of Hunter Parkway. 
Parcel #: 430516402008, 430516402009, 430516402010, 430516402011, and 

430516402012,  
Zone District: GC General Commercial Zone District with PUD 
Current Use Vacant 
Applicant Joe Nelson, Vista Park Development, LLC 
Owner Jack Young and Joe Nelson, Vista Park Development, LLC 

PROJECT REVIEW 
BACKGROUND 
The application for the final plat was submitted on April 29, 2022. A completeness review was 
conducted, and the application was accepted as complete on May 29, 2022. The initial review was 
completed and comments were sent to the applicant team on July 18, 2022, and a resubmittal was 
received on September 26, 2022. 
The Vista Park Commons P.U.D. preliminary 
plat was approved by the Town Council on 
August 14, 2019, with conditions and variances 
as noted in the staff report. Sec. 7-4-5(C)(1)(c) 
of the RMC states that preliminary plats expire 
after two years of the Town Council’s approval 
of the Preliminary Plat, therefore, the Vista 
Park Commons P.U.D. Preliminary Plat and PUD 
expired on August 14, 2021. However, because 
the development was proceeding with active 
construction and the developer was 
communicating with Town staff throughout the 
course of the project improvements, it was 
clear that a final plat submission was 
forthcoming. While the strict interpretation of Figure 1. Current Plat 



Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons P.U.D. Final Plat 
February 3, 2023 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 

the provision was not met with the submittal of the final plat, Town staff believes the spirit and intent 
of the regulation were met because of the active construction 
and positive progress made on the project over the course of 
the construction season. Although it is the applicant’s 
responsibility to request an extension of a preliminary plat 
approval if the two-year timeframe is unable to be met, there 
was an oversight by both the applicant and Town staff in 
enforcing this provision for this project. However, since the 
project is consistent with approved standards and has been 
making progress, Town staff is comfortable with this request 
proceeding forward for Town Council’s consideration. The 
Planning Commission was provided this information and 
concurred with this recommendation. If the Town Council 
desires, they may determine the application to be invalid and 
require the Applicant to submit a preliminary plat pursuant to 
the RMC requirements for an expired preliminary plat 
approval. 
 

CODE REQUIREMENTS 
RMC §7-4-5(C) FINAL PLAT: 
RMC §7-4-5(C)(8)(b) states that the Town Council shall determine the following are met in order to 
recommend approval, with or without conditions, of the plat amendment to the Town Council: 
(i)  The Town has received a reproducible mylar properly executed by all parties except Town 

officials, the original subdivision improvements agreement properly executed by the Subdivider 
accompanied by required security, and copies of properly executed corporate documents and 
covenants; 

(ii)  Compliance with all Planning Commission conditions of approval except those subject to a good 
faith dispute;  

(iii)  Payment of all costs due to date pursuant to 7-4-12(B), recording fees, development excise 
taxes, tap fees and other amounts due the Town. 

ANALYSIS 
PUD CONDITIONAL USES, VARIANCES, AND DEVIATIONS 
The property is zoned GC General Commercial with a Planned Unit Development (PUD). The intent of 
the PUD is to provide flexibility with respect to dimensional standards, increased density, and clustered 
development patterns.  The preliminary plat and PUD for Vista Park Commons PUD Subdivision 
approved a variety of conditions and variances as allowed by the RMC. Those approvals are listed 
below: 

1. Approve a conditional use to allow single-family and duplex residential uses in the GC Zone 
District 
NOTE:  The preliminary plat for Vista Park Commons PUD Subdivision was approved prior to 
the 2020 revisions to the RMC which prohibited single-family residents and duplexes in the GC 
Zone District. Prior to these amendments, these uses were allowed by conditional use. 

2. The following dimensional standards were amended to be as depicted on the plat: 

Figure 2. Property Location & Zoning 



Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons P.U.D. Final Plat 
February 3, 2023 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 

a. Lot Size: The minimum required lot size if 5,000sf, but the preliminary plat and PUD 
proposed lot sizes ranging from 1,484sf to 3,181sf.  

i. Of note, Lots 22 and 23 are significantly smaller than the previous smallest lot 
at 1,018.43sf and 1,088.79sf, respectively. While these are relatively large 
changes in lot size, the overall density, lot coverage, requirements, and 
setback requirements for these lots have not changed, so the impact of the 
overall development will be relatively minor. Therefore, Town staff is amenable 
to this change in minimum lot sizes for these two lots. 

b. Front Setbacks: 15’ is required in the GC District, but most lots propose a 7’ setback 
from the internal private street.  

i. Of note, Lots 22 and 23 propose a 1’ front setback which is consistent with Lot 
23 of the preliminary plat. 

c. Side Setbacks: The GC District requires a minimum of 8’ setback, however, most of 
the lots indicate a 4.5’ setback while there is a 0’ setback between the two sets of 
duplex lots (Lots 8 & 9 and Lots 22 & 23). 

i. Of note, Lots 17 & 18 were proposed as duplex lots in the preliminary plat and 
the final plat shifted those to Lots 22 & 23. This change does not appear to 
have a significant impact on the overall development. Rather, it seems to 
mitigate access concerns for the previous duplex lots of Lots 17 & 18. 

ii. Also of note, Lot 21 proposes a 1’ side setback which is consistent with Lot 22 
of the preliminary plat. 

d. Rear Setbacks: 8’ is required in the GC District, however, some lots propose a reduced 
rear setback as small as 4’ on Lots 20 & 21 and 4.5’ on Lots 22 & 23. These are all 
consistent with the preliminary plat requests. 

e. Architecture and Landscaping: Architectural renderings and landscaping plans were 
provided with the revised materials submitted on December 7, 2022. These plans were 
reviewed in conjunction with staff review and applicable comments were provided to 
the Applicant on January 20th. Standards which are not met or need further clarification 
have been identified in the January 20, 2023 comment letter. Therefore, Town staff 
recommends a condition be included that updated prior to the  

3. Deed Restrictions: The project will provide two deed restricted units and those are identified 
in the plat notes. There was discussion during the preliminary plat and PUD process that the 
units should be in Phase 2, however, an updated phasing plan was not provided in the 
submittal. Therefore, Town staff recommends a condition be included that an updated phasing 
plan submitted and reviewed by Town staff prior to the final plat and PUD being recorded. 

4. Parking: The total number of parking spaces was reduced to 40 required spaces. The current 
RMC standards require 2 parking spaces per single-family or duplex use. With 23 units being 
proposed, a total of 46 parking spaces should be required. However, the reduction to was 
approved with the preliminary plat and PUD. The project installed 44 total spaces with 4 ADA 
spaces.  

  



Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons P.U.D. Final Plat 
February 3, 2023 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 

LAND USES 
The property is zoned GC General Commercial District and is currently vacant with common elements 
and public improvements installed. The final plat must be approved and recorded with the Ouray County 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office prior to any building permits being issued for the subdivision. 
The proposed subdivision includes 23 lots with 23 dwelling units in 21 buildings; two duplexes are 
proposed. This is consistent with the preliminary plat and PUD. The preliminary plat identified one of 
the duplex lots as Lots 17-18. However, on the final plat, this set of duplex lots was shifted to the 
newly configured Lots 22-23 and Lot 17 encompasses the area that was Lots 17-18 on the preliminary 
plat. 

    
 
 
DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 
The final plat is consistent with the proposed dimensional standards, variances, and waivers granted 
through the preliminary plat and PUD review. To simplify the building permit review process and the 
applicable standards for easier administration in the future, staff recommends a dimensional table be 
added to a sheet of the final plat & PUD identifying the minimum standards (setbacks, lot size, lot 
coverage, and lot width) for each lot in the subdivision. 
ACCESS 
Each lot is accessed via an access easement which will be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. 
The access easement accesses Redcliff Drive at two locations and the parking lot accesses Redcliff 
Drive at two additional points. Those access points are consistent with the preliminary plat and 
construction documents. 
UTILITIES 
Underground utilities and surface infrastructure were necessary as part of this project. While the 
underground utilities were completed and as-built surveys were submitted, as of the last review, there 
were some surface improvements such as sidewalks, walkways, and parking lighting. These items are 
proposed to be included in a Subdivision Improvement Agreement (SIA). An SIA will need to be 
approved prior to the Town Council approving the final plat per RMC standards. Therefore, staff has 
recommended a condition that the SIA be submitted and reviewed by Town staff prior to the final plat 
and PUD being recorded. 

Figure 3. Preliminary Plat Configuration Figure 4. Final Plat Configuration 



Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons P.U.D. Final Plat 
February 3, 2023 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 

There are a few minor revisions that still need to be worked out on the plat to ensure the utilities are 
located within the proper easements. These are identified in the attached redlines and staff is 
recommending a condition that the redlines be adequately addressed prior to the final plat and PUD 
being recorded. 
AS-BUILTS 
The original review comments provided to the applicant on July 18, 2022, included comments regarding 
changes and updates needed on the as-built drawings required to be submitted with the Final Plat 
application materials. However, the revised materials provided to the Town for review on September 
26, 2022, did not include updates to those as-built plans. To ensure that all as-built plans include the 
necessary items and corrections, Town staff has recommended a condition of approval requiring the 
applicant to adequately address all staff comments associated with the as-built drawings prior to the 
final plat being considered being recorded. 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
The applicant has submitted a hearing application, associated fees, final plat materials, and other 
required support materials for this public hearing to the Town.  
The property has been posted and proper notification has been completed by the Town in accordance 
with RMC §7-4-13. 
As of the drafting of this staff report, no public comments either for or against the request have been 
received. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
The Town of Ridgway Planning Commission considered the Vista Park Commons – P.U.D. Subdivision 
Final Plat and PUD at their meeting on October 25, 2022. Following discussion, the Planning 
Commission recommended the Town Council approve the request with the following conditions: 
1. Applicant shall submit updated architectural designs, landscape plan, phasing plan, and as-builts 

to the Town to be reviewed by town staff prior to the final plat and PUD being considered by the 
Town Council. 

2. Applicant shall address all redlines in Attachment C of this staff report and resubmit necessary 
plans and documents for review prior to the final plat and PUD being considered by the Town 
Council. 

3. Applicant shall address all outstanding review comments in the comment letter dated July 18, 2022, 
and submit the necessary documentation for review prior to the final plat and PUD being considered 
by the Town Council. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Since the Planning Commission meeting in October of 2022, the Applicant has submitted information 
to address condition #1 and #2 while updated review letters supersede the comment letter referenced 
in condition #3. Therefore, staff recommends that the three Planning Commission conditions be 
considered met and updated conditions apply based on the review of updated application materials. 
Upon review of the application against applicable Town standards, Staff recommends that the Town of 
Ridgway Town Council approve the Vista Park Commons – P.U.D. Subdivision Final Plat and PUD finding 
that the criteria set forth in RMC §7-4-5(C)(8)(b) have been met with the following conditions: 



Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons P.U.D. Final Plat 
February 3, 2023 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 

1. The Subdivision Improvement Agreement for Vista Park Commons P.U.D. shall be approved by the 
Ridgway Town Council prior to the Final Plat and PUD being recorded with the Ouray County Clerk 
and Recorder’s Office. 

2. Applicant shall address all outstanding review comments in the comment letter dated January 20, 
2023, and submit the necessary documentation for review prior to the final plat and PUD being 
recorded with the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder’s Office. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
“I move to approve the Vista Park Commons – P.U.D. Subdivision Final Plat and PUD finding that the 
criteria set forth in RMC §7-4-5(C)(8)(b) have been met with the following condition: 
1. The Subdivision Improvement Agreement for Vista Park Commons P.U.D. shall be approved by the 

Ridgway Town Council prior to the Final Plat and PUD being recorded with the Ouray County Clerk 
and Recorder’s Office. 

2. Applicant shall address all outstanding review comments in the comment letter dated January 20, 
2023, and submit the necessary documentation for review prior to the final plat and PUD being 
recorded with the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder’s Office.” 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Application and Support Materials (updated 12/7/2022) 
B. Town Review Comment Letter dated January 20, 2023 
C. Applicant Response Letters dated December 7, 2022 
D. Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat and PUD Town Council Staff Report dated August 14, 2019 











4/28/2022 

Vista Park Commons – Final Plat Submittal 

 

Table of Contents Outline of Documents Submitted: 

 

1) Three – 36” x 24” Printed copies of Final Plat B&W 

2) One – 36” x 24” Mylar of Final Plat Ready for Signatures 

3) One – 36” x 24” Copy of As‐Built Utility Plan – Color 
4) One – 36” x 24” Printed Copy of As Built Plans – Surveyed Locations 

 

A) One ‐ Printed Copy of Final Plat Application w/ $600 Check 
B) One ‐ Printed Copy of Proposed SIA Agreement (Draft) 

C) One ‐ Printed Copy of HOA CC&R’s (Recorded) 
D) One ‐ Printed Copy of By Laws (Recorded) 

 

 

 



                      9‐26‐2022 

Vista Park Commons ‐ Subdivision Improvement Agreement ‐ Items for Discussion / Estimate 

Asphalt Paving is Complete  

Curb & Gutter is complete 

Sidewalks complete by Friday, Sept 30th, 2022 

Utilities Complete 

Moddy Ditch Complete – Except Joint Sealing & Conc Repairs to – Moody Ditch =  $12,000.00 

Strom Water System Complete – Except Sod for Drywell (in Spring) =       $10,000.00 

Pavement / Crosswalk Markings  =              $  5,500.00 

Common Walkways Complete 

Common Fencing – 75% Complete – Balance to Complete =        $  6,000.00 

Permeable Paving for Parking Lot =               $40,000.00 

Walkway lighting – Underground & bases Complete – Fixtures after Vertical Const =   $  3,000.00 

Parking Lot Lighting – Underground Complete – Install Poles & Lighting =     $15,000.00 

Common Area Landscaping – 58 Trees Planted / Grade & Berms  Set / Irrigation     $38,000.00        

Complete – Balance of Landscape to be after Vertical Construction Exteriors =    _________ 

                Estimated Total   $129,500.00 

 

 















































































































TDlubac
Callout
What is the scale of the graphic? 1what units equals how many of what units (i.e. 1" = 50')?

TDlubac
Text Box
CPS ReviewJanuary 20, 2023



TDlubac
Callout
Remove

TDlubac
Callout
Amend scale bar on Sheet 2 to mimic this, but ensure scale is correct. 

TDlubac
Text Box
CPS ReviewJanuary 20, 2023

TDlubac
Callout
Remove

TDlubac
Polygon



CPS
Polygon

TDlubac
Callout
Remove

TDlubac
Text Box
CPS ReviewJanuary 20, 2023

TDlubac
Callout
Remove









































































































































































 

 Community Planning Strategies, LLC 
970.368.3114     www.PlanStrategize.com 

 

July 18, 2022 
Joe Nelson 
Vista Park Development LLC 
801 Chipeta Drive 
Ridgway, CO 81432 
E-Mail:  joenel1951@gmail.com 

RE: Vista Park Commons/ Replat of Lots 30-34 Ridgway Land Company Subdivision 
Final Plat Review 

Good Morning: 
The above-mentioned application and supplemental materials were reviewed by Community Planning 
Strategies (CPS) and Town Staff. The enclosed comments represent the findings of the review against 
applicable Town of Ridgway (Town) development and land use regulations. 
The following items must be addressed and resubmitted to the Town to be reviewed and evaluated: 

PLANNING REVIEW COMMENTS: 

Final Plat: 
1. Provide the below Certificate of Ownership and Dedication: Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION:  
Know all persons by these presents: [Owner Name], a Colorado [corporate structure] 
(“Owner”), being the owner of the land described as follows:  
[Legal description of property], County Of Ouray, State Of Colorado (“Property”), has laid 
out, platted and subdivided same as shown on this plat under the name of [subdivision 
name], and by these presents does hereby dedicate to the perpetual use of the Town of 
Ridgway, Ouray County, Colorado, the streets, alleys, roads, and other public areas as 
shown and designated for dedication hereon and hereby dedicate those portions of land 
labeled as utility easements for the installation and maintenance of public utilities as shown 
hereon.  
In witness hereof Owner has executed this Plat effective as of _______________, 202__.  
[Owner Name], a Colorado [corporate structure].  
By: ______________________________  
Printed Name: _____________________  
Title: ____________________________  

2. Modify the Attorney’s Certificate to read as follows: Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

ATTORNEYS CERTIFICATE:  
I, ________________, an attorney at law duly licensed to practice before the courts of 
record of Colorado, do hereby certify that I have examined the Title Commitment Order 
Number ______________ effective as of _____________ at __:___ __.M. issued by 
__________________ and according to that title commitment, of all land herein platted 
and that title to such land is in the dedicator(s) and owners, and that based upon my 
review of said title commitment, the property dedicated hereon has been dedicated free 
and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except as follows:  
Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__.  
_____________________________________________________________________  
 [legal counsel Name]   , Attorney at Law 

mailto:joenel1951@gmail.com


 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
July 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 8 
 

 
 

3. Modify the Lien Holder’s Certificates to read: Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

LIENHOLDER’S AFFIDAV IT 
Before a Notary Public, duly qualified and acting in and for said town, county, and state, 
appeared _________ known by official government-issued photograph identification to be 
the affiant herein, who stated the following under oath: 
The undersigned holder of a lien pursuant to an instrument recorded in the Ouray County 
records at Reception No. ___________________, hereby joins in this subdivision, any 
applicable subdivision improvement agreement, and the declaration of easements, 
property, and streets as shown hereon. 

Lien Holder:   
Name:   
Title:   

4. Correct the Engineer’s Certificate to add the word “and” before “are adequate to serve...” in the 
last sentence and remove “Registration Number” from the signature line. Complete – See Revised 
Plat. 12-07-22) 

5. Modify the Certificate of Improvement Completion to read as follows: Complete – See Revised Plat 
12-07-22. 

CERTIFICATE OF IMPROVEMENTS COMPLETION:  

The undersigned, Town Manager of the Town of Ridgway, certifies that all required 
improvements and utilities are installed, available, and adequate to serve each lot in the 
_______________ Subdivision.  
Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__.  
By: _____________________________________________  

Preston Neill, Town of Ridgway Town Manager 

6. Modify the Surveyor’s Certificate to read as follows Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE  
I, [Surveyor’s Name], being a Registered Lan Surveyor in the State of Colorado do hereby 
certify that this plat was prepared under my direct supervision and that said survey is true 
and accurate to the best of my knowledge, conforms to all requirements of the Colorado 
Revised Statute, and all applicable Town of Ridgway regulations, and that all required 
monuments have been set as shown.  
__________________________________  
[Surveyor’s Name] PLS. [PLS Number] 

7. Modify the Planning Commission Certificate to read as follows: Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-
22. 

PLANNING COMMISSION:  
Recommended for approval by the Planning Commission this _____________________ 
day of _________________________________, 202__.  
By: _____________________________________________  

Michelle Montague, Town of Ridgway Planning Commission Chairperson 

8. Modify the Town Council Certificate to read as follows: Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 
TOWN COUNCIL:  
Approved by the Town Council this _______________day of 
_____________________________, 202__.  
By: _____________________________________________  

John Clark, Town of Ridgway Mayor 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
July 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 8 
 

 
 

9. Modify the Town Attorney’s Certificate to read as follows: Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

APPROVAL OF TOWN ATTORNEY:  
Approved for recording with the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder’s Office this 
_______________day of _________________________________, 202__.  
By: _____________________________________________,  

Bo Nerlin, Town of Ridgway Town Attorney 

10. Modify the Treasurer's Certificate to read as follows: Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 
TREASURERS CERTIFICATE:  
According to the records of the County of Ouray Treasurer there are no liens against this 
subdivision or any part thereof for unpaid state, county municipal or local taxes or special 
assessments due and payable.  
Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__.  
By: _______________________________________________________  
Jill Mihelich, Ouray County Treasurer Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22 

11. Note 8a: The sentence as written doesn’t make sense. Please modify to clearly state the intention 
of the note. Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22 

12. Provide a note with total acreage of easements and other property dedicated for public use. 
Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

13. Provide a plat note stating ownership, usage and maintenance provisions for Tract A. Complete – 
See Revised Plat 12-07-22 

14. Add a note stating “All construction will conform with Ridgway Municipal Code. “Complete – See 
Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

15. Modify Note 7 to read, “Outdoor Lighting; All outdoor lighting shall conform to Ridgway Municipal 
Code Section 6-5 "Outdoor Lighting regulations", as may be amended. Complete – See Revised 
Plat 12-07-22. 

16. Add a note stating, “All provisions of the Ridgway Municipal Code, as adjusted from time to time, 
apply to this property with the exception of those explicitly provided for in the ________________ 
PUD. Where there is a conflict between the provisions of the Ridgway Municipal Code and the 
provisions of this PUD, this PUD shall prevail.” Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

17. Please provide a scale for all dimensions and not just contours. Scale must be at no less than 1” 
equals 100 feet. Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

18. Provide two separate defined easements for the sewer and water mains. If these two easements 
are to be or have been defined by a separate easement document, please reference that in the 
notes and on the page. Applicant does not believe that this is necessary. Easements currently exist 
within the area reflected on the plat previously submitted and updated as of 12-07-2022 within the 
area designated as “Greenbelt”.  While the legal description of the plat does not include the 
Greenbelt, the plat does not attempt to designate new easements.  The property is within the 
original plat of the Ridgway Land Company Subdivision and is subject to the Declaration of 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of that subdivision (the “Declaration”).  The area designated 
as “Greenbelt” on the plat contains the utilities easements as per the Declaration Section 2.1.  We 
would be happy to further discuss this issue with staff and suggest that it might be appropriate to 
consult with the Town Attorney. 

19. Easement and setback dimensions are not consistently or clearly labeled on each lot. Please provide 
leaders from dimension line to measurements in all areas. (See attached redlines for more 
explanation.) Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
July 18, 2022 
Page 4 of 8 
 

 
 

20. The “Access and Utility Easement” for Lot 17 needs to be dimensioned and a note added regarding 
maintenance provisions. Change the scale of the shading to allow better legibility for information 
within the easement. Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22 – Labeled under “Access and Utility 
Easement” on Plat. 

21. Label Page 2 “As Platted” and Pages 3 & 4 “As Replatted.” Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 
22. Label Redcliff Drive existing right-of-way width. Complete – See Revised Plat 12-07-22. 

Subdivision Improvement Agreement: 
23. The SIA should reference the legal name of the development. See response to #29 below 

ENGINEERING REVIEW COMMENTS: 

Final Plat: 
24. The easements dedicated to the Town should be the utility easements and the easements that are 

combined utility and drainage. These easements are combined and are consistent with what was 
required in the Preliminary Plat. 

25. Plat Note 9 starting about half way down the note, says that the town is not responsible for damage 
they do as they work on utilities.  I think this should be a separate note.  This was part of the deal 
in allowing town utilities on private property with limited access points to the utility easement.  The 
agreement was that the note cover within and on the way to the utility easement.  We believe this 
note is complete and is consistent with what the Town previously approved… This note covers all 
possibilities for access & responsibility and seems best all under Plat Note 9. 

26. How are the boundaries of the parking area and the common building and storage units to be 
located on the ground?   Are the bulb outs in the parking design or as constructed? These 
dimensions and coordinates are shown on pages S-1.1, S-1.2 & S-1.3 of the Civil Drawings.  

27. Is the relocated ditch shown the plat shown at the design or as constructed location?  The latter is 
required. It is shown at its constructed location. 

28. How does one locate dimensions for the ditch on the ground.  There are bearings and distances 
between the angle points listed but I did not find where it starts.  Would coordinates be a better 
way to lay this out?  If one has a bust somewhere in the layout of the 40 points everything else 
from the oops will be wrong.  All coordinates are shown on page 3 of 4 on the Plat. 

Subdivision Improvement Agreement: (David & Bo) 
29. Is this our standard form?  I don’t remember there being recitals on our form and other provisions 

seem weird.  If this is not our form, do we want to tell them it needs to be on the Town form? 
Legal counsel for the Applicant has consulted with legal counsel for the Town regarding the 
Subdivision Improvements Agreement (“SIA”). Town legal counsel has advised that he is drafting 
the SIA. This is acceptable to the Applicant.  According to Town legal counsel, Town staff needs to 
provide a list of improvements to be included within the SIA as well as a dollar amount required 
for each improvement to be included in the irrevocable letter of credit. 

30. My questions / comments are in comments and track changes on the attached doc file. 
31. Can’t put comments or edit Exhibit Bo f the SIA.    I read RMC 7.4 etc  SIA (B) (1) to include all 

drainage.   I think that includes getting the curb and gutter installed. Drainge, Curb & Gutter, and 
asphalt paving at roadway is complete. The Moody Ditch needs sealed to protect from undermining 
the sewer. This will be done in spring when we can divert the water… This poses no threat to 
sewer line… as the sewer line is a sealed system and has been fully pressure tested. This should 
be part of the requirements for the sewer. Patching the water and sewer crossings to me is part 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
July 18, 2022 
Page 5 of 8 
 

 
 

of the utility work and should be done before final plat is done.  (Hopefully the C&G, the parking, 
and the patching are done.) All asphalt paving & patching is complete. 

32. The list says gas is complete and says they decided to go all electric.  Was this change approved 
by the Town.  This is supposed to be affordable housing.  Not offering gas could be contrary to 
that goal. Natural Gas is being disincentivized by SMPA and discouraged by many municipalities, 
hence no natural is provided) 

33. The parking lot improvements should be required to be completed before any buildings get a CO. 
Same with the internal walks. Yes, this would be the normal requirement. These are improvements 
that needed to use the units.  The parking is not only parking and the walks are the only way to 
get stuff from the parking area to the units.  I think they should be secured. All walks are complete. 

34. Street lighting is a required improvement for final plat.  I believe this should be a secured 
improvement. No street lighting is required on town road… The parking lot light has been proposed 
to be on SIA list. 

35. Rail fence is part of the landscaping and should be secured. Rail Fencing is 75% complete… and 
will be completed between homes after homes are built and prior to CO. 

36. Don’t know if the landscape numbers are reasonable. We believe the landscape numbers are 
adequate as we build with our own crews. 

37. Once we agree on what needs secured (and once we check what has been completed in the last 
few weeks later this week), I can work on whether the dollar amounts listed are reasonable.  

Asbuilt Surveyed 3-22: 
38. Not sure what these sheets are so did not spend much time on them.  Do have the following 

questions for pg 1 These pages are the surveyed locations & coordinates for water meters / curb 
stops / corp stops / manhole coordinates / clean-outs / and other utility locations. 

 
 

39. Noticed that there are point numbers and coordinate for meters, cleanouts, valves, curb stops, 
etc.  Somehow this inform needs to be coordinated with the utility as builts. We believe this is more 
clear this way, on separate sheet, as there is already a major amount of information on the Utility’s 
sheets. 

Utility As Builts: 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
July 18, 2022 
Page 6 of 8 
 

 
 

40. I am not seeing any way to locate any of the utilities on the ground.  They should refer to the 
Town standards for requirements for as builts. For example, plans need stations and depths (at 
tap and at curb stop)  for water services from water valves and station and depths at main and 
clean out for sewer services from manholes.  They should have swing ties to valves, fittings, and 
manholes, etc. Some of this info can be provided in tabular form to keep the drawings from being 
too cluttered and somehow combined with the info on the As built surveyed sheets.  We also need 
cad and shape files once the as builts are complete. Please see “As-Built” – Surveyed Plat as noted 
in line 38 above. 

41. Did not find plan and profile sheets including as as builts. Please see page U-1.2 of the Civil 
drawings for profile change to Sewer Line VP-1. 

42. Are the distances, slopes, changes in depth, and manhole angles shown on the as builts design 
data or as constructed data.  The latter is required. Please see “As-Built – Surveyed Plat as noted 
in line 38 above. 
 

43. For clarify the main line irrigation should be the same color as the distribution irrigation lines, not 
the same color as the potable water line. Please note that the irrigation line has a different format 
than water line… and we don’t have another color available. 

44. Did not find storm water shown on the as builts. Storm water is per original plan and included in 
latest as builts submittal. 

45. The design utility plans show gas service to every lot.  The As builts show no gas to the 
development.  Did they not extend gas to the lots?  If so, did the Town approve that change?  Gas 
is a utility that is supposed to be in place before final plat (not covered by SIA). Please see response 
to #32 above. 

46. The electrical lines shown on the as builts deviate quite a bit from the design drawings.  A major 
change is that the service lines to each building were previously shown separated enough that you 
could likely access one service line without damaging the other.  Now most are shown very close 
together.  I am not aware of the Town having approved these changes. The electric systems are 
designed by San Miguel Power… San Miguel Power supervised & inspected the complete 
installation, for alignment & depths, and would not have authorized our power to be turned on if 
there was any problem… SMPA also owns the system.  The locations of lines, transformers, 
pedestals are all shown and located on the civil drawings. 

47. There are several different electrical line types on the plans.  These should each be defined in the 
legend. Primary lines are shown with longer dashed line – Secondary lines are shown with close 
dashed lines and reflected in the legend. 

48. A very significant change in electrical layout is the addition of electrical service lines in the easement 
for VP line 3 sewer line.  What is the separation between the electrical and sewer.  I don’t believe 
the Town approved adding the electrical to this easement. These service lines are secondary… and 
have more than 5’ separation from sewer, as required, inspected by San Miguel Power and Mike 
Jenkins on behalf of the town. 

49. Are lots 16 and 17 served off a single electrical service line most of the way to lot lines.  If so what 
are the maintenance arrangements? Lots 16 & 17 are served by 1 secondary common line to a pull 
box, as all other lots, One pull box serves 2 homes in all cases.  This was designed, inspected, and 
approved by San Miguel Power who is also responsible for maintenance. 

50. How close are the electrical service lines to the irrigation service lines in various locations? No 
closer than 3’ in 2 locations near Lot 17 easements… the balance of Irrigation lines are located 
from 32’-55’ from electric service lines. 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
July 18, 2022 
Page 7 of 8 
 

 
 

51. At least some of the rear setback lines are also utility easement lines.  Where that is the case 
should both be called out? These are shown on the Civil Plans – Pages S-1, S-1.2, S-1.3. 

52. Irrigation layout also looks to deviate from the design layout in places.  What is the separation 
between the potable water services and the irrigation services for Lots 22 and 23? Irrigation Main 
Line Loop Layout – Changes are shown on page U-1 of Civil Drawings.  The irrigation line crosses 
perpendicular to the Potable Water Lines with the Potable at 5’ depth and 18” depth for the 
irrigation line… giving us a 3’6” vertical separation… as required. 

53. It looks like two lots are served from a single irrigation box.  If that is the case is there a joint 
maintenance agreement? The irrigation Line is owned by the HOA, by which all houses are served 
and will be maintained by the HOA. 

54. These docs will need a top down review again when they are closer to what is required.  There is 
so much that needs done now, some things were likely missed.  Also I did not look at the docs not 
listed above. Submitting 12-7-22. 

55. Please let me know if you have questions or would like this in a different format. (Did not think 
there would be this much when I started). 

REDLINE COMMENTS: 

56. Please review and provide adequate amendments to address all redline comments in the attached 
documents. 

• Redlines on plat referred to here: 

Page 1- Addressed and corrected in revised plat dated 12-7-2022. 

Page 2 – No redlines therefore no changes required. 
Page 3 & 4 -   

All building setbacks and coordinates are complete, as agreed to by TJ Dlubac on 
11-18-2022. 
The 4” service lateral to the main building traverses property owned by the HOA 
and the main building is also owned by the HOA (common owners) and therefore 
no easement is necessary.  

The Greenbelt issue is dealt with in Item #18 above. 
The fire hydrant issue has a designated easement as shown on the revised plat 
dated 12-7-22. 

-  

Please provide a written response detailing how each of the comments provided are being addressed in 
addition to making necessary amendments to the submittal materials. Upon resubmittal of these 
documents, a second round of review by town staff and consultants will be necessary prior to the application 
being scheduled for consideration by the Town of Ridgway Planning Commission at a public hearing. 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to reach out to me at (970) 744-0623 or 
TDlubac@PlanStrategize.com. 

We look forward to receiving the revised documents and bringing this project to fruition. 

 
Sincerely, 

COMMUNITY PLANNING STRATEGIES, LLC 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
July 18, 2022 
Page 8 of 8 
 

 
 

 
TJ Dlubac, AICP 
Contracted Town Planner 

 
Encl: CPS Final Plat Redlines 

Combined SIA Redlines 

 
Cc: Jack Young, Vista Park Commons, LLC 

Preston Neill, Town of Ridgway Town Manager 
Joanne Fagan, Town of Ridgway Town Engineer 



 

  Community Planning Strategies, LLC 
970.368.3114     www.PlanStrategize.com 

 
January 20, 2023 
 
J. David Reed 
Dufford Waldeck Law 
510 South Cascade Ave 
Montrose, CO  81401 
 
 E-Mail:  reed@dwmk.com 

RE: Vista Park Commons/ Replat of Lots 30-34 Ridgway Land Company Subdivision 
Final Plat Review 

Good Morning: 
The above-mentioned application and supplemental materials were reviewed by Community Planning 
Strategies (CPS) and Town Staff. The enclosed comments represent the findings of the review against 
applicable Town of Ridgway (Town) development and land use regulations. 
The following items must be addressed and resubmitted to the Town to be reviewed and evaluated: 
PLANNING REVIEW COMMENTS: 
Final Plat: 

1. Provide the below Certificate of Ownership and Dedication: 
CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION:  
Know all persons by these presents: [Owner Name], a Colorado [corporate structure] 
(“Owner”), being the owner of the land described as follows:  
[Legal description of property], County Of Ouray, State Of Colorado (“Property”), has laid 
out, platted and subdivided same as shown on this plat under the name of [subdivision 
name], and by these presents does hereby dedicate to the perpetual use of the Town of 
Ridgway, Ouray County, Colorado, the streets, alleys, roads, and other public areas as 
shown and designated for dedication hereon and hereby dedicate those portions of land 
labeled as utility easements for the installation and maintenance of public utilities as shown 
hereon.  
In witness hereof Owner has executed this Plat effective as of _______________, 202__.  
[Owner Name], a Colorado [corporate structure].  
By: ______________________________  
Printed Name: _____________________  
Title: ____________________________  

Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal:  Thank you for adding the above 
note. Upon further evaluation of this standard note, the Town has amended the standard certificate 
of ownership and dedication to be slightly amended. Please amend the certificate as follows: 

“[Legal description of property], County Of Ouray, State Of Colorado (“Property”), has laid out, 
platted and subdivided same as shown on this plat under the name of [subdivision name], and by 
these presents does hereby dedicate to the perpetual use of the Town of Ridgway, Ouray County, 
Colorado, the streets, alleys, roads, and other public areas as shown and designated for dedication 
hereon and hereby dedicate those portions of land labeled as utility easements for the installation 
and maintenance of public utilities as shown hereon.” 

 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
January 20, 2023 
Page 2 of 9 
 

 
 

2. Modify the Attorney’s Certificate to read as follows: 
ATTORNEYS CERTIFICATE:  
I, ________________, an attorney at law duly licensed to practice before the courts of 
record of Colorado, do hereby certify that I have examined the Title Commitment Order 
Number ______________ effective as of _____________ at __:___ __.M. issued by 
__________________ and according to that title commitment, of all land herein platted 
and that title to such land is in the dedicator(s) and owners, and that based upon my 
review of said title commitment, the property dedicated hereon has been dedicated free 
and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except as follows:  
Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__.  
_____________________________________________________________________  
 [legal counsel Name]   , Attorney at Law 

 Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal:  Comment addressed. 

3. Modify the Lien Holder’s Certificates to read: 
LIENHOLDER’S AFFIDAV IT 
Before a Notary Public, duly qualified and acting in and for said town, county, and state, 
appeared _________ known by official government-issued photograph identification to be 
the affiant herein, who stated the following under oath: 
The undersigned holder of a lien pursuant to an instrument recorded in the Ouray County 
records at Reception No. ___________________, hereby joins in this subdivision, any 
applicable subdivision improvement agreement, and the declaration of easements, 
property, and streets as shown hereon. 

Lien Holder:   
Name:   
Title:   

 Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

4. Correct the Engineer’s Certificate to add the word “and” before “are adequate to serve...” in the 
last sentence and remove “Registration Number” from the signature line. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

5. Modify the Certificate of Improvement Completion to read as follows: 
CERTIFICATE OF IMPROVEMENTS COMPLETION:  
The undersigned, Town Manager of the Town of Ridgway, certifies that all required 
improvements and utilities are installed, available, and adequate to serve each lot in the 
_______________ Subdivision.  
Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__.  
By:  _____________________________________________  

Preston Neill, Town of Ridgway Town Manager 
 Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

6. Modify the Surveyor’s Certificate to read as follows 
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE  
I, [Surveyor’s Name], being a Registered Lan Surveyor in the State of Colorado do hereby 
certify that this plat was prepared under my direct supervision and that said survey is true 
and accurate to the best of my knowledge, conforms to all requirements of the Colorado 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
January 20, 2023 
Page 3 of 9 
 

 
 

Revised Statute, and all applicable Town of Ridgway regulations, and that all required 
monuments have been set as shown.  
__________________________________  
[Surveyor’s Name] PLS. [PLS Number] 

Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

7. Modify the Planning Commission Certificate to read as follows: 
PLANNING COMMISSION:  
Recommended for approval by the Planning Commission this _____________________ 
day of _________________________________, 202__.  
By:  _____________________________________________  

Michelle Montague, Town of Ridgway Planning Commission Chairperson 
 Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

8. Modify the Town Council Certificate to read as follows: 
TOWN COUNCIL:  
Approved by the Town Council this _______________day of 
_____________________________, 202__.  
By:  _____________________________________________  

John Clark, Town of Ridgway Mayor 
 Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed 

9. Modify the Town Attorney’s Certificate to read as follows: 
APPROVAL OF TOWN ATTORNEY:  
Approved for recording with the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder’s Office this 
_______________day of _________________________________, 202__.  
By:  _____________________________________________,  

Bo Nerlin, Town of Ridgway Town Attorney 
 Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed 

10. Modify the Treasurer's Certificate to read as follows: 
TREASURERS CERTIFICATE:  
According to the records of the County of Ouray Treasurer there are no liens against this 
subdivision or any part thereof for unpaid state, county municipal or local taxes or special 
assessments due and payable.  
Dated this __________________day of_____________________, 202__.  
By:  _______________________________________________________  
Jill Mihelich, Ouray County Treasurer 

 Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

11. Note 8a: The sentence as written doesn’t make sense. Please modify to clearly state the intention 
of the note. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

  



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
January 20, 2023 
Page 4 of 9 
 

 
 

12. Provide a note with total acreage of easements and other property dedicated for public use. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: This note was not noticed in our 
review. Please point out the page number and location of where this comment was addressed. 

13. Provide a plat note stating ownership, usage and maintenance provisions for Tract A.  
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

14. Add a note stating “All construction will conform with Ridgway Municipal Code. “ 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

15. Modify Note 7 to read, “Outdoor Lighting; All outdoor lighting shall conform to Ridgway Municipal 
Code Section 6-5 "Outdoor Lighting regulations", as may be amended. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

16. Add a note stating, “All provisions of the Ridgway Municipal Code, as adjusted from time to time, 
apply to this property with the exception of those explicitly provided for in the ________________ 
PUD. Where there is a conflict between the provisions of the Ridgway Municipal Code and the 
provisions of this PUD, this PUD shall prevail.” 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

17. Please provide a scale for all dimensions and not just contours. Scale must be at no less than 1” 
equals 100 feet. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: The numbers of the scale bar 
are still not shown on Sheet 2. Please update the scale bar to be similar to the scale bar identified 
on Sheet 3. 

18. Provide two separate defined easements for the sewer and water mains. If these two easements 
are to be or have been defined by a separate easement document, please reference that in the 
notes and on the page. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Thank you for adding the 
easement to Sheet 4 of the Plat set. Since the easement is not overlaid on the utility plan (Sht. U-
1), we are unable to verify that the water line and hydrant are located within the easement. Please 
provide an exhibit or another illustration confirming that the improvements are located within the 
described easement. 

19. Easement and setback dimensions are not consistently or clearly labeled on each lot. Please provide 
leaders from dimension line to measurements in all areas. (See attached redlines for more 
explanation.) 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

20. The “Access and Utility Easement” for Lot 17 needs to be dimensioned and a note added regarding 
maintenance provisions. Change the scale of the shading to allow better legibility for information 
within the easement. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

  



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
January 20, 2023 
Page 5 of 9 
 

 
 

21. Label Page 2 “As Platted” and Pages 3 & 4 “As Replatted.” 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Not addressed. Remove “As 
Replatted” note on the top right of Sheets 3 and 4. 

22. Label Redcliff Drive existing right-of-way width. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

Subdivision Improvement Agreement: 

23. The SIA should reference the legal name of the development. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: This comment is being 
addressed through the review and updates to the SIA which are currently being circulated and 
reviewed by the team based on conversations between legal counsel for the Town and the 
developer. Comments provided in this comment letter will be addressed through the review of the 
SIA directly. 

ENGINEERING REVIEW COMMENTS: 
Final Plat: 

24. The easements dedicated to the Town should be the utility easements and the easements that are 
combined utility and drainage. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: The response doesn’t completely 
address the concern raised. This comment should be adequately addressed with the proposed 
amendments to the Certificate of Ownership and Dedication language in Comment #1 of this letter. 

25. Plat Note 9 starting about half way down the note, says that the town is not responsible for damage 
they do as they work on utilities.  I think this should be a separate note.  This was part of the deal 
in allowing town utilities on private property with limited access points to the utility easement.  The 
agreement was that the note cover within and on the way to the utility easement.  
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

26. How are the boundaries of the parking area and the common building and storage units to be 
located on the ground?   Are the bulb outs in the parking design or as constructed? 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed.  

27. Is the relocated ditch shown the plat shown at the design or as constructed location?  The latter is 
required.  
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

28. How does one locate dimensions for the ditch on the ground.  There are bearings and distances 
between the angle points listed but I did not find where it starts.  Would coordinates be a better 
way to lay this out?  If one has a bust somewhere in the layout of the 40 points everything else 
from the oops will be wrong.  
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: The response doesn’t address 
the concern raised. Sheets 3 and 4 currently only identify bearings and distances for each segment 
of the ditch’s centerline. The centerline needs to be “tied” to a monument in order to be duplicated 
and located on the ground. Please provide a “tie” (a bearing and distance from a point on the 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
January 20, 2023 
Page 6 of 9 
 

 
 

centerline of the ditch to a point on the boundary of the plat.) which will allow the centerline to be 
duplicated and located. 

Subdivision Improvement Agreement: 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comments 29 – 37 are being 
addressed through the review and updates to the SIA which are currently being circulated and 
reviewed by the team based on conversations between legal counsel for the Town and the 
developer. Comments provided in this comment letter will be addressed through the review of the 
SIA directly. 

29. Is this our standard form?  I don’t remember there being recitals on our form and other provisions 
seem weird.  If this is not our form, do we want to tell them it needs to be on the Town form? 

30. My questions / comments are in comments and track changes on the attached doc file. 

31. Can’t put comments or edit Exhibit Bo f the SIA.    I read RMC 7.4 etc  SIA (B) (1) to include all 
drainage.   I think that includes getting the curb and gutter installed. The Moody Ditch needs sealed 
to protect from undermining the sewer.  This should be part of the requirements for the sewer. 
Patching the water and sewer crossings to me is part of the utility work and should be done before 
final plat is done.  (Hopefully the C&G, the parking, and the patching are done. ) 

32. The list says gas is complete and says they decided to go all electric.  Was this change approved 
by the Town.  This is supposed to be affordable housing.  Not offering gas could be contrary to 
that goal. 

33. The parking lot improvements should be required to be completed before any buildings get a CO. 
Same with the internal walks.  These are improvements that needed to use the units.  The parking 
is not only parking and the walks are the only way to get stuff from the parking area to the units.  I 
think they should be secured. 

34. Street lighting is a required improvement for final plat.  I believe this should be a secured 
improvement. 

35. Rail fence is part of the landscaping and should be secured. 

36. Don’t know if the landscape numbers are reasonable. 

37. Once we agree on what needs secured (and once we check what has been completed in the last 
few weeks later this week), I can work on whether the dollar amounts listed are reasonable.  

As-built Surveyed 3-22: 

38. Not sure what these sheets are so did not spend much time on them.  Do have the following 
questions for pg 1 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: This noted pages were not found 
in our review. Please point out the page number and location of where this comment was 
addressed. 

39. Noticed that there are point numbers and coordinate for meters, cleanouts, valves, curb stops, 
etc.  Somehow this inform needs to be coordinated with the utility as builts. 

Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
January 20, 2023 
Page 7 of 9 
 

 
 

Utility As Builts: 

40. I am not seeing any way to locate any of the utilities on the ground.  They should refer to the 
Town standards for requirements for as builts. For example, plans need stations and depths (at 
tap and at curb stop)  for water services from water valves and station and depths at main and 
clean out for sewer services from manholes.  They should have swing ties to valves, fittings, and 
manholes, etc. Some of this info can be provided in tabular form to keep the drawings from being 
too cluttered and somehow combined with the info on the As built surveyed sheets.  We also need 
cad and shape files once the as builts are complete.  
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: This noted pages were not found 
in our review. Please point out the page number and location of where this comment was 
addressed. 

41. Did not find plan and profile sheets including as as builts. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

42. Are the distances, slopes, changes in depth, and manhole angles shown on the as builts design 
data or as constructed data.  The latter is required. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: This noted pages were not found 
in our review. Please point out the page number and location of where this comment was 
addressed. 

43. For clarify the main line irrigation should be the same color as the distribution irrigation lines, not 
the same color as the potable water line.  
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

44. Did not find storm water shown on the as builts. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: This noted pages were not found 
in our review. Please point out the page number and location of where this comment was 
addressed. 

45. The design utility plans show gas service to every lot.  The As builts show no gas to the 
development.  Did they not extend gas to the lots?  If so, did the Town approve that change?  Gas 
is a utility that is supposed to be in place before final plat (not covered by SIA). 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

46. The electrical lines shown on the as builts deviate quite a bit from the design drawings.  A major 
change is that the service lines to each building were previously shown separated enough that you 
could likely access one service line without damaging the other.  Now most are shown very close 
together.  I am not aware of the Town having approved these changes. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

47. There are several different electrical line types on the plans.  These should each be defined in the 
legend. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
January 20, 2023 
Page 8 of 9 
 

 
 

48. A very significant change in electrical layout is the addition of electrical service lines in the easement 
for VP line 3 sewer line.  What is the separation between the electrical and sewer.  I don’t believe 
the Town approved adding the electrical to this easement. 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

49. Are lots 16 and 17 served off a single electrical service line most of the way to lot lines.  If so what 
are the maintenance arrangements? 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: The response doesn’t address 
the concern raised. Please describe who is responsible for maintaining the electrical line between 
the transformer and the circle (pedestal?) where the line clearly splits into service lines. Is it SMPA, 
the HOA, or homeowner? Depending on the answer, a plat note may be necessary to ensure the 
responsible party is aware of maintenance obligations. 

50. How close are the electrical service lines to the irrigation service lines in various locations? 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

51. At least some of the rear setback lines are also utility easement lines.  Where that is the case 
should both be called out? 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: The response doesn’t address 
the concern raised. Sheet 3 identifies the northern side of lots as both a 10’ drainage easement 
and a 10’ rear yard setback.  

52. Irrigation layout also looks to deviate from the design layout in places.  What is the separation 
between the potable water services and the irrigation services for Lots 22 and 23? 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

53. It looks like two lots are served from a single irrigation box.  If that is the case is there a joint 
maintenance agreement? 
Town 1/20/2023 Review Response based on 12/7/2022 submittal: Comment addressed. 

COMMENTS RESULTING FROM OUR REVIEW OF RESUBMITTED MATERIALS: 

54. Please remove the “Dedicated to the Town as utility easement” notation on Sheets 3 and 4 in 
relation to the Greenbelt tract to the east and north of this plat boundary (See redlines). This would 
resolve previous concerns with dedicating easements outside of the plat boundary. 

55. The following Comments are related to the landscape plan: 

a. Section 7-7-11(B)(1) of the RMC prohibits cottonwood trees that bear cotton. Please 
confirm that the two species of cottonwood trees being proposed (lance leave cottonwood 
and long leave cotton wood) meet this standard. 

b. There is significant reduction in the amount of area that was originally identified as being 
“seeded grass area” on the Preliminary Plat and area that is proposed with the final plat. 
Please provide calculations on the amount of total landscaped area being provided and the 
amount of both live and non-live ground cover being provided in the landscape plan being 
provided with the final plat. 



 
Town of Ridgway 
Vista Park Commons Final Plat 
January 20, 2023 
Page 9 of 9 
 

 
 

c. The Landscape plan states that 85 trees and 212 shrubs are being proposed. Upon 
counting of each proposed on the submitted plans, it appears that there are 72 trees being 
provided on the area being subdivided, 17 trees in the adjacent greenbelt space, and 163 
shrubs. Please verify the number of trees and shrubs being proposed is accurate.  

d. Required trees cannot be planted on the adjacent greenbelt. Please remove all trees 
depicted on adjacent properties. 

e. Section 7-7-7(E) of the RMC requires species diversity based on the number of required 
trees. Please provide the number of each species being proposed once the numbers are 
updated per comment above and ensure the percentage is in line with the species diversity 
table. 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to reach out to me at (970) 744-0623 or 
TDlubac@PlanStrategize.com. 
We look forward to receiving the revised documents and bringing this project to fruition. 
 
Sincerely, 
COMMUNITY PLANNING STRATEGIES, LLC 

 
TJ Dlubac, AICP 
Contracted Town Planner 
 
Encl: CPS Final Plat Redlines 
 
Cc: Jack Young, Vista Park Commons, LLC 

Joe Nelson, Vista Park Commons, LLC 
Preston Neill, Town of Ridgway Town Manager 
Joanne Fagan, Town of Ridgway Town Engineer 



TDlubac
Callout
What is the scale of the graphic? 1what units equals how many of what units (i.e. 1" = 50')?

TDlubac
Text Box
CPS ReviewJanuary 20, 2023



TDlubac
Callout
Remove

TDlubac
Callout
Amend scale bar on Sheet 2 to mimic this, but ensure scale is correct. 

TDlubac
Text Box
CPS ReviewJanuary 20, 2023

TDlubac
Callout
Remove

TDlubac
Polygon



CPS
Polygon

TDlubac
Callout
Remove

TDlubac
Text Box
CPS ReviewJanuary 20, 2023

TDlubac
Callout
Remove



1 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Subject:  Preliminary Plat Submittal  
Legal:   Ridgway Land Company Subdivision Lots 30-34 
Address:  TBD Redcliff Drive 
Parcel #s:  430516402012, 430516402011, 430516402010, 430516402009, 430516402008 
Zone:  General Commercial  
Applicant:  Vista Park Development. LLC c/o F. Guthrie Castle  
Owners:  Ridgway Land Co. c/o Robert Hunter  
Initiated By:    Shay Coburn, Planner 
Date:     August 9, 2019 
 

BACKGROUND  

Applicant seeks preliminary plat review of 
a proposed subdivision, Vista Park 
Commons. This development is proposed 
to be located the east side of Highway 550 
in the Ridgway Land Company Subdivision. 
The property is accessed from Hunter 
parkway along Redcliff Drive. The 
development will span five existing vacant 
lots encompassing approximately 2.4 acres 
or 106,471 square feet.  
 
The proposed development plan includes 
23 residential units/lots in 21 buildings 
which are mostly stand-alone single-family 
units with 2 duplex buildings. It also 
includes shared parking, storage, open spaces and a community building. This property is zoned General 
Commercial.  
 
The applicant had an informal discussion with the Planning Commission in October of 2016, then two sketch 
plan reviews with the Planning Commission, first on January 3, 2017 then again on August 25, 2017. The 
applicant had a preliminary plat hearing with the Planning Commission July 31, 2018 where the Commission 
continued the hearing until all deficiencies noted in the staff report were addressed. The Applicant then 
returned to the Commission on September 25, 2018 to address some of the deficiencies and to get 
direction in a few key areas, the hearing was continued. The Applicant returned to the Planning Commission 
on June 25, 2019 where the preliminary plat application was recommended for approval to the Town 
Council with all of the conditions in the staff report to be completed before having a hearing with Council. 
While not all of the conditions were addressed, the remaining items are mostly engineering details.  
 
Present with this submittal are the following documents:  

1. Planning & Zoning hearing application 
2. Preliminary plat map (revised after June PC meeting) 

Subject 
property  

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



2 

 

3. Plans including: Site, grading, utilities and civil plans, landscaping, phasing (revised after June PC 
meeting) 

4. Articles of Organization  
5. By-laws of Vista Park Commons HOA 
6. Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Vista Park Commons  
7. Mineral rights certification  
8. Geotechnical Engineering Study 
9. Geologic Hazards and Preliminary Geotechnical Engineering Study  
10. Hydrant location and flow test 
11. Water and sewer flow calculations 
12. Storm water calculations  
13. Irrigation ditch improvement plan (new) 
14. Architectural plan sets  
15. Email from Army Corps regarding relocating the Moody Ditch  
16. Issued CDOT Access Permit  
17. Utility provider letters  
18. Gravelpave2 information (new) 
19. Mail box type and location information (new) 
20. Infrastructure costs and SIA items (new) 

 
This public hearing has been noticed and the property posted.  

CODE REQUIREMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

RMC 7-4-5(B) Preliminary Plat 
 
(1) – (4) Submittal Requirements 
 Substantially conforming. 
 
(5) The preliminary plat shall contain at a minimum the following: 

(a) The name of the subdivision, date of the preparation of the map, name and address of the engineer 
or surveyor preparing the plat, and total area of the subdivision. 
Substantially complete 

 
(b) The scale used and direction of true north. 

 Substantially conforming. 
 
(c) The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed streets, alleys and easements, street lights, 

street signs and other improvements. 

• The easements and dedication language on the plat need to be cleaned up. These easements 
should also be reflected the same on the civil plans. Some things that need to be looked at 
include:  
o The “Dedicated Utility and Drainage Easement” between lots 15 and 16 does not seem to 

be dedicated to the Town and there is a sewer main going through that easement area.  
o The “Dedicated Utility and Drainage Easement” north of lot 21 is to access a sewer main 

running between lots 21 and 21. Not sure that it is properly dedicated to the town.  
o What is 4(ii) “Service and Utility Easements”? I do not see that on the map.  

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



3 

 

o The drainage easement behind lot 20 on page C-1 is not on the plat map. The utility and 
drainage easement north of lot 21 and between lots 21 and 22 on the plat are not on page 
C-1. 

 
(d) The location of water courses, including lakes, swamps, ditches, flood prone areas; the location of 

existing utility lines, pipes, poles, towers, culverts, drains, and drainage ways. 
 Need dimensions, bearings, distances, etc. for the relocated ditch on pages 3 and 4 of the plat map. 

Also ensure it matches the civil plans.  
 
(e) The location, size and dimension of all lots and blocks, and the location of properties and easements 

to be reserved for particular uses or to be dedicated to the Town. 
• Need to fix the rear setback on lot 23 to match between the plat map and the civil set.  
• Development team needs to either call out where separation will be needed between utilities 

or at least enhance the note on U-1 to include specific separation requirements.   
 
(f) Five foot elevation contours at a minimum. 
 Received.  
 
(g) Any building setback lines, height restrictions, or other building or use restrictions. 
 Need to delete the setback lines that continue beyond where needed on lots 18-21.  

 
(h) A vicinity sketch map. 
 Received.  
 
(i) An indication of the total area of streets and alleys, area of lots and area of any property dedicated to 

public or other uses. 
No property is proposed to be dedicated to the Town other than the easements for utilities.  

 
(6) Accompanying the preliminary plat or included upon it shall be plans, drawings or information for the 

following: 
(a) Plans for any proposed sanitary sewer system showing location, grade, pipe sizes and invert 

elevations. 

• The Applicant is proposing a new sanitary sewer main that will loop around the east side of the 
property. This will be dedicated to the Town.  

• Applicant will need to work with Town Public Works staff to identify where the sewer tap is that 
will be used for the common house. The coordinates for this line need to be added to the plans.   

 
(b) Plans for the water system and fire protection system showing locations, pipe sizes, valves, storage 

tanks and fire hydrants. 
• Central walkway and utility easement area – The Town and other utility providers will need to 

get heavy equipment in this area to maintain utilities.  
o The walkway is labeled as 5’ concrete, what is the remainder of the area made of? If a utility 

provider drives in these areas to do maintenance, will the grass have depressions from the 
tires? If so, is there a plat note to address that repairs are the HOA’s responsibility, not the 
utility providers?  

o The slopes on the walkway need to be corrected.  
• Please delete gate valve by lot 10 and add 3 to the tee for the new hydrant to facilitate flushing.  

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



4 

 

• Please add a note to Sheet U-1 that says the coordinates are on U-1.4 and 1.5. It would be helpful 
for U-1.4 and 1.5 to be in color for final documents to town and the contractor.   

• The utilities near lots 17 and 18 are very tight and will be difficult to navigate when maintenance 
is needed. Has the applicant considered switching this duplex on lots 17 and 18 with a single 
unit? This could solve the phasing issue with the affordable unit discussed below as well.  

 
(c) Plans for the storm drainage system showing location, pipe sizes, drains, surface drainage ways and 

discharge points. 

• Stormwater Management – The following needs to be addressed:   

• Need adequate information to layout the pond. 

• Need the calculations used to determine the volume of the pond to be constructed and 
the inflow and outflow rates.   

• Need sizing and calculations that demonstrate the correct flows will be detained. Are 
there multiple orifices? What size, elevation, entry conditions?  What is designed to 
come out of each with how much head? Etc.  Please clarify the note on sheet C-1 about 
the 4” outlet control.   

• Revised calculations that: 
o Assume no detention in the Moody Ditch 
o Show the amount of paved surface that will drain to the inlet on Redcliff. (The 

area looks to be 14,840 using 28’ wide by 530’ long). 

• The volume of the Moody Ditch in the calculations is a 3 ft x 1 ft rectangle. That is not 
consistent with shape shown in the cross sections.  Please clarify taking into account 
what the contractor can build, how the liner needs to be installed and what the shape 
will look like after water runs through it. 

• Provide a profile including information of the road structure along the access easement 
for the spillway area.  The concerns include that drip to the spillway not be too steep for 
equipment and that water running through the spillway not erode or otherwise damage 
the road.   

• What are the typical and peak flow in the Moody Ditch?  For peak flow I would assume 
it’s the amount the Ditch is allowed to divert or higher since when there is no call to 
some extent there is no limit on what can be diverted.  Ditch diversion records might be a 
source of this information.   

• The inlet needs to be 4’ x 4’ outside dimension box. 

• As submitted, there does look to be room for the 12” pipe in the inlet box.  Please 
provide a detail for that.  

• Please clarify 12” pipe material.  I am not seeing that it is available in schedule 40.  

• Please provide a profile (or frequent spot elevations including critical points) for the 
Moody ditch from the outfall of the VPC pond to the irrigation pond.  I am not seeing the 
need to lower the culvert under Redcliff, but more information should explain whether or 
not that is needed. 

• Please provide a detail for the EPDM installation that addressed the bedding and 
anchoring.  Also address how the ditch can be cleaned with liner installed.   

• Please provide curve information to layout the ditch between the spot elevations.   

• Sewer easement area –  
o Please provide the depth of cover proposed for the 4” pipes through the sewer easement.  

Spot elevations can be provided for each lot.  Concerns include depth of cover for the pipe 
and whether the pipes will daylight above the normal high flows in the ditch.   

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



5 

 

o Please provide the pipe material type and bedding proposed for the 4” pipes.  The concern 
is that heavy equipment not crush the pipes. 

o The detail for the retaining wall shows the swale between the lots draining into the screen 
rock behind the wall.  Please explain whether that as the screen rock silts in it will adversely 
impact the retaining wall.   

o The developer should confirm that the height the retaining wall does not exceed the three 
tiers referenced on the plans.   

o What is the foundation for the retaining wall?  How is the wall restrained?  What drains the 
moisture that accumulates behind the wall away from the drain swales? 

o The topo lines on the north side of the ditch show an 80 contour at the edge of the access 
road and a flow line of +/- 75.  Scaling the length this works out to be steeper than 1:1 
against the edge of the road.  That is extreme steep for slope against a road raising erosion 
and safety concerns.   We thought we had agreed that slope would not be steeper than 4:1.   

o There are discrepancies between the S and C sheets for the road structure for the 
easement. When staff met with the development team, it was decided that the plans 
would call for 12” of Class 2, but that Town staff would check the subbase material and if it 
is pit run material the Town would allow the 12 to be reduced to 6” of Class 2. Please be 
sure all the plan locations that shown the sewer easement structure reflect that. In 
reviewing the parking lot structure, Town staff is wondering if the grasspave material and 
structure would be a good solution for the sewer easement.   

o The cross slope for the sewer easement says 2% (5% maximum).  Please clarify how the 
contractor know what to building where trying to keep the slope as close to 3% as possible.     

o Need to verify location of water line in Redcliff Drive near the greenbelt to ensure the ditch 
relocation can work okay.  

• The development team said they would add a drain box to the south side of the south bulbout 
in the parking area to facilitate draining but staff is not finding it on the plans.  
 

(d) Plans for proposed streets, alleys, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, lighting, bikepaths and walkways 
showing the grade and cross section, and plans for any other proposed public improvements. (Ord 12-
2008) 
• No public streets are proposed. 
• Planning Commission recommends that the 5.5’ to 6’ sidewalks be approved. While our 

standards require 8’ minimum width in the General Commercial district and 5’ for residential 
districts. This is a residential development so the 5.5’-6’ width seemed adequate to the 
Commission.  

• Add a note to the plans that the detectable warnings are cast-iron. Please provide spot 
elevations on the corners of the ADA ramps that show that the ADA slope will not be exceeded. 

• Along Redcliff Drive right-of-way, the slopes for the asphalt to face of gutter are not accurate 
for how it can be built. The curb and gutter should be built first so the asphalt can be built 
accordingly matching the face of the gutter and the existing asphalt.  

• Need elevations on all corners of the valley pans and at the grade break for the sidewalk. Please 
delete the sidewalk portion of the typical drawing on sheet C-1 and just call out the sidewalk as 
6” thick with fiber mesh. 

• More information is needed to layout and build this project. For example, there are still a lot of 
places with coordinate and no elevations and vice versa.    

• Need dimensions to define curves along the parking area and the Redcliff Drive right-of-way.  
 

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



6 

 

(e) The subdivider shall send a notice, at least 30 days prior to the Planning Commission’s hearing or 
consideration, to mineral estate owners, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or a nationally 
recognized overnight courier, in accordance with the requirements of CRS 24-65.5-103(1). A copy of 
the notice shall be given to the Town along with the subdividers certification of compliance with said 
notification requirements. Provided this notice is not required if notice was previously sent and such 
certification previously provided with respect to the same surface development, or the application is 
only for platting an additional single lot, unless a mineral estate owner has requested notice pursuant 
to CRS 24-6-402(7). (Ord 4-2009) 

 Substantially met.  
 
(f) Any proposed covenants, condominium declaration or articles of incorporation and by-laws for any 

homeowners' association, or contracts for maintenance of improvements. 

• The declarations will need a final review by the Town Attorney.  

• The Applicant agreed to do a maintenance agreement with RUSA for the sewer easement area 
and the ditch.  Applicant is still working on this. Will want to cross reference on plat and record 
with final plat. 

 
(g) A soils report prepared by a geologist or licensed qualified engineer which addresses building 

foundation design requirements shall be submitted where geologic hazards and considerations 
dictate the need for such analysis. 
• How will the required ADA aisles in the parking area be marked? How will all parking spaces be 

marked? Need to add note on section that aggregate subbase needs to be compacted to 95% 
standard proctor. Has to be stapled properly and filled properly.   
 

 (h) Written approval or access permit from the State Department of Highways for any access to 
highways under its jurisdiction, directly from any lot and for any new street serving the subdivision 
which intersects with a State highway. 

 Town Staff worked with the applicant to submit for Access Permit. The permit was received from 
CODT with a notice to proceed and no additional improvements were necessary.   

 
(i) Estimated water consumption and sewage generation. 
 Substantially complete.   
 
(j) Description of any geologic hazards. 
 Substantially complete. 
 
(k) Landscape plans and, as appropriate, irrigation plans. (Ord 12-2008) 

Is the irrigation line already to the property or the greenbelt? If not, how will it get there? Note that 
the applicant mentioned to staff that they would like to install their own pump from the pond to run 
their irrigation system. Staff has not seen any plans for this and believes that these details will need 
to be worked through with the RUSA to install the pump and ensure there are proper easements for 
lines.   

 
(l) A list of proposed uses for each lot consistent with Town Zoning Regulations. (Ord 12-2008) 
 See Zoning Regulations section below as the applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the 

residential uses in the General Commercial district.  
 
(7) Repealed by Ord 4-2009 

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



7 

 

 
(8) The Planning Commission may approve, conditionally approve or disapprove the preliminary plat. It may 

continue its consideration of the plat to another meeting when additional time is needed, or to allow the 
subdivider time to revise or supplement the plan to bring it into compliance with these regulations or 
proposed conditions of approval. The reason for continuance, disapproval, or any conditions of approval, 
shall be included in the minutes of the Planning Commission's proceedings and provided to the subdivider 
in writing upon request. Consideration of the matter may also be continued upon the subdividers request. 
The plat may be disapproved if it or the proposed improvements and required submittals are inadequate 
or do not comply with the requirements of these Regulations. (Ord 12-2008) 

 
(9) The Planning Commission's decision shall be submitted to the Town Council as a recommendation along 

with the plat for review at its next regular meeting. The Town Council shall issue its decision approving, 
conditionally approving or disapproving the plat, based upon compliance with the provisions of these 
regulations. The Town Council may continue its consideration of the preliminary plat until such time as 
proposed conditions for approval, are met by the subdivider. (Ord 12-2008) 

 
(10) Except as otherwise expressly provided by the Town Council, all conditions of approval shall be met 

within 90 days of such approval or the plat shall be deemed disapproved. 
 
 
RMC 7-4-6 Required Improvements  
There are a number of improvements that are required with subdivision in this section. Staff is highlighting 
only a portion of these requirements here: 
 
(A)(5) Electricity, telephone and CATV.  

• The letters from the utility providers approving the plans are from the first few months of this year. If 
the layout for gas and electric have changed since these letters were provided, it is important that the 
utility providers review and approve the most recent utility layouts.  

• Need to ensure that there is enough room around the pull boxes for maintenance. For example, can a 
backhoe get to the box and/or the utilities surrounding to do maintenance? At least 2’ of separation 
from other utilities is needed.  Add note to plans that the pull boxes are flush with the ground and HS 
20 traffic rated.  

• The electrical lines for the bollards should be shown on page U-1 to understand any potential conflicts. 
The Applicant should confirm that there are no conflicts with other utilities (i.e., a bollard on top of a 
water main) 

 
 
(A)(6) Streets within and adjacent to the subdivision as necessary to provide access to each lot.  Existing 
streets maintained by the Town for public use shall be improved by the subdivider to the extent necessary 
to provide access to abutting lots and to provide proper drainage, grade and sidewalk grade.  Streets shall 
be paved in circumstances where required by Town street specifications.  Streets shall be dedicated to the 
Town. 
This development team is proposing to pave the area between the existing pavement and their property 
line along the Redcliff Drive right-of-way. They are also proposing a sidewalk.  
 
(B) Subdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) 
In part, this section reads as follows in Sections (1) and (2): 
 

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



8 

 

(1) No final plat shall be approved or recorded until the subdivider has properly completed, and the Town 
has approved, the street base, lights and traffic control devices, and water, sewer, electricity, gas, telephone, 
and drainage system as adequate to serve each lot, and has submitted, and the Town Council has approved, 
a Subdivision Improvements Agreement guaranteeing construction of all other required improvements and 
as-builts therefore,  which have not previously been completed and approved by the Town.  The Subdivision 
Improvements Agreement shall list the improvements to be made and as builts required, estimated costs, 
and completion dates.                    
Applicant should note this requirement.                   
 
(2) All improvements shall be completed and accepted within 2 years following approval of the final plat 
by the Town, unless a longer interval is provided for in the Subdivision Improvements Agreement. 
The Applicants submitted a draft budget with items marked for an SIA today. Town staff has not yet 
reviewed this document but will to be sure that what is being proposed is allowed by the RMC. SIAs do not 
happen until final plat.   
 
 
RMC 7-4-7 Design Standards  
There are a number of standards required in this section. Staff is highlighting only a portion of these 
Standards here as most of them have been addressed elsewhere in this report: 
 
RMC 7-4-7(J) Plat Notes: This section addresses plat notes required by the Town.  
 

• Note 10 – seems like this note should be for all drainage easements, not just the non-public ones.    
 
RMC 7-3-11 Planned Unit Developments 
 
This section provides flexibility with respect to dimensional requirements, allows for increased density, and 
clustered residential developments.  
 
Per RMC §7-3-11(D) below, the development may deviate from the required dimensional standards as part 
of a PUD.  
(D) Dimensional Requirements and Densities: 

(1) The dimensional requirements, which would otherwise be required by Town Zoning Regulations, or 
other Town regulations for the district affected, may be deviated from in accordance with the Plan 
as approved, if the Town determines that such deviations will promote the public health, safety and 
welfare. (Ord 3-2008) 

(2) The number of units allowed in a residential PUD shall be generally the same as would have been 
allowed without clustering, taking into account minimum lot sizes and areas which would have to be 
dedicated for streets and other public uses, if the property had been developed or subdivided without 
clustering. Provided, however, the Town may allow additional residential units if it determines that 
by so doing, significant public benefits will be provided which might not otherwise be available, such 
as significant affordable housing, public open space, public recreational amenities or off site public 
infrastructure improvements. (Ord 3-2008) 

 
The following is a list of conditional uses, variances and deviations requested with this preliminary plat:  

1. Use: requesting conditional use for single-family and duplex residential uses in the GC district. 

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



9 

 

2. Lot width: 30’ min. required in GC. Requesting variance for about six lots that are less than 30’ 
wide.  This is difficult to measure as it cannot be measured per public street frontage as our code 
describes.  

3. Lot size: requesting variance to minimum lot size of 5,000 sq. ft. - lots range from 1,484 to 3,181 
sq. ft. Counting all common space the density is one unit per 4,621 square feet.  

4. Lot coverage: 50% max. No requests, it appears to be about 18-38% for individual lots.   
5. Setbacks:   

o Front setbacks 15’ min. They range from 1’ to 12’ with most at 7’. Requesting a variance for 
almost all lots.  

o Side setbacks are fairly consistent at about 4.5’ with a few as little as 0’ for the duplex units, 
to 1’ and up to as large as 10’. The minimum is 8’, requesting a variance for nearly all lots.  

o Rear setbacks are generally about 10’. The minimum is 8’. Requesting a variance for units 21, 
22 and 23 to have reduced rear setbacks (as small as 4’). 

6. Parking: This development is required to provide 40 spaces based on the requirements of the 
code, six units require only 1 space. They are providing 44 spaces inclusive of 4 ADA compliant 
spaces. 20 “visitor” or on-street spaces will be provided in the public right-of-way and more could 
be accommodated if the Planning Commission feels they are necessary.  

7. Single-family home design standards:  
o Minimum width: unit B-2 does not fully enclose a 21’ by 24’ rectangle as required. The 

Applicant is requesting a deviation for the two B-2 units.  
o Roof pitch: requesting a deviation for the roof pitch of the storage unit buildings to be 2:12 

rather than the required 3:12. The design of these units must also be deemed by the Planning 
Commission to be of the same architectural style and of similar or compatible materials. If 
not, another deviation request will need to be included here.  

o Landscaping: It appears as if all lots are close to the 50% min. required live vegetation in the 
front and street side yards. It is difficult to measure as there are curvy lines and no 
measurements. Lot 23 may be the only one not compliant with that standard.  

 
Per previous hearings with the Commission, the Commission negotiated for two affordable housing deed 
restricted units due to an increase in density. The proposal is to build one of the units in the first phase and 
the phase for the 2nd unit is unclear. The Plat note that the Town sent the Applicant requested that the 2nd 
unit be built in the 2nd phase. The plat note was updated to reflect this change but the phasing plan still 
reflects that the 2nd unit will be built as part of phase 3. This needs to be clarified. Switching the duplex on 
lot 17 and 18 with another single unit as discussed above could help solve this problem.  
 
Commercial Design Guidelines  
 
In the General Commercial district, parking areas larger than 20 spaces are required to incorporate 
mitigation and site planning techniques from the commercial design guidelines. Here is a quick summary 
of those guidelines:   

• Parking should be sited to the rear or sides of buildings to provide least visual impact. This standard 
will NOT be met.  

• Trees should be incorporated for shading. This standard will not really be met as there are not 
many trees within the parking area, just a few on edges.  

• Must use landscaped/grass catchment area to manage, control and filter parking lot drainage - 
retention areas are included in the NW side of the property.  

• Includes a bike parking area near common building. 
 

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



10 

 

The submitted architectural plans for all of the units, common building and storage areas will be recorded 
as part of this PUD approval.  
 
The development team has confirmed that the trash area will be screened on page S-1.  
 
Misc. Comments and Edits  
 
Small edits to be completed:  

• There are still some discrepancies between the manhole coordinates, the distance between 
manholes, and the slopes between manholes.   On the P4 line, it looks like the distance and slope 
are reversed between P4A and P4B. When this is corrected the slope will be less than 0.5% so the 
slope should be increased to 0.5%.   Between P4B and P4C, it looks like the designer copied the 
previous texted and did not change the content. It should be 61.51’ and the slope will change to 
adjust for the previous item.   Between P4C and P4D there looks to be an error in the math between 
the coordinates and the line distance. We calculate 289.49’ @0.525% slope.  When the slope in 
the first leg is corrected the rest of the invert elevations and/or slopes will need to be adjusted.  On 
the PA1 between PA1B and PA1C we calculate a slope of 0.523% and between PA1C and PA1D the 
coordinate distance comes out 121.25 not 122.25’.    

• Confirm that this proposed development is in compliance with Ridgway Land Co. and Ridgway USA 
covenants. Town has not yet checked this. Applicant stated that the Decs were drafted having 
studied the Master Plat and Master Dec, and the Dec was drafted to be in compliance with the 
same.   

• Applicant has worked out a plan with the USPS regarding type and location of mail boxes. This plan 
has not yet been reflected on the site plans and will need to be. Where the bus stop is located, the 
slope is roughly 6%; while the Applicant has confirmed that the bus stop location will not be used 
at this time, it may be good for the applicant to check with the school to be sure that could work. 
We also discussed adding a “No Parking” sign in the bus stop location to be sure it remains open. 
This is not on the plans.  

• Applicant said the common areas will all be ADA compliant but not every unit. This is their 
liability.  

• Plat page 1:  
o Note 5d, 3rd line has a typo – “lease” should be “least”.  
o Note 5e needs a period at the end. 
o Not 5g, last line – “it” should be “if”. 
o Note 6 October 10th should be changed to October 9th. 
o Note 11 appears to have been cut off, please complete it.  

• Page 4 of the plat- delete extra word under drainage easement the key.  

• Regarding the Redcliff Drive ROW  
o On the curb and gutter typical drawing, please clarify what slope and width of the gutter 

is proposed.   
o The slopes for the new asphalt between the gutter and existing pavement do not reflect 

that the gutter has a fixed slope.  There are also errors in the slope calculations listed.  
Rather than continue to correct these, we recommend that the Contractor construct the 
gutter to grade and then use a uniform grade between the existing edge of asphalt to the 
lip of gutter as described above.   

o Please provide curve information for flow line so that the curb and gutter can be 
correctly laid out. 

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



11 

 

o Please add coordinate and curve information to layout the parking area horseshoe 
(curves), the trash areas, mailbox, bulbouts.   

o Please add a note on sheet C-1.1 that the compaction of the class 2 gravelpave needs to 
be to 95% modified proctor and a note the gravelpave needs to be installed in strict 
accordance with manufacturer recommendations.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION  

Based on the 2019 Master Plan and recent community conversations, this development seems to be well 
suited for the community given the need for more housing options and ones at lower price.  
 
Given the complexity and density of this project, it is extremely important to discuss the details of this plan 
and be sure that all details are worked out before this preliminary plat is approved and construction starts. 
Staff recommends approval with the condition that all items in this staff report are addressed. Per RMC 7-
4-5(B)(10) all conditions of approval shall be met within 90 days of such approval or the plat shall be 
deemed disapproved.   
 
This is a significant development review for which a number of modifications and decisions are needed. 
While we have done our best to insure a complete and accurate report, this is complex and there may be 
some omissions or oversights here that will need addressed in the final review.  

 

Property posted from Redcliff Drive, looking northeast  
 

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



12 

 

Property posted from Redcliff Drive, looking southeast  

Vista Park Commons Preliminary Plat & PUD 
Town Council Staff Report August 14, 2019



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
 



 

 

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 

VISTA PARK COMMONS 

 

This Subdivision Improvement Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of February 8, 

2023 (the “Effective Date”) is made by and between TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, a 

home-rule municipality under the laws of the State of Colorado (the “Town”), and VISTA PARK 

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Vista Park”). The Town and Vista 

Park shall individually be referred to herein as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 

 

WHEREAS Vista Park is the owner of the following real property: Lots 30 – 34 of the 

final plat of the Ridgway Land Company Subdivision, according to the recorded plat filed October 

9, 1990 at Reception No. 147701, Town of Ridgway, Ouray County, Colorado (the “Property”); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Vista Park prepared and submitted a final plat for a planned unit development 

in accordance with Section 7-4-11 of the Town of Ridgway Municipal Code (the “Municipal 

Code”) on the Property: VISTA PARK COMMONS – P.U.D. – REPLAT OF LOTS 30-34, 

RIDGWAY LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION (the “Final Plat”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Vista Park submitted the Final Plat to the Town on January ___, 2023; and   

 

WHEREAS, Vista Park desires to install certain required? improvements subsequent to 

the Town’s approval of the Final Plat; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town is willing to allow Vista Park to proceed with the installation of 

certain require? improvements in accordance with this Agreement.   

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, and other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 

Parties agree as follows; 

 

1. Compliance With The Town Approvals and Town Acknowledgement of 

Approvals.  Vista Park agrees to comply with each of the terms and conditions of the Final Plat 

and this Agreement and any other site specific approvals for the Project and the applicable 

provisions of the Municipal Code.  This Agreement shall be recorded and run with the Property.   

 

2. Outstanding Infrastructure Improvements.   Vista Park is required to undertake 

and complete certain infrastructure improvements in accordance with the Town Code and the 

Town’s Standard Specification and Typical Drawings for Infrastructure Construction (“Town 

Standards”). The Town is willing to allow Vista Park to complete certain infrastructure 

improvements subsequent to the Town’s approval of the Final Plat, as further detailed on Exhibit 

A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Pursuant to Section 7-4-6(B) of the Town Code, the 

outstanding improvements shall be complete in two years, or by February 7, 2025.   

 

3. Irrevocable letter of Credit.  In order to meet certain timeframes and deadlines 

which have been established by Vista Park, the Town is willing to issue a limited building permit 



 

 

for the Project, which shall be issued prior to Vista Park completing certain required improvements 

and conditions under the Town Design Guidelines, Town Standards, Municipal Code, Preliminary 

Plat and Final Plat.  Based on the remaining Infrastructure Improvements, Vista Park shall provide 

to the Town an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of one and one half times the estimated 

cost, as provided by the Town to complete the Infrastructure Improvements, which the Parties 

agree to the be in the amount of $194,250.00.  The irrevocable letter of credit shall be released 

upon the completion of the Infrastructure Improvements and the satisfaction of all terms of this 

Agreement by Vista Park.  Vista Park shall request an agenda item before the Ridgway Town 

Council in order to receive a release of the irrevocable letter of credit.   

 

4. Representations and Warranties.   

 

i. Town’s Representations and Warranties.  The Town represents and 

warrants that: 

 

(a) Organization and Authority. The Town has the full right and 

has obtained any, and all consents required to authorize the Town to enter into this Agreement, 

consummate the transactions contemplated in this Agreement, and perform its other obligations 

under this Agreement.  

 

(b) Authorization and Execution. This Agreement has been 

authorized and properly executed and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligations of the 

Town, enforceable against the Town in accordance with its terms. 

 

ii. Vista Park Representations and Warranties. Vista Park warrants 

that: 

 

    (a)   Organization and Authority. Vista Park has the full right and 

authority and has obtained any, and all consents required to authorize Vista Park to enter into this 

Agreement, consummate the transactions contemplated in this Agreement, and perform its other 

obligations under this Agreement. 

 

(b)  Authorization and Execution. This Agreement has been 

authorized and properly executed and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligations of Vista 

Park, enforced against Vista Park in accordance with its terms. 

 

5.   Project Completion.  When the Project is substantially completed, the Town, the 

Project Engineer and Vista Park shall conduct an inspection of the Property to ensure compliance 

with the Preliminary Plat, Final Plat, Town Code, Town Standards, and this Agreement.   

 

6. Notices.  All notices, notifications and other communications required or permitted 

by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand or email (with confirmation 

of receipt), to the Parties at their respective addresses listed below 

 

7.  Dispute Resolution.  In the event any dispute between the Parties arises in 

connection with this Agreement, the Parties agree to submit the matter to non-binding mediation 



 

 

or other such alternative dispute measure before filing any litigation claim.  The Parties further 

agree that the non-prevailing Party, as determined by the mediator or adjudicator, shall pay to the 

prevailing Party, in addition to all sums that either Party may be called upon to pay, the prevailing 

Party’s attorneys’ fees (including the costs of in-house counsel) and costs related to prosecuting or 

defending the claim, whether or not an action is filed or prosecuted to judgment. 

 

8.  Modification and Waiver.  No change, modification or waiver of any provision of 

this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless it is evidenced in writing, dated subsequent to the 

date hereof and signed by both Parties hereto.  No waiver of any breach, term or condition of this 

Agreement by any Party shall constitute a subsequent waiver of the same or any other breach, term 

or condition.  

 

9.   Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the internal laws of the State of Colorado, and venue shall lie exclusively in the 

courts located in Ouray County, Colorado. 

 

 10.   Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and 

understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other representations, 

promises, agreements or understandings regarding the subject matter hereof shall be of any force 

or effect unless in writing, executed by both Parties hereto and dated on or after the date hereof. 

 

 11.  Headings.  The headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference 

only and shall not be deemed to limit, characterize or in any way affect the interpretation of any 

provision of this Agreement. 

 

 12. Severability.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained herein for any 

reason shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality 

or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, but this Agreement shall 

be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or provisions had never been 

contained herein. 

 

 13. Warranties of Authority.  The Parties expressly warrant and represent to each 

other that they have the full right, title and authority to enter into this Agreement as provided 

herein, and that no approvals or consents of any other persons, entities or agencies are necessary 

to affect the same. 

 

 14. Counterparts Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all 

of which taken together shall constitute one agreement, and any Party may execute this Agreement 

by signing any such counterpart. 

 

 16. Review.  This Agreement has been carefully read by the Parties, the contents hereof 

are known and understood by the Parties, and it is signed freely by each Party executing this 

Agreement. 

 

 17. No Waiver of Governmental Immunity.   No provision of this Agreement shall 

act or be deemed to be a waiver by the Town or the Town of any provision of the Colorado 



 

 

Governmental Immunity Act, CRS 24-10-101, et seq.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties each have caused these presents to be executed in 

its corporate name and with its official seal hereunto affixed and attested by its duly authorized 

officials; and Vista Park Development, LLC, has caused these presents to be executed by its duly 

authorized officer, as of the date first above written. 

 

 

TOWN: 

 

 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, 

a Colorado home-rule municipality 

 

By:  

 

___________________________________ 

Name:  John Clark 

Title:  Mayor 

 

VISTA PARK:   

 

VISTA PARK DEVELOPMENT, LLC 

a Colorado limited liability company 

By: 

 ___________________________________ 

Name:  Jack Young 

Title:  Managing Member



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   February 2, 2023 
Agenda Topic: Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce presentation on marketing and promotion 

activities and financial status 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY: 
Ashley Perkins, Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce (RACC) Executive Director, will attend Wednesday’s 
meeting to 1) present their proposed 2023 Lodging Tax Budget (Attachment 1), 2) present their 2022 Annual 
Report (Attachment 2), and 3) answer any questions from members of Council. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 1992, the Town’s first Lodging Tax of $1 per night per occupied room was adopted. In 2002, Ridgway voters 
approved changing the Lodging Tax to $2 per night with half the revenues for tourism promotion and the 
other half for mitigating the effects of tourism and growth. In November 2015, the Ridgway electorate 
approved a ballot question changing the Town’s Lodging Tax rate from $2 per room per night to 3.5 percent 
per room per night. In addition, voters agreed that “up to 70% of the proceeds of the Lodging Tax be used 
for tourism promotion and economic development.”  
 
For many years, the Town has partnered with RACC to spearhead tourism promotion, economic 
development, and general marketing efforts as they have the experience, expertise and mission that enable 
it to effectively conduct those activities. Appended to this memo as Attachment 3 is the active Professional 
Services Agreement for marketing and promotion services between the Town and RACC that was approved 
and executed in February 2021. The term runs through December 31, 2023.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – RACC Proposed 2023 Lodging Tax Budget  
Attachment 2 – RACC 2022 Annual Report 
Attachment 3 – Professional Services Agreement between Town and RACC 

 



To: Town of Ridgway
From: Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce
Subject: 2023 Lodging Tax Budget Request
Date: January 27, 2023

Dear Ridgway Town Council,

The Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce gratefully presents the following 2023 Lodging Tax Budget
request. A year-end Lodging Tax P&L statement has been provided with this narrative, which reflects final
2022 Lodging Tax expenditures. The 2022 RACC Annual Report provides the narrative of our 2022
activities.

In 2022, the RACC managed a budget consisting of $101,671 in Lodging Occupancy Tax (LOT) funds
from the Town of Ridgway and Chamber memberships of approximately $11,500. LOT funds were higher
than the 2021 amount of $93,705, while membership payments were approximately the same as in 2021.

The RACC Board made the decision to hire a full-time Executive Director at the end of 2021, as an
important step in improving member relations and addressing economic development requests from the
Town of Ridgway. However, this salaried position increased expenses considerably, compared to the cost
of the past part-time marketing consultant. The Chamber also increased website expenses to improve
functionality. These two budget impacts, along with the cost of maintaining the same level of marketing
and promotions as in past years resulted in a net loss in the budget that was covered by the Chamber’s
reserve funds.

While the reserves helped the organization with important new expenses in 2022, the RACC is making
plans in the 2023 budget to cut expenses back to previous levels. Responsibly building reserves remains
important to the Chamber Board and staff. In addition to cutting expenses, the RACC plans to increase
revenues by applying for grants from the Colorado Tourism Office, state agencies and other funders in
2023.

The 2023 budget request will serve as the operating structure for RACC’s marketing plan for the coming
year. It is designed to ensure that our organizational and community goals are met and that Lodging Tax
funds are leveraged to their maximum potential. The execution of this budget and marketing plan will be
led by the Chamber Executive Director, staff and consultants, with the support and oversight from the
RACC Board of Directors, as well as continued input from the local business and partners, including the
Town of Ridgway.

We are proud of the progress and the experience gained in 2022, which is highlighted in our Annual
Report, and look forward to 2023 being another major step forward. We thank you for your continued
partnership in supporting the Ridgway Chamber and our local business community.

Sincerely,
Adam Dubroff
Adam Dubroff
Board of Directors President
Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce

Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce
150 Racecourse Road, RIdgway CO 81432     1-800-220-4959  970-626-5181 info@RidgwayColorado.com RidgwayColorado.com

ATTACHMENT 1



2023 Lodging Tax Budget

Projected 2023 Lodging Tax Budget

This is the summary of the budget request and categories. A more detailed narrative on each
category can be found below:

Traditional Media and Advertising/Media Relations $6,000
Digital Media and Advertising, including Social Media $11,800
Visitor Center Operations $3,000
Website Upgrades and Operations $12,000
Visitors Guide Fulfillment $4,000
Marketing Collaboration and Networking $1,000
Executive Director $49,000
Colorado Creative Corridor* matching fund obligation $ 2,700
Colorado Tourism Management Grant** matching fund
obligations $5,000
Colorado Stargazing Grant** matching fund obligation $2,500
Visitor Center Redesign $0
Sustainable Tourism $500
Administrative $7,000
Reserve $ 0

TOTAL $102,000

*The RACC will pay $2,700 in matching funds as part of $25,000 in funding from the CTO for the
Colorado Creative Corridor (shared with 4 other communities).
**The CTO Tourism Marketing Management Grant is available for the year 2023, and the RACC would
need to pay $5,000 in matching funds if awarded.
***The RACC pays $2,500 in matching funds for this stargazing marketing grant, which provides a total of
$30,000 in grant-funded marketing and promotion.

2023 Lodging Tax Budget Narrative

Traditional Media Relations and Advertising ($6,000)
In an effort to shift to more digital marketing, QR codes and social media advertising in 2023,
the RACC has limited the previous print media relations and advertisement funding. We will
continue to do media relations in regional and state media such as the Ouray County
Plaindealer, Montrose Mirror, Telluride Daily Planet, Grand Junction TV stations, and radio
stations. We are considering the ROI of marketing and advertising efforts through tourism
publications like San Juan Skyway Magazine and Colorado Life Magazine. Our goal is to
continue to invest evenly across the Chamber’s five marketing themes ie. outdoor adventure,
arts and entertainment, history and heritage, health and wellness, culinary experiences which
are meant to capture the various assets, activities and attractions that bring visitors to Ridgway.
In order to be more conserved with our funds as we move towards re-establishing our marketing
strategy.

ATTACHMENT 1



Online Media and Advertising, including social media ($11,800)
As the RACC continues to devote attention to online marketing and social media platforms the
Chamber Board is pleased to announce our new PR and Marketing Consultant Catherine
Johnson with Captivate Consulting who joined our team in January 2023. The RACC would like
to take this opportunity to thank previous PR and Marketing Consultant Tanya Ishikawa with
BTM who joined the Chamber in 2018 and was intricate over the years in providing the RACC
with exceptional online media and advertising outlets and support.

The RACC continues to focus our attention on increasing visibility to our social media platforms
including Facebook, Instagram and LinkedIn. In addition, the RACC is looking towards offering a
Ridgway Chamber TikTok platform as a media advertising opportunity for this upcoming year.
Currently our Instagram is positioned as a visitor-facing platform by using high quality images
across all five marketing themes mentioned previously. Facebook is currently utilized to support
local events, businesses and tourism-related opportunities and information.

In an effort to prioritize expenses, the RACC will look to advertise our e-Blast’s bi-weekly while
bringing back our quarterly visitor-focused e-newsletter which has been delayed in regards to
other focuses for 2022. These newsletter leads are gathered from a variety of avenues including
GoColorado.com plus email capturing features on our website. The e-newsletter allows us to
better control content that goes to potential visitors again emphasizing on our 5 marketing
themes and off-peak season assets. We plan to integrate responsible travel messaging into the
content in order to further support our low-impact visitor messaging including collaboration with
EcoAction Partners, Save the Blues and other LNT partnerships.

Visitor Center Operations ($3,000)
The RACC Board expects the Ridgway Visitor Center to reopen Memorial Day weekend 2023.
Despite some maintenance mishaps at the Visitors Center building in December 2022 we
expect that facility to be a capable establishment to welcoming visitors to our area this spring.
Led by our Executive Director, whose role also consists of Visitor Center Coordination and
Management, the Chamber plans to function 5 days a week with increased hours by a full staff
of volunteers to limit costs to operations. The cost of operational expenses include utilities such
as water, electricity, trash and internet and provides materials such as physical maps, books and
other educational material for those visiting the Ridgway area.

Website Upgrades and Operations ($12,000)
Since 2017, RidgwayColorado.com continues to be the #1 Google search result for keyword
“Ridgway Colorado.” Josh Gowans of Peak Media Company (PMC) and his team work with the
RACC staff and contractors continue to ensure the RidgwayColorado.com website is an
accessible, top-search result for online information about the Ridgway area. The RACC Board
and staff contracted with PMC in 2022 to build the infrastructure for members to update their
own page content, and the plan is to release this website functionality in 2023.

For 2023, financial support of the RACC website will continue to generate improved content
including information that aligns with high performing keywords and SEO, website organization
to increase usability, increase visibility of local businesses and access for members to edit their
content. This budget category also includes our normal website and technology operations
support, including website, membership and email server technology from partner Peak Media
Company and other support staff.

ATTACHMENT 1



Visitors Guide Fulfillment ($4,000)
Once again the RACC successfully created a Ridgway-centric 2023 Visitors Guide with the
collaboration efforts of consultant Tanya Ishikawa with BT Multimedia and multimedia sales
executive Kelly Bulkley with Ballantine Communications. As costs in print advertisement and
distribution continue to increase, the RACC is setting aside a smaller budget to go towards the
development of a Visitors Guide as a printed version on a smaller scale and more towards
furthering our digital Visitor Guide opportunity. We will lessen our distribution of guides and
further market our digital exposure to our online readers, historically 35,000 physical guides and
digital exposure of approximately 100,00 online readers respectively.

Marketing Collaboration and Networking ($1,000)
This budget category will be for select conferences and events that support improved regional
and statewide collaboration as well as for staff professional development and training. For 2023,
the RACC Board would like to send our Executive Director once again to the annual Colorado
Governor’s Tourism Conference for her to network with other professionals in her field including
grant funder opportunity providers across the state. This is a three day conference set in Fort
Collins for this upcoming year and takes place in person.

Staff-Executive Director ($49,000)
This reflects the increased amount for our full-time executive director position. The executive
director position is a combination of a need for an administrative assistant for the RACC Board
as well as a replacement for our part-time marketing consultant. The executive director position
also includes the Visitors Center Coordinator and Management position, previously a part-time
role in 2021 held by Jeanne Robertson. Our executive director continues to oversee the
execution of our marketing plan, budget, board direction, contractors, partnerships, grant
opportunities, and other related projects. This position is also paid partially out of membership
dues, as $6,000 is budgeted for membership relations.

Colorado Creative Corridor Matching Funds ($2,700)
Since 2018, Ridgway has partnered with four other Colorado communities in the establishment
of the Colorado Creative Corridor. The partnering communities are Carbondale, Crested Butte,
Paonia and Salida. In 2022, there were discussions on adding towns such as Gunnison and
Telluride and the two communities joined the collaborative meeting in January. This project is
continuing in 2023, with efforts towards another $25,000 grant from the Colorado Tourism
Office. RACC will provide $2,500 in match funding for this effort, and the Town of Ridgway will
provide $2,500. The additional funding of $200 will be used to market and advertise with our
contractors to promote this partnership and the Colorado Creative Corridor at large. This will
also help to drive traffic to the ridgwaycolorado.com site, work to promote social media and
networking event opportunities across the communities that participate in the creative corridor.

Colorado Tourism Management Grant Matching Funds ($5,000)
The Colorado Tourism Office Tourism Management Grant provides funding for tourism related
initiatives. This grant appeals to the RACC Board due to the fact that it qualifies for
organizations that are recipients of jurisdictional lodging tax and falls within the tourism
leadership entity responsibility that includes developing, promoting and managing tourism on
behalf of a destination benefiting the community. The RACC plans to apply for this grant
considering a variety of avenues to use the funding such as towards tourism workforce
development, tourism-related strategic planning as well as tourism research for the Ridgway
community that will be valuable to all businesses in the surrounding area.

ATTACHMENT 1



Colorado Stargazing Grant Matching Funds ($2,500)
As a member of the Colorado Stargazing: Experience the Night, the RACC helps to promote
and support the stargazing community in turn advocating for environmental awareness,
responsible travel and provides a unique way to market local businesses and nonprofits bringing
conscious minded visitors to our area. Promoting the Ridgway with two locations out of six in
Colorado represent a valuable opportunity to showcase the community.

Visitor Center Redesign Project $0
The RACC has no revenue planned in 2023 to fund any expenses for this project. If that
changes, this budget item will be increased.

Sustainable Tourism $500
The RACC prides itself on establishing a focus to be an avenue to educate visitors on how to
best enjoy our local resources as well as conscious ways of supporting our local businesses
and community. Our communications and marketing efforts are increasingly incorporating
messages about ways to visit the Ridgway area that reinforce low impact travel. The RACC
plans to have sustainable tourism practices training for our volunteers hosted in part by
EcoAction Partners, the US Forest Service, along with other Leave No Trace organizations prior
to opening our facility in spring 2023.

We want to continue to take the next step in this process to ensure we are promoting a
sustainable year-round economy by supporting responsible tourism practices even throughout
low-peak season travel and promote tourism through our Shop Local! Campaign throughout fall,
winter and spring.

Administrative $7,000
In 2023, administrative fees that consist of accounting and booking continue to rise along with
other economic increases. Although this is a high cost of the RACC budget, we feel that these
administrative costs are important to itemize the work that is needed to continue to implement
the Chamber’s entire annual marketing plan. Our marketing work cannot be executed without
the support from our valued partners at Middleton Accounting.

Reserves
As has been discussed, the first six months of the calendar year bring limited Lodging Tax
funding, while at the same time represent the largest months for expenditures. While it is critical
to build back a healthy reserve in 2023, inflation and higher costs of previous activities may
make it impossible to increase reserves with the current Lodging Occupancy Taxes. The RACC
staff and board will be carefully watching this budget item and considering ways to address it in
2023.

We thank the Town Council and staff for their partnership in this important work on
behalf of our local business community.

ATTACHMENT 1



ANNUAL REPORT
2022

MISSION: PROMOTE BUSINESS, COMMUNITY GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT IN THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY AND THE SURROUNDING AREA.

Image: Lone Cone Photography

Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce, P.O. Box 544, Ridgway, CO 81432          Ridgway Visitors Center, 150 Racecourse Rd., Ridgway, CO 81432
800.220.4959 •  970.626.5181 • info@ridgwaycolorado.com

W W W . R I D G W AY C O L O R A D O . C O M

Im
ag

e:
 T

an
ya

 I
sh

ik
aw

a

Im
ag

e:
  

R
ya

n 
Tu

re
k

RIDGWAY, COLORADO

Im
ag

e:
 J

ak
e 

N
ie

ce

ATTACHMENT 2



ANNUAL REPORT

FROM THE BOARD PRESIDENT
RIDGWAY AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

The Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce (RACC) Board of Directors is pleased to share this 2022 annual report. This year, 
the board continued to navigate, evolve and progress as a supportive entity for our Ridgway-area business 
community with many new board members and sta�. The RACC was proud to support the Volunteer and Career Fair, reopen 
the Visitors Center with slightly longer hours post pandemic and champion the return of the Golf Open in September.

The RACC continued to actively participate in a variety of regional and local partnerships to ensure alignment with the 
greater community throughout the course of 2022. Groups and initiatives included: participation in the Stargazing 
Marketing Matching grant through the CTO i.e. Colorado Tourism O�ce, collaboration with the Ridgway Creative Main 
Street Group now referred to as Ridgway FUSE, monthly meetings with the Colorado Creative Corridor, and continued to 
manage the Ridgway Visitor’s Center. We supported two business after hours events this year: one at Ridgway Lodge and 
Suites and the other at The Joinery.

During 2021, the Chamber went through many transitions and changes in regards to the RACC board of directors as well 
as its sta� members. In 2022, Ashley Perkins completed her first year as the RACC Executive Director as well as David 
Nunn and myself in our roles as Vice President and President respectively. We are proud to have welcomed Jon Elliot with 
Aspen-SavaTree company and Frank Gouder of Double G Ranch as members at large for 2022.

The chamber is pleased to continue to work with Middleton Accounting for all our financial operations and reporting, Peak 
Media Company for website design and management, and Sprout Design Studio for graphic design. We are also happy to 
welcome aboard Catherine Johnson with Captivate Consulting as our new PR and marketing contractor, and Traci 
Schalow of Kindred Collective as additional graphic design support. 

We are grateful for our relationships and partnerships the RACC has continued to garner for 2022 and look forward to 
continuing to support our local businesses and community in this upcoming year.

Image: Lone Cone Photography

2

                  - Adam Dubroff

ATTACHMENT 2



https://kane.gallery/

https://www.alpinebank.com/who-we-are/location-details.htm-
l?id=10146&location-information=ridgway-119-liddell-drive--rid
gway-co-81432

https://www.coloradoboy.com

https://balancenaturalmedicine.com

http://fishrigs.com/

ANNUAL REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AT-LARGE MEMBER KANE SCHEIDEGGER
Born and raised in Ridgway, Kane Scheidegger graduated from art school in 2005. He shoots 
large-format, panoramic images of the San Juan Mountains and ski descents in the winter. He loves 
the outdoors and everything that comes with it, and he hopes to bring nature into homes through 
his larger-than-life prints. Kane previously sat on Ridgway’s streetscape planning committee and 
feels he can o�er some great creativity to the Chamber to help it reach its goals.

AT-LARGE MEMBER JON ELLIOT
Jon Elliot was born and raised in Denver and moved to the area 4 years ago to become the branch 
manager for Aspen-Savatree in Ridgway. His desire to move to the community was for a new 
opportunity and he was drawn to the unbelievable beauty of the area. Jon spends most of his time 
outdoors mountain biking, skiing, and enjoying the outdoors. He has been a Certified Arborist for 
over 35 years and still enjoys working with people and trees every day.

PRESIDENT ADAM DUBROFF
Adam Dubro� and his wife, Karen, have lived in Ridgway since 2000. Their son, Jacob, grew up here 
and graduated from Ridgway High School in 2020. Adam is the owner of Alpha Inn Management, a 
hotel consulting company. He currently works part time at Telluride Ski Resort and also coaches the 
Ridgway High School boy’s varsity basketball team.

VICE PRESIDENT DAVID NUNN
David and his wife, Michelle, followed their lifelong dream to live in the Colorado mountains and 
moved to Ridgway with their two young boys 20 years ago. A career marketer having worked with 
the nation’s largest direct marketing firm for decades, David now pursues his passion for playing 
guitar and performing, having played over 500 local gigs in the last few years.

AT-LARGE MEMBER FRANK GOUDER 
Frank and Sandra Gouder moved from Germany to Ridgway in 2018 and made their dream reality 
by running a bed and breakfast, Double G Ranch & Guest Lodge. Frank was CEO and co-owner of a 
big company in Germany for more than 25 years specializing in sales, marketing and customer 
relations. Describing Ridgway as the best place in the world to live, and he loves the people and the 
outdoors here. He sees Ridgway as a “hidden gem” and wants to help Ridgway to become even 
more popular and well known as the “perfect place to be.”

TREASURER JANE PULLIAM
Jane has been board treasurer since August 2020. She provides quarterly financial reporting and a 
year-end report to the RACC board at the annual budget retreat. She has worked for Middleton 
Accounting for 17 years as a client accountant for diverse businesses in the Ridgway/Montrose 
area. She has worked for the RACC for seven years, providing financial statements and 
bookkeeping.

3

OUR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, ASHLEY PERKINS
Ashley grew up in upstate New York and has lived in the Ridgway area since 2011. She transitioned 
into the role of Executive Director for the RACC in September 2021, after leaving her position as a 
customer service representative for Alpine Bank that she held for almost seven years. Ashley also 
served as Secretary of the Board since 2019. She truly loves the lifestyle of Southwest Colorado and 
when not at work she enjoys getting outdoors with her dog, Reymi.

ATTACHMENT 2



The Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce (RACC) Board of Directors is pleased to share this 2022 annual report. This year, 
the board continued to navigate, evolve and progress as a supportive entity for our Ridgway-area business 
community with many new board members and sta�. The RACC was proud to support the Volunteer and Career Fair, reopen 
the Visitors Center with slightly longer hours post pandemic and champion the return of the Golf Open in September.

The RACC continued to actively participate in a variety of regional and local partnerships to ensure alignment with the 
greater community throughout the course of 2022. Groups and initiatives included: participation in the Stargazing 
Marketing Matching grant through the CTO i.e. Colorado Tourism O�ce, collaboration with the Ridgway Creative Main 
Street Group now referred to as Ridgway FUSE, monthly meetings with the Colorado Creative Corridor, and continued to 
manage the Ridgway Visitor’s Center. We supported two business after hours events this year: one at Ridgway Lodge and 
Suites and the other at The Joinery.

During 2021, the Chamber went through many transitions and changes in regards to the RACC board of directors as well 
as its sta� members. In 2022, Ashley Perkins completed her first year as the RACC Executive Director as well as David 
Nunn and myself in our roles as Vice President and President respectively. We are proud to have welcomed Jon Elliot with 
Aspen-SavaTree company and Frank Gouder of Double G Ranch as members at large for 2022.

The chamber is pleased to continue to work with Middleton Accounting for all our financial operations and reporting, Peak 
Media Company for website design and management, and Sprout Design Studio for graphic design. We are also happy to 
welcome aboard Catherine Johnson with Captivate Consulting as our new PR and marketing contractor, and Traci 
Schalow of Kindred Collective as additional graphic design support. 

We are grateful for our relationships and partnerships the RACC has continued to garner for 2022 and look forward to 
continuing to support our local businesses and community in this upcoming year.

COMMUNICATIONS CONSULTANT TANYA ISHIKAWA
Tanya worked for the chamber from 2018 to the end of 2022. Her Chamber projects included the 
Annual Report, Visitor’s Guide, website content, Member of the Month program, Youth Career & 
Volunteer Fair, Facebook posts, and news releases. She has also been the part-time 
communications director for the Uncompahgre Watershed Partnership, where she was promoted to 
executive director, e�ective Jan. 1, 2023.

WEBSITE & TECHNOLOGY PARTNER JOSH GOWANS
Josh is founder of Peak Media Company (PMC), a marketing and technology consultancy with sta� 
in Ridgway, Durango and Lisbon. PMC specializes in open-source applications, website design, 
management and optimization, and CRM (Customer Relationship Management) solutions. The 
PMC team manages the Chamber's website including design, system administration and CRM 
development.

ANNUAL REPORT

MEDIA & DESIGN PARTNER NICOLE GREENE
Nicole is a graphic and web designer who loves to work with clients in a collective and creative 
process to help them to grow and thrive. Her boutique design firm is Sprout Design Studio, 
founded in 2006 and working with entities in the San Juan Mountains, throughout the United 
States, as well as internationally. Sprout grows ideas into successful brand identities with brilliant 
strategies and stunning results by giving businesses an integrated look and feel as well as building 
platforms that connect brands to their target audiences.

4

STAFF & CONSULTANT TEAM

MEMBERSHIP & CRM PARTNER STEPHANIE LAUERMAN 
Stephanie left the corporate world on the Front Range in 2001 for Ridgway where she loves 
engaging in this amazing community. Her consulting firm, Next Chapter Development, LLC, assists 
clients to reach their full potential by utilizing CRM systems and community outreach. Working 
within nonprofits for 15 years, she enjoys helping clients succeed, especially RACC where she leads 
membership and CRM systems. Stephanie loves teaching at the Ridgway Yoga Shala, and getting 
outdoors with her beautiful daughters in the San Juans.

ONLINE MARKETING & PROMOTION CATHERINE JOHNSON
Catherine is the owner of Captivate Consulting, and has years of experience in marketing, public 
relations and website development. She graduated from Georgia State University with two bachelor 
degrees in business administration and started her career by doing freelance marketing for real 
estate firms in Telluride. When she’s not behind the computer, Catherine is either teaching yoga, 
crafting, or spending quality time with her family.

The Chamber has developed an exceptional team of sta� and contract partners to lead program implementation. 
This group of Ridgway-based professionals consists of individuals with strong connections throughout the community.

ACCOUNTANT JANE PULLIAM
Please see bio in Board of Directors section, page 3.

DESIGN PARTNER TRACI KINDRED SCHALOW
Traci of Kindred Collective is a thoughtful and inventive graphic designer who blends over 35 years 
of design experience with her passion for the outdoors and local community. As a creative 
professional she is dedicated to bringing brand stories to life through breakthrough multimedia 
communications. She continues to partner with small business and non-profit organizations locally, 
throughout western Colorado and nationally. Decompression time is spent in the backcountry 
either on foot, skis, horseback or mountain bike with her dogs in tow. 

2022 RIDGWAY VISITOR CENTER STAFF AND VOLUNTEERS 
Dale Frank- sta� weekend warrior

Canyon Ishikawa, Tanya Ishikawa, Nancy Lazenga, Karen Mendel, Sydney Mendel,  David Nunn, and Ely Patterson

ATTACHMENT 2



ANNUAL REPORT

RIDGWAYCOLORADO.COM RidgwayColorado.com 
continues to be the #1 
Google search result for 
keyword “Ridgway Colorado”.

5

Josh Gowans of Peak Media Company (PMC) and his team work with the RACC sta� and contractors to ensure the 
RidgwayColorado.com website is an accessible, top-search result for online information about the Ridgway area. 

The RACC Board and sta� contracted with PMC in 2022 to build the infrastructure for members to update their own 
page content, and the plan is to release this website functionality in 2023.

The Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce website continues to be a central resource for visitors and for community 
members, ranking for over 5,000 keywords specific to local activities, businesses, events and more. In 2022, the 
overall website tra�c grew modestly though at an overall slower rate than previous years.

The slower growth was likely due to a shift in 2022 toward more technical improvements and away from content 
development.

Not all improvements have been realized; however, the end result is intended to be a more “community generated” 
website where members can add and update content directly.

As a result, overall tra�c and organic tra�c grew by 6% and 12% respectively. Overall impression share from organic 
search grew 4% to over three million impressions.

While organic search witnessed growth in 2022, other channels saw declines, resulting in slower overall growth.

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

ATTACHMENT 2



RIDGWAYCOLORADO.COM
RidgwayColorado.com remains a 

critical and powerful asset to promote 
our business and nonprofit community.

TOP PAGE PERFORMANCE

ANNUAL REPORT 6

In summary, the site grew in 
significance though at a slower 
rate than previous years. Much 
of the year was spent on 
underlying technical support as 
well as upgrades, laying the 
groundwork for future growth 
and optimization.

The top 10 pages on the site by page view are:

  Homepage
  True Grit (movie page)
  Upcoming Events
  Things to do
  Accommodations (business listing)
  Orvis Hot Springs
  Eternal Hot Springs (thing to do)
  Ouray Hot Springs
  Restaurants (business listing)
  Outdoor adventure (thing to do)

The site continues to add keywords and 
backlinks, witnessing significant acceleration 
in growth in late 2020 and continuing 
through early 2022, where keyword 
acquisition leveled o� by and large. As we 
shift back to a content focus, we expect 
additional growth as well as redistribution of 
keyword rankings.

ATTACHMENT 2



SUSTAINABLE TOURISM

Distribution of the print and digital copies of the 2022 Ridgway Visitor’s 
Guide began in January 2022, and an estimated 35,000 copies were 
distributed by the end of the year. Plus, the digital version was again a 
gateway on RidgwayColorado.com for website visitors to sign up for visitor 
e-newsletters, increasing the RACC’s direct marketing opportunities for 
members and the business community at large.
 
In autumn 2022, under the editorial leadership of Communications 
Consultant Tanya Ishikawa, the 2023 Guide was created and designed for 
distribution starting January 2023. A major change in the guide is a new 
downtown map in the centerfold accompanied by a directory of businesses 
in the walking core of Ridgway. This multipurpose map is patterned after the 
Ridgway FUSE online map, and will be handed out as a one-page walking 
guide at events and local businesses.

The 2023 welcome letter was written by San Juan Huts General Manager 
Kelly Ryan as a way of highlighting a long-time, low-impact business 
operated by a strong, passionate woman. Ryan shared valuable messaging 
about Ridgway’s character and tips for visitors to enjoy our special pace of 
life. Photos in the guide again were outstanding with work from talented 
local photographers including Gary Ratcli� of Ouray Image, Natalie Heller 
of Lone Cone Photography, Kane Scheidegger, and Tony Litschewski of 
Nature’s Finest Images.

5ANNUAL REPORT 7

2022 & 2023 RIDGWAY VISITOR’S GUIDES

The Chamber continued its e�orts to promote 
awareness of responsible, sustainable tourism 
practices. Our communications and marketing 
strategies incorporate messages about ways to 
visit the Ridgway area that reinforce low-impact 
travel. The pages devoted to responsible travel 
recommendations continue to be included in 
both the 2023 Ridgway Visitor’s Guide and the 
Chamber website: https://ridgwaycolora-
do.com/plan-your-trip/responsible-travel.

Chamber sta� also consistently share 
sustainable and responsible tourism marketing 
materials from the Care for Colorado campaign 
developed by the Colorado Tourism O�ce, 
through Facebook posts and Weekly E-blasts.

The Chamber continues to collaborate on Dark Sky tourism messaging with Top of the Pines (TOP), the Town of 
Ridgway, Colorado Tourism O�ce (CTO), and Black Canyon Astronomical Society. Not only is TOP designated as a 
Dark Sky Park and Ridgway designated a Dark Sky Community by the International Dark-Sky Association, but 
Ridgway State Park was awarded a Dark Sky certification mentoring program by CTO in 2022. RACC’s direct 
marketing e�orts support the inclusion of Dark Sky destinations and activities in the Visitors Guide, itineraries and 
information on RidgwayColorado.com, and Facebook posts highlighting dates of meteor showers and other celestial 
events, recommending visiting during those year-round occurrences.

Image: Lone Cone Photography

ATTACHMENT 2



ANNUAL REPORT

The number of visitors who stopped by the center was just under 1,000 for the season, continuing a downward trend, due 
to the departure of the Railroad Museum displays and no new amenities. On the other hand, visitor comments continued 
to be positive, expressing appreciation for the information provided at the center and the opportunity to talk with locals.

The Visitors Center helped provide information on the True Grit Tours, which are now starting at the gazebo in front of Town 
Hall. The tours were held consistently on Fridays beginning at 3 p.m., with private tours available by appointment.

VISITOR CENTER
AND HERITAGE PARK REDESIGN PROJECT

8

The Ridgway Visitor Center reopened in May 2022 with 
continued precautions for keeping volunteers and visitors safe 
with plexiglass and masks available throughout the pandemic.  
The center was primarily sta�ed with volunteers, the executive 
director and a weekend employee, Dale Frank. With additional 
sta� for 2022, the center was open for operation Wednesday 
through Sunday following Memorial Day weekend through 
October from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m.

The Chamber organized a photo and video contest in the autumn with a theme of people feeding their souls and spirits in 
the Ridgway area, in the quieter times of the year from October to April. The contest was not only a promotional 
opportunity for non-peak season tourism, but also a way to gather more images to promote the community and meet new 
photographers and videographers.

The video winner was Katrina Toucke, who was awarded $300 for her 25-second video montage titled “Find Yourself in 
Ridgway Year Round.” The photo winner was Natalie Heller, who was awarded $200 for her photograph titled “Summer 
Sunset over the Cimarrons.” Heller also won honorable mention and a Ridgway, Colorado hat for her photograph, “Fishing 
the Uncompahgre River.” Also receiving an honorable mention and a Ridgway, Colorado hat was Trisha Oakland for a 
photo of the March Fourth performance at the Sherbino Theater.

RIDGWAY VISITOR 
CENTER OPERATIONS

FIND YOURSELF IN RIDGWAY YEAR ROUND PHOTO & VIDEO CONTEST

In spring 2022, members from the community were 
invited to review plans by DHM Design with new 
restroom building options and Visitor Center design 
options in the Heritage Park Redesign Project. 
Heritage Park, which is located at the entrance to 
town o� Highway 550 and next to the Ouray County 
Fairgrounds, is being renovated with short-term and 
long-term upgrades over the course of the next 
several years. 

The RACC Executive Director sat in the virtual 
meetings held throughout February and March, and 
provided input for these meetings. Initial ideas were 
based on the advisory stakeholder group 
recommendations in 2021. 

VISITOR CENTER & HERITAGE PARK REDESIGN PROJECT 

In October 2022, Colorado’s DOLA (Department of Local A�airs) representatives visited Ridgway to view the 
progress at Heritage Park. DOLA is funding some of the redesign and renovation e�orts, which are a collaborative e�ort of 
the RACC, Town of Ridgway and the Colorado Main Street program. 

Image: Ouray Image

ATTACHMENT 2



The weekly community e-blast is now being sent out to 2,150-plus contacts. The visitor e-newsletter targets contacts 
across Colorado and the U.S., who subscribed when they requested a digital Visitors Guide link, and its audience has 
grown to 6,333 contacts. 

The Chamber is continuing to develop its online presence on social media. Since January 2022, our Instagram followers 
increased from 2,979 to 3,600 (up 21%). 

In 2022, our Facebook reach varied greatly from month to month, ranging from 1,249 up to 4,189 people viewing RACC 
posts. The posts in the last three months of 2022 saw the most year-over-year increases in reach, averaging a 76% 
increase.

RACC sta� met with tourism collaborative partners from Ridgway, Montrose and Ouray on a quarterly basis to support 
regional tourism and share marketing successes and event information.

The Chamber and member businesses continued to garner online and print media coverage in 2022. Popular topics are 
dark sky tourism (again), Chamber events, and news about businesses and nonprofits featured as Members of the Month.  

ANNUAL REPORT

ONLINE + PRINT MEDIA
ONLINE AND PRINT PROMOTION AND MARKETING

Ridgway's Instagram
followers grew by 
21% in 2022.

9

Image: Nature’s Finest Images

Led by Executive Director Ashley Perkins, the RACC took 
charge to organize and plan Ridgway’s Noel Night for the 
second year in a row in collaboration with the Ridgway 
FUSE formally known as the Ridgway Creative District. 
The event was held on the first Friday of December and 
was promoted through newspaper ads, Facebook posts, 
Instagram, flyers, special e-blasts, a news post on 
RidgwayColorado.com, and many in-person communica-
tions and chamber-to-business networking. Rocky 
Mountain Cannabis donated $500 towards the event and 
Alpine Bank sponsored a ra�e that included a prize 
drawing of Ridgway Local Bucks totaling $150 to spend 
in the community. Noel Night customers were treated to 
holiday food and drinks, 10% to 50% discounts, 
giveaways, games, and other specials at more than 30 
businesses including nonprofits and artists in the 
first-ever event in the new Space to Create Community 
Room. 

Feb. 7, Montrose Mirror, page 51:
Ridgway State Park is RACC Member of the Month

April 19, Telluride Daily Planet:
‘Go for the Green’ Ridgway Chamber Open golf tournament 9/8

June 2, KKCO 11 News: 
ROCC recognized as Member of the Month

Oct. 6, Telluride Daily Planet:
Farmers markets wind down for the season

Nov. 30, Ouray County Plaindealer:
Get in the holiday spirit with Noel Night, Yule Celebration

SPECIAL MARKETING OPPORTUNITY: NOEL NIGHT

Santa also visited local businesses throughout the evening with a final stop at Voyager Youth Program for photo 
opportunities.

CLICK ON 
HEADLINES 

TO VIEW
ARTICLES

SAMPLING OF 
MEDIA COVERAGE

Image: Jake Niece

ATTACHMENT 2



The Chamber organized a photo and video contest in the autumn with a theme of people feeding their souls and spirits in 
the Ridgway area, in the quieter times of the year from October to April. The contest was not only a promotional 
opportunity for non-peak season tourism, but also a way to gather more images to promote the community and meet new 
photographers and videographers.

The video winner was Katrina Toucke, who was awarded $300 for her 25-second video montage titled “Find Yourself in 
Ridgway Year Round.” The photo winner was Natalie Heller, who was awarded $200 for her photograph titled “Summer 
Sunset over the Cimarrons.” Heller also won honorable mention and a Ridgway, Colorado hat for her photograph, “Fishing 
the Uncompahgre River.” Also receiving an honorable mention and a Ridgway, Colorado hat was Trisha Oakland for a 
photo of the March Fourth performance at the Sherbino Theater.

ANNUAL REPORT 10

Feb. 7, Montrose Mirror, page 51:
Ridgway State Park is RACC Member of the Month

April 19, Telluride Daily Planet:
‘Go for the Green’ Ridgway Chamber Open golf tournament 9/8

June 2, KKCO 11 News: 
ROCC recognized as Member of the Month

Oct. 6, Telluride Daily Planet:
Farmers markets wind down for the season

Nov. 30, Ouray County Plaindealer:
Get in the holiday spirit with Noel Night, Yule Celebration

STATEWIDE PROMOTION & 
OFF-SEASON MARKETING STRATEGY

2022 SAN JUAN RURAL PHILANTHROPY DAYS, 
HOSTED BY RIDGWAY
 

COLORADO STARGAZING MARKETING MATCH GRANT 2022

RACC Executive Director Ashley Perkins supported San Juan Rural 
Philanthropy Days that took place in Ridgway from June 7 to June 9 this 
past year. The annual event provides an opportunity for nonprofit and 
grant providers to network in rural communities. She, along with Ridgway 
Community Initiative Facilitator Tera Wick, participated on the events 
hospitality subcommittee in half-day and full-day collaborations leading 
up to the event. Three days of workshops and networking events brought 
in 246 attendees from across the five counties of Gunnison, Hinsdale, 
Montrose, Ouray and San Miguel, supporting 109 grant-seeking 
organizations and showcasing 35 grantmaker organizations.

GRAVEL ADVENTURE FIELD GUIDE PARTNERSHIP

The RACC sta� brought together a group of local biking advocates to 
determine whether to pursue the production of a gravel grinding guide, 
supported by state grants and a CTO-recommended business partner with 
specialized experience. As a result, the RACC collaborated with partners in 
Montrose and San Miguel counties to apply for a $40,000 Colorado Outdoor 
Recreation Grant to fund the creation of the Uncompahgre Plateau/Western 
San Juans Gravel Adventure Field Guide. The pocket-sized, field guidebook 
will be designed to attract, connect, and inspire cycling enthusiasts by 
providing route recommendations with maps and culturally relevant content 
such as history and imagery. It is intended to capture the in, and out-of-state 
tourism and elevate Southwest Colorado’s reputation as a gravel bike 
destination, while also enhancing its quality of life. The state will inform the 
Chamber about whether the grant was awarded in the first half of 2023.

In 2022, the Chamber continued its involvement with the Colorado 
Stargazing Marketing Match Grant. As a member of Colorado 
Stargazing: Experience the Night, we help to promote Leave No Trace 
messaging that supports environmental awareness and responsible 
travel and provide a unique way to market local businesses and 
nonprofits. The RACC, on behalf of the Town of Ridgway, approved a 
$2,571 commitment for this grant this past year. According to the 
International Dark-Sky Association, there are 201 certified dark sky 
places in the world, Ridgway one of six designations in Colorado.

Executive Director Ashley Perkins attended this year’s Governor’s Conference organized by the Colorado Tourism O�ce in 
Snowmass, Colorado held September 21 to 23. The conference is held annually for three days when tourism professionals and 
industry leaders learn and network. Participants assess current activities and find new approaches to market the state, local 
communities, and businesses. Speakers from throughout the country challenge and inspire attendees. Since this was Perkins’ 
first year at the conference she received the Governor’s Tourism Conference Professional Scholarship to attend the conference.

2022 COLORADO TOURISM ORGANIZATION’S GOVERNOR’S CONFERENCE

Image: Ouray Image

ATTACHMENT 2



COLORADO CREATIVE CORRIDOR
ITINERARY DEVELOPMENT & STATEWIDE PROMOTION

ANNUAL REPORT 11

Feb. 7, Montrose Mirror, page 51:
Ridgway State Park is RACC Member of the Month

April 19, Telluride Daily Planet:
‘Go for the Green’ Ridgway Chamber Open golf tournament 9/8

June 2, KKCO 11 News: 
ROCC recognized as Member of the Month

Oct. 6, Telluride Daily Planet:
Farmers markets wind down for the season

Nov. 30, Ouray County Plaindealer:
Get in the holiday spirit with Noel Night, Yule Celebration

For the fifth consecutive year, the Ridgway Chamber teamed up with the Town of Ridgway and the Ridgway Creative 
District to support the Colorado Creative Corridor (CCC) project continuing to support synergy between tourism and 
creative district entities. Since 2018, the majority of this work has been funded through four consecutive tourism 
grants up until 2021 $25,000 Marketing Matching grants. The CCC is a 331-mile route that links the mountain towns 
of Carbondale, Crested Butte, Paonia, Ridgway, and Salida. Ridgway works with the four partner communities to 
promote visitor experiences, which include event programming and activities. 

There have been conversations in the works throughout the course of 2022 to add more communities to the corridor 
including Gunnison and Telluride helping, amongst other things, further grant funding to build upon the success of 
previous years and search engine optimization opportunities. The Colorado Creative Corridor continues to provide a 
positive networking opportunity for the Ridgway Community helping to connect other rural mountain communities and 
support chamber efforts for responsible and sustainable visitors to our area.

One of the primary goals for the RACC is to continue to support the marketing efforts through partnering with the 
Creative Corridor by engaging in a platform to promote all Ridgway area businesses and nonprofits especially during the 
off-peak season. We are excited for this project to keep bringing value to the business and creative economy for years 
to come and provides an important example of the positive impact of Chamber/Town collaboration.

 

2022 was the first full year following the launch of the coloradocreativecorridor.com website.

2022 Marketing & Paid Opportunity Summary
coloradocreativecorridor.com website:
7,659 sessions
 Top pages:
  homepage
  locations/carbondale
  itinerary
  Total pageviews: 11,391
  Average pages per session: 1.49

Colorado Tourism O�ce paid opportunity: In-state emails
 February custom: Sends: 21,284, Open: 11,762, Clicks: 512
 April eNewsletter: Sends: 21,359, Opens: 15,336, Clicks: 105
 September eNewsletter: Sends: 22,806, Opens: 15,788, Clicks: 317
 November eNewsletter: Sends: 22,731, Opens: 10,979, Clicks 68

Colorado.com Display Banner ads, Feb-July, 2022: 100k impressions, 145 clicks

Colorado.com Native Banner ads, Feb-July 2022: 100k impressions, 234 clicks

2022 MARKETING SUCCESSES FROM PROMOTING RIDGWAY 
THROUGH THE COLORADO CREATIVE CORRIDOR

FACEBOOK
1.89k total page likes; 1.3k new 
Facebook likes in 2022 (5.1k% 
increase in 2022 compared to 
2021), and 55.3k reach (4.3k% 
increase in 2022 compared to 
2021). Top cities: Carbondale, 
Paonia, Glenwood Springs.

INSTAGRAM
1.29k total followers; 107 new 
Instagram followers in 2022; 
and 2.7k reach (8.9% increase 
in 2022 compared to 2021). 
Top cities: Colorado Springs, 
Carbondale, Denver.

ATTACHMENT 2



CHAMBER MEMBERSHIP SERVICES
The RACC Board and sta� are excited to serve our paid members, whose financial contributions support a wide 
breadth of services and multiply each organization’s and the town’s marketing presence. While the Chamber’s 
activities support the promotion of the Ridgway business and nonprofit community at large including both chamber 
members and non-members, paid members are o�ered premium placement to boost their visibility and increase 
potential customer referrals.

The Chamber is dedicated to providing value by continuing to invest in marketing assets, as well as state and regional 
partnerships. Our core marketing assets include: the RidgwayColorado.com website, Ridgway Visitor’s Guide, 
Facebook and Instagram, Ridgway Visitor Center, print/digital advertising, and media relations, along with key 
partners that amplify our marketing e�orts. We also assist in connecting local organizations to Colorado Tourism 
O�ce promotions, collaborating on networking opportunities through member promotions and events, and having 
a voice in local government.

WEEKLY E-BLAST AND VISITOR E-NEWSLETTER
The Chamber continues to send out weekly community e-blasts typically on Mondays, to a list of nearly 2,200 
targeted recipients. Email content includes the following sections: Member of the Month, Business Specials, 
Upcoming Events, Job Openings, Ridgway in the Media, RACC News, Save the Date, and Responsible Travel Tips. 
The visitor e-newsletter was suspended for most of 2022 due to the Chamber’s focus on developing the FUSE 
collaboration, Rural Philanthropy Days, and the Golf Open. The plan is to strategize the visitor e-newsletter in 2023 
to take advantage of promotion to the list of 6343 subscribers.

MEMBER OF THE MONTH
The Member of the Month program continued to highlight Chamber members across several marketing channels in 
2022. Each month, one business or nonprofit is selected and promoted through: a news post on the Chamber's 
website featured on the homepage for the month; a news release sent to the Chamber’s media list; announcements 
in four weekly e-blasts; and two Facebook posts. Over the past year, the Member of the Month program was viewed 
in Chamber e-blasts nearly 42,000 times, reached roughly 8,612 Facebook users, was picked up monthly by local 
news publications, and had nearly 2,000 page views on RidgwayColorado.com. 

YOUTH VOLUNTEER  & CAREER FAIR
As the struggle to find su�cient local employees continued in 2022, the Volunteer & Career Fair at Ridgway 
Secondary School demonstrated a real benefit, introducing middle and high schoolers to jobs and providing 
employers and nonprofits with the opportunity to meet potential employees and volunteers. Information tables were 
sta�ed by representatives from five nonprofits including members of the RACC and eight companies, as well as six 
government o�ces. The fair is not only a valuable way to connect youth to professional and community service 
experiences that boost resumes and college applications but also allows students to practice important 
job-seeking skills.

BUSINESS AFTER HOURS
In an e�ort to bring back Business After Hours, the RACC was able to successfully support two events in 2022. The 
first was held at Ridgway Lodge and Star Saloon on June 16 with live music by local musician David Nunn. The 
second was hosted on July 27 by The Joinery with Jill and Scott Rikkers welcoming community members to their new 
business including providing a charcuterie spread and a warm fire outdoors. 

SHOP LOCAL!
The Chamber’s Shop Local e�orts in 2022 centered around Noel Night and hanging the Noel Night banner at 
Hartwell Park, facing Highway 62. The new Downtown Walking Map, developed for the Visitor’s Guide, was also 
printed as a stand-alone map to be distributed to visitors at San Juan Skijoring and at local businesses throughout 
the winter.

2022 CHAMBER GOLF OPEN
The RACC brought back the Golf Open after a two-year, pandemic-related hiatus. In addition to promoting the 
community and providing fun business networking, the event resulted in the award of $2,728 for Voyager Youth 
Program and $1,000 for Ouray County Baseball. Tournament sponsors included Colorado Boy Pub & Brewery, 
Aspen Tree Service, RIGS Fly Shop & Guide Service, Dickerson Construction Inc., Shamrock Foods, Alpine Bank, 
Hazel’s Housekeeping, Montrose Ford Nissan, Flower Motor Group, Becky and Charles Mueller, and Full Tilt Saloon.

MEMBERSHIP SERVICES
The Chamber Board and staff are 
excited to serve the business and 
nonprofit members of the Ridgway 

Area Chamber of Commerce.

ANNUAL REPORT 12

Feb. 7, Montrose Mirror, page 51:
Ridgway State Park is RACC Member of the Month

April 19, Telluride Daily Planet:
‘Go for the Green’ Ridgway Chamber Open golf tournament 9/8

June 2, KKCO 11 News: 
ROCC recognized as Member of the Month

Oct. 6, Telluride Daily Planet:
Farmers markets wind down for the season

Nov. 30, Ouray County Plaindealer:
Get in the holiday spirit with Noel Night, Yule Celebration

ATTACHMENT 2



In 2022, the RACC managed a budget 
consisting of $101,671 in Lodging 
Occupancy Tax (LOT) funds from the 
Town of Ridgway and Chamber 
memberships of approximately 
$11,500. LOT funds were higher than 
the 2021 amount of $93,705, while 
membership payments were 
approximately the same as in 2021. 

The RACC Board made the decision to 
hire a full-time Executive Director at the 
end of 2021, as an important step in 
improving member relations and 
addressing economic development 
requests from the Town of Ridgway. 
However, this salaried position 
increased expenses considerably, 
compared to the cost of the past 
part-time marketing consultant. The 
Chamber also increased website 
expenses to improve functionality. 
These two budget impacts, along with 
the cost of maintaining the same level of 
marketing and promotions as in past 
years resulted in a net loss in the budget 
that was covered by the Chamber’s 
reserve funds. 

While the reserves helped the 
organization with important new 
expenses in 2022, the RACC is making 
plans in the 2023 budget to cut 
expenses back to previous levels. 
Responsibly building reserves remains 
important to the Chamber Board and 
sta�. In addition to cutting expenses, 
the RACC plans to increase revenues by 
applying for grants from the Colorado 
Tourism O�ce, state agencies and other 
funders in 2023.

The accompanying financial report was 
prepared by Middleton Accounting & 
Consulting, which has provided all the 
RACC’s accounting and financial report-
ing since 2018. This report comes 
directly from QuickBooks, and reflects a 
detailed P&L statement for the LOT 
budget for 2022.   

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
HOW WE MANAGE OUR RESOURCES

Responsibly building reserves remains 
important to the RACC organization.

ANNUAL REPORT 13ATTACHMENT 2



The Ridgway Chamber Golf Open provided another great day on the golf course and a fantastic lunch donated by local 
restaurants on Sept. 14, while raising funds for the Ridgway Youth Apprenticeship Program. The tournament at the 
Divide Ranch and Club supports the Chamber’s efforts to connect Ridgway students to local businesses for multi-week 
apprenticeships in summer 2020. RiverSage, a local real estate developer, was the platinum sponsor.
 
During the Golf Open, the three apprentices from summer 2019 were recognized and awarded scholarships. Ridgway 
High School students Kelli Donivan, Ashley Medina and Zach Sauer were the program’s first apprentices, who 
completed career development experiences at Lucky Find Consignments, Cowgirl Creations Floral and Gifts, and RIGS 
Fly Shop & Guide Service, respectively.

Golf packages were won by the team with the best gross score, The Old Farts, and the team with the best net score, 
Flora Davita, with both teams also getting their team names engraved on two trophies donated by Billings Artworks. 
Players were also awarded for longest drives, getting closest to the pin, an honesty award for the lowest score, and other 
golf-related games. 
 
The greater the player fees and sponsorships at the annual golf tournament, the more impact it can have on the 
community, with benefits spread from the youth to families and businesses. To thrive in a rapidly changing economy, 
our young people need meaningful, workforce experiences.  Similarly, businesses need fresh ideas and perspectives to 
compete. Apprenticeships can be effective strategies for local businesses to advance the future of not only our youth, 
but of their business as well.  

Lodging Tax dollars were not allocated to the golf tournament and all apprenticeship funding comes entirely from the 
profits of the tournament.
 

An event created by the Ridgway Chamber in 2017, to introduce youth to volunteering with local nonprofits, 
expanded this year to inform students of local jobs. The Career & Volunteer Opportunity Fair took place at 
Ridgway High School in May 2019, bringing nearly 20 nonprofit and business representatives to share 
information with students. The Chamber plans to continue the event in 2020, as a valuable way to connect youth 
to professional and community service experiences that not only boost resumes and college applications but 
provide important skills and knowledge as well.

Continuing to build upon the successes of previous RACC contractors and board members is the Chamber’s primary 
focus. The current board is looking to Executive Director Ashley Perkins to spearhead and prioritize grant application 
opportunities as well as organizing a fundraising campaign and donation initiatives. Meanwhile, the Chamber Board 
hopes to champion community engagement by focusing on networking with a personal focus and sharing the values and 
benefits of joining the RACC through paid membership. 

In 2023, the Lodging Occupancy Tax (LOT) budget request to the town will be $105,000. However, with inflation and the 
higher cost of service expenses such as contractor fees, insurance, and printing costs, the Chamber will need to find ways 
to increase revenue. In addition to fundraising and membership drives, the RACC board will be engaging the community 
and town government in discussions about increasing the LOT from a 3.5% to potentially a 5% tax through a 2023 ballot 
measure.

To expand the Chamber’s promotion of the whole business community, the Board and sta� are working on a free, basic 
membership that will be made available to all Ridgway businesses and organizations. The RACC will also develop new 
marketing materials including videos on social media platforms such as TikTok. Other 2023 plans include providing 
opportunities for more members to host business networking events, continuing the Youth Volunteer and Career Fair, 
reopening the Visitors Center with longer hours and more volunteer support, organizing the Golf Open, and supporting our 
Shop Local! Campaign by championing Small Business Saturday and Noel Night.

The RACC would like to thank all of our members, the Town of Ridgway, our sta�, contractors, volunteers, partners, and 
the local business community at large for your genuine support and continued engagement. We look forward to 2023 with 
our new focus and building on our experience from this previous year.

2023 PLANS

In 2022, the Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce will continue to manage 
and increase Chamber membership, and focus communication strategies 
on responsible and sustainable tourism and promotion of the o�-peak 
season.

ANNUAL REPORT

Image: Pamela Cannalte

14

Image: San Juan Huts

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #12 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   February 2, 2023 
Agenda Topic: Request for authorization of staff to expend budgeted funds and enter into a 

contract to purchase a fleet vehicle for the Ridgway Public Works Department 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

ACTION BEFORE COUNCIL: 
Council is asked to consider authorizing staff to expend budgeted funds and enter into a contract to purchase 
a fleet vehicle for the Public Works Department.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to authorize staff to expend budgeted funds and enter into a contract to purchase a fleet vehicle for 
the Public Works Department at a total sales price of $32,500.”  
 
SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Council earmarked funds in the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget for the purchase of a new truck for the Public Works 
Department. The new truck would be for Randy Barnes, Public Works Maintenance Operator III – Collection 
& Distribution, to drive on a day-to-day basis. The truck that the Public Works Department has elected to 
purchase, with Council authorization, is a Used 2019 Ford F250 XL at a price of $32,500, which is well below 
the budgeted amount of $50,000.  
 
The Town’s Procurement Manual states that contracts for the purchase of supplies, goods, equipment and 
services in excess of $25,000 shall be approved by Council. Staff has followed all provisions of the 
Procurement Manual in exploring this purchase. Half of this expenditure would be paid out of the Water 
Enterprise Fund and the other half would be paid out of the Sewer Enterprise Fund.  
 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #13 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   February 2, 2023 
Agenda Topic: Discussion and direction regarding participation in the Mountain Towns 2030 

Solutions Project 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

ACTION BEFORE COUNCIL: 
Council is asked to discuss and provide direction on participation in the Mountain Towns 2030 Solutions 
Project.  
 
OVERVIEW: 
The Mountain Towns 2030 Solutions Project (MTSP) is a collaborative cohort-based program that provides 
communities with real-world expertise and opportunities to collaborate with peers; equipping participants 
with an impactful pathway to carbon neutrality. MTSP is designed to build capacity in every community, large 
and small. By working together, sharing ideas, data, and best practices, every participant will have the 
opportunity to learn from experts and colleagues and accelerate the collective progress on climate. 
 
MTSP is designed to: 

• Facilitate collaboration to help the participating communities overcome their shared challenges and 
accelerate their climate action planning. Each week, communities have the chance to share insights, 
ask questions and learn from other communities’ experiences and specialist advice in real-time. 

• Connect communities with actionable tools, data, and valuable resources to achieve their ambitious 
climate goals quicker and more efficiently. Create a toolbox of peer actions, projects, and progress 
that will make an immediate impact. 

• Build capacity in communities that need additional resources. 

• Take the discussion from the intangible to meaningful impact and benefits. 

• Build working relationships and establish a network for mountain community colleagues to draw 
from. 

• Facilitate continued collaboration and networking outside of the cohorts. 
 
FRAMEWORK: 
Participating communities can join a series of seven monthly collaborative work sessions where they will 
work directly with peers and experts to create an actionable plan that illuminates a pathway for climate 
action. Each convening gives communities the opportunity to collaborate with colleagues, discuss ideas and 
best practices, and hear from topical experts, gaining a deeper knowledge of specific climate planning 
challenges and solutions. The conversation will be supported by an online community platform enabling 
participants to connect and continue conversations with colleagues as needed. 
 
2023 SESSION TOPICS: 
February: Welcome & discussion: Making your carbon footprint a useful tool 
March: Buildings + Electrification 
April: Clean energy 
May: Transportation 
June: Zero waste 



 

 

July: Natural climate solutions 
August: Next steps: Deploying solutions into your community 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Mountain Town 2030’s goal is to make MTSP as inclusive and accessible to every community as possible. The 
suggestion is a $2,500 tuition. However, MTSP is leaving it up to individual communities to contribute as their 
budgets allow. 
 
Kim Wheels with EcoAction Partners recently reached out to Mountain Towns 2030 staff and was informed 
that the program is very flexible with funding contributions and that they're highest priority is participation. 
The $2,500 requested contribution level was established with larger communities in mind. EcoAction 
Partners is poised to participate in MTSP over the next 7 months to represent our region and is proposing a 
regional participation among Ouray County and San Miguel County communities. For communities wanting 
to participate via this regional proposal, EcoAction Partners is requesting a funding contribution from each 
community at a level that is comfortable and in line with each community's interest. 
 
Questions for Council to consider: 

• Would the Town like EcoAction Partners to participate on the Town’s behalf? 

• Would the Town like to participate directly, either for all sessions or only some of them? 

• Would the Town like to contribute toward a total regional funding amount for MTSP, and if so, how 
much?   

• Would the Town like to make a contribution to MTSP to directly participate in MTSP, and if so, how 
much? 

 
For more information on Mountain Towns 2030 and MTSP, check out https://www.mt2030.org/.  

https://www.mt2030.org/


 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #14 
 



 

 

February 3, 2023 
 
 
Town of Ridgway 
Attention: Ridgway Town Council & Preston Neill 
201 N. Railroad Street 
Ridgway, CO 81432 
 
 

RE: Ridgway Planning Commission Appointment 
 
 
Members of Council and Preston: 
 
I was recently notified by Jennifer Franz of her need to resign her seat on the Planning 
Commission. Her last meeting was on January 10, 2023.  
 
The Town issued a Notice of Vacancy on the Town of Ridgway Planning Commission on January 
16th. In all, the Town received six letters of interest in response to the solicitation.  
 
In accordance with Section 7-1-1(A) of the Ridgway Municipal Code, I am formally appointing 
Ridgway resident Pam Foyster to fill the open seat on the Planning Commission, effective 
immediately. She will serve the remainder of the term vacated by Jennifer Franz, which expires 
on November 1, 2027.  
 
Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
John I. Clark 
Mayor 
Town of Ridgway 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #15 
 


	00 agenda
	01 Consent Agenda
	02 Jan 11 tc min
	03 Register of Demands
	04 Agenda Item 5
	05 Resolution No. 23-03
	1. Resolution No. 23-03 Condemnation Resolution
	2. Exhibit 1

	06 Agenda Item 6
	07 Artspace Update
	08 Agenda Item 7
	09 Tobacco Use Prevention and Control Presentation
	1. Press Release re Dr. Carolyn Dresler
	2. Dresler Draft Tobacco Licensing Program Regulations

	10 Agenda Item 8
	11 Habitat for Humanity_PA_TC_Pkt_2023.02.08
	Habitat for Humanity_PA_TC_SR_2023.0208
	H4H_PA_TC_Pkt_01_2023.0128
	REVISED Request for Hearing-Town of Ridgway-Variance & Plat Amendment
	Property Tax Exemption
	ToR_H4H_AP_Reciept_2022.0822
	ToR_H4H_AP_Narrative_2022.1104
	ToR_H4H_AP_Plat_2022.1104
	ToR_H4H_AP_Arch_2022.1104
	ToR_H4H_AP_Arch_Floorplan_2022.1104
	ToR_H4H_AP_Arch_Supplemental_2022.1104
	ToR_H4H_AP_BldgPermitSet_2022.1104
	ToR_H4H_AP_LandscapePlan_2022.1104
	ToR_H4H_AP_SitePlan_02_2022.1104
	ToR_H4H_AP_SitePlan_2022.1104
	REVISED-Fire Suppression ap_Habitat
	Ridgway Land Title Policy
	ToR_H4H_AP_GeoTechRpt_2022.1104

	H4H_PA_TC_Pkt_02_2023.0128
	Habitat for Humanity_PA-Var_RevLtr_2023.0106
	ToR_H4H_PA-Var_Redlines_CPS Rev_2022.1217
	ToR_H4H_AP_Plat_CPS Rev_2022.11217
	ToR_H4H_AP_LandscapePlan_CPS Rev_2022.1217



	12 Agenda Item 9
	13 VPC_FP_TC_SP_Pkt_2023.0208
	VPC_FP_TC_SR_2023.0208
	VPC_FP_TC_Pkt_A0
	01_VPC - Final Plat Application Form - 4-28-22
	01b_VPC_Table of Contents
	10a_VPC_SIA - Estimate_2022.0926
	11_VPC - ByLaws - Recorded
	12_VPC - HOA CC&R's - Recorded

	VPC_FP_TC_Pkt_A1
	20221207 Plat Page 1 12-7-22 (2)
	20221207 Plat Page 2 12-7-22
	20221207 Plat Page 3 12-7-22
	20221207 Plat Page 4 12-7-22
	20221207 VPC - Architectual Update - 12-06-22
	20221216 VPC- Revised Landscape
	VistaPark12.7.22-compressed

	VPC_FP_TC_Pkt_B
	20221207 JDR Comprehensive Response Letter to Mr. Dlubac
	20221207 Responses to TJ Dlubac Comments 7-18-22

	VPC_FP_TC_Pkt_C
	VPC_FP_Comment_CommentLtr_2023.0120
	20221207 Plat Page 2 12-7-22_CPS Redlines
	20221207 Plat Page 3 12-7-22_CPS Redlines
	20221207 Plat Page 4 12-7-22_CPS Redlines

	VPC_FP_TC_Pkt_D

	14 Agenda Item 10
	15 Subdivision Improvement Agreement
	16 Agenda Item 11
	17 RACC Presentation
	1. Memo
	2. Attachment 1 - 2023 Marketing Request Letter
	3. Attachment 2 - RACC_AnnualReport_2022.FINAL
	4. Attachment 3 - PSA Ridgway Marketing and Promotions - signed

	18 Agenda Item 12
	19 PW Truck Purchase
	20 Agenda Item 13
	21 Mountain Towns 2030 Solutions Project
	22 Agenda Item 14
	23 Ridgway Planning Commission Appointment
	24 Agenda Item 15



